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1. CHAIRMAN’S INTRODUCTION

I am pleased to present the Annual Report for 2003 and 2004 which sets out the major achievements of the organisation
and challenges met during the year.

I am very grateful for the commitment of the staff of the Loughs Agency and support provided by the Board members,
our Sponsoring Departments, the Department of Communications Marine and Natural Resources, the Department of
Agriculture and Rural Development; the North/South Ministerial Council, Departments of Finance and their officials.

The challenges have been many, but so too have been the achievements. The expertise in fishery management inherited
from the Foyle Fisheries Commission has provided us with a solid foundation to build on for the future and to deliver
our aim:

“to provide sustainable social, economic and environmental benefits through the effective conservation, management, promotion
and development of the fisheries and marine resources of the Foyle and Carlingford Areas for the benefit of all”.

Peter Savage
Chairman



2. CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OVERVIEW

During the period of this report work continued on the draft Bills to amend the primary legislation under which the
Loughs Agency of the Foyle, Carlingford and Irish Lights Commission operates. The Sponsoring Departments deployed
additional resources to this work and much progress has been made.

In preparation of the enactment of this legislation the Agency completed its draft Implementation Plan for regulation
and licensing of shellfish and aquaculture and public consultation on this will be initiated early in 2005.

The salmon runs recorded during the period were excellent in 2003 but showed a small drop in 2004. The 2003 runs
were such as to trigger a one week extension to the commercial fishery, but not in 2004. In 2004 a major fish kill occurred
on the River Strule at Omagh with over 700 salmon killed. This, following consultations with local anglers and fishery
owners, resulted in the area affected being closed to angling some five weeks early to conserve the remaining breeding
stocks.

Work continued on the genetic diversity of the salmon stocks of the Foyle Area and a full report of this pioneering work
will be published in 2005. Continued development of the salmon management regime was approved by the Board and
the Sponsoring Departments in that the Agency in partnership with the Marine Institute, National Institute for
Agricultural Research (France) and Glasgow University and DARD initiated the development of Pre Fisheries Abundance
Model and this work will be completed in 2008.

The Agency’s interpretive centre “Riverwatch” welcomed its 10,000th visitor during the period of the report and the
outreach programmes such as “adopt a stream” and “hatchery in the classroom” generated considerable interest
throughout the catchments.

The Agency’s promotional responsibilities also were successful particularly the first annual Angling Fair in March 2004
which attracted over 3,000 visitors and the Carlingford Saltwater Fly & Lure Fishing festival, among others.

I believe that the Agency continues to make progress in fully shouldering its responsibilities and would wish to record
my gratitude to the Board for their support and guidance, to the staff of the Agency for their dedication and commitment
and to our Sponsoring Departments and the Secretariat of the NSMC for their ongoing assistance and support for the
work of the Agency.

RJ Derick Anderson
Chief Executive



3.  MISSION STATEMENT
The Loughs Agency aims to provide sustainable social, economic and environmental benefits through the effective
conservation, management, promotion and development of the fisheries and marine resources of the Foyle and
Carlingford Areas.
4.  OBJECTIVES
The principal objectives of the Agency in the Foyle and Carlingford Areas are:—
e To conserve and protect the salmon and inland fisheries of the Foyle and Carlingford Areas;
e To manage and develop the salmon and inland fisheries of the Foyle and Carlingford Areas;
e To promote the development of Lough Foyle and Carlingford Lough for commercial and recreational purposes;
e To licence and develop aquaculture;
e To develop marine tourism;
e To pursue increased efficiency and continuous improvement in the delivery of services to all customers;
» To ensure the efficient, effective, and economic utilisation of resources available to the Agency.
See Appendix 1 for outturn against objectives.

5. BOARD MEMBERSHIP 2003/2004

Mr Peter Savage Chairperson

Lord Cooke of Islandreagh Vice Chairperson

Mr Jack Allen Ms Siobhan Logue

Mr Keith Anderson * Mr Joseph Martin

Mr Dick Blakiston-Houston Miss Jacqui McConville
Mr Francis Feely Mr Tarlach O’Crosain
Dr Patrick Griffin Mr Andrew Ward

« resigned in 17th November 2004 due to work commitments

The Board met on six occasions during 2003 as follows:

 5th March 2003 Ballymascanlon House Hotel Dundalk

» 21st May 2003 Agency Headquarters Prehen

 9th July 2003 Agency Headquarters Prehen

* 3rd September 2003 Agency Headquarters Prehen

e 22nd October 2003 Holy Trinity Heritage Centre Carlingford
 10th December 2003 Agency Headquarters Prehen

In 2004 the Board met on five occasions as follows:

e 24th March 2004 Agency Headquarters Prehen

» 19th May 2004 Armagh City Hotel

* 15th September 2004 Ballymascanlon House Hotel Dundalk
e 17th November 2004 Agency Headquarters Prehen

e 15th December 2004 Armagh City Hotel



Audit Finance & Personnel Shellfish Salmon and Inland Marine Tourism

Fisheries
Peter Savage Joseph Martin Dick Blakiston-Houston Francis Feely
Jack Allen Patrick Griffin Tarlach O’Crosain Andrew Ward
Siobhan Logue Siobhan Logue Andrew Ward Lord Cooke of Islandreagh
Patrick Griffin Tarlach O’Crosain Francis Feely Keith Anderson

6. FOYLE AND CARLINGFORD AREA ADVISORY FORUM

At its first meeting the NSMC-FCILC sector asked the Board to bring forward proposals for establishing consultation
mechanisms with relevant interest groups in the Foyle and Carlingford Areas. The NSMC subsequently agreed to the
establishment of the Foyle and Carlingford Area Advisory Forum through a selection process independent of the Agency
to critique and advise the Agency in relation to its main strategic objectives:—

» Conservation and Protection
» Development of Aquaculture
*  Development of Inland fisheries
e Development of Marine Tourism
e Customer Service
During the period of this report the following meetings of the Forum were held:

January 2003 Mr Brian McDermott relinquished the chair and the Forum acknowledged his commitment to both the
current forum and its predecessor the Foyle Area Advisory Forum. Mr Pat McLaughlin was elected to the chair, Mr
Eamon Mullan vice-chair and Mr Gary Neill as secretary.

March 2003 the Forum adopted new standing orders and discussed the Shellfish Code of Practice, the Audit of fisheries
Based Recreation and Leisure and also the proposed Marine Tourism Study.

June 2003 the Forum were given a presentation on the EU Water framework Directive and the impact on the Agency’s
areas of responsibility.

September 2003 the Forum discussed the electrofishing results and the salmon runs for the season they also discussed the
proposed draft conservation and protection regulations.

November 2003 the Forum received a presentation on the DNA — Genetics work being carried out in partnership with
QUB and also the Agency’s proposals for angling Development in the Foyle and Carlingford areas.

April 2004 discussions included the Marine Tourism Study and the progress to date on the draft Foyle and Carlingford
Fisheries Bill.
7. STAFFING

Recruitment

The Body continued to recruit its full complement of permanent staff. The Agency’s organisational structure is currently
under review and the recommendations are being considered by the sponsoring Departments and the Departments of
Finance. Vacancies were widely advertised across the island of Ireland and attracted substantial interest. Applications were
of a high calibre and had a wide representation in terms of gender, community background and North/South Origin.
During 2003 & 2004 the following posts were filled:

* Angling Manager

* EOL1 (Finance)

e Deputy Coxswain

e Administrative Officers & Assistant

e River Watchers

Retirements
There were no retirements during the period of this report.



8. STAFF DEVELOPMENT

The Agency continued to invest in the training and development of its staff during the period of this report and the
programme of training included Powerboat Instructor, Coastal Navigation, Sea Survival, First Aid Aboard Ship and there
were a range of other courses and awareness seminars conducted, for example Health and Safety, Certificate in
Management Practice and Risk Management.

A full training needs analysis was carried out during 2004 the Agency plans to introduce personal development plans in
2005.

9. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The redesign of the Agency’s web site (www.loughs-agency.org) was initiated as part of the organisation’s commitment to
providing a useful and up-to-date portal for those seeking information about angling, marine tourism and aquaculture
in the Foyle and Carlingford Areas.

We took a number of steps to improve the security and communications and also the collection & transfer of data. These
included the introduction of broadband into our headquarters with the planned rollout to all fish counter sites as the
service becomes more widely available, the piloting of remote digital video technology used in the validation of the fish
counting systems and also a system of off-site back ups was put in place.

10. EDUCATION AND INTERPRETIVE CENTRE “RIVERWATCH”

The “Riverwatch” Interpretive Centre was recognised as a tourist attraction by the Northern Ireland Tourist Board in the
middle of 2003 and through restricted marketing efforts welcomed 4660 visitors through it’s doors. Relationships with
schools and community organisations were established through pilot outreach schemes such as river clean ups, historical
evenings, fishing trips, etc. Links with other local tourist attractions and organisations such as Derry Visitor and
Convention Bureau and the Harbour Museum, Du Pont Visitor Centre and Toucan One Cruises were developed to
extend and enhance the experience of visitors.

During 2004, through increased marketing and promotion, 6203 visitors viewed the centre or took part in educational
outreach programmes. The outreach portfolio was developed to include Hatchery In the Classroom, Alevin Release, Vital
Signs, Fishing Festivals, Big Draw, Festival of Science and other small-scale initiatives. The outreach projects complement
the key messages in the visitor centre and the work of the Agency. All participants enjoyed their experiences and the visitor
book boasts comments such as:

‘Thought provoking, educational and impressive facilities

‘Brilliant presentations and very informative. Pleasantly surprised!’

‘Pupils and teachers alike really enjoyed this trip. It was very worthwhile. — St Peter’s High School.

‘We had a fabulous day and did loads of follow up work. We would be delighted to do the release again next year’. —
Broadbridge Primary School.

11. FISHERIES MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT

11.1 Salmon Management and Development

Background

The management regime operating for salmon in the Foyle Catchment is unique in the North East Atlantic and was
established by the Foyle Fisheries Commission following the Report by PF Elson and ALW Tuomi, “The Foyle Fisheries,
New Basis for Rational Management” published in 1975. The strategy has been refined in the intervening period using
the most up to date technology and latest scientific knowledge including a full review of escapement targets by the
Agency’s Scientific Advisors in 1997. For further details on these strategies and information the Agency utilises in
managing fisheries please refer to previous years Annual Reports. There follows a brief update on the information
collected in 2003 and 2004.

Audit Points

Commercial Catches

Overall commercial catches for 2003 were down on the previous year of 2002 although were still up on the 2001 figure.
Sufficient numbers of salmon crossed the counter at Sion Mills on the River Mourne to trigger a one week extension to



the commercial fishing season. The 2004 season was disappointing for the drift nets although the draft net returns were
about average. Catches are detailed in tables 4 & 5 & 6 in Appendix 2.

Fish Counters

All counters operated satisfactorily in 2003 with no major problems reported. The 2004 run through the counters on the
Mourne was quite good although the numbers crossing the Finn and Roe were down on previous years while the Faughan
was about average. The Finn was the only River in the Foyle area in 2004 to not meet its conservation limits or
management targets, the Agency will continue to monitor this situation. The Owenkillew counter experienced ongoing
technical difficulties during the year so the count from this site is incomplete. Results from these may be found in Tables
2 & 3 in Appendix 2.

Angling

The percentage of anglers making a return on their logbooks in 2003 were down on the 2002 figure at 15% although
this figure is still much higher than that pre-carcass tagging. In 2004 the percentage return increased to 21% and the
adjusted number of salmon caught were about the same as 2003 although well down on the 2002 season. The reported
catch was adjusted to allow for unreported returns and these figures are shown in Tables 10, 11 & 12 in Appendix 2.

Redd Counts

Weather conditions are all important when counting redds as they are very difficult to determine in high turbid water
conditions and in addition, high water flows may flatten the mounds of gravel created by redding action thus when
clearer conditions return no visible evidence of the redd remains. However, 2003 was a year with water conditions and
thus it is believed a relatively accurate count was achieved.

Electrofishing

In 2003, 396 sites were semi-quantitatively surveyed in the Foyle area by electric fishing. Overall on average there were
10 trout fry and 19 salmon fry present at each site.

In 2004, 484 sites were semi-quantitatively electrically fished, with an average of 6 trout fry and 17 salmon fry present
at each site. 72 sites were surveyed in the Carlingford area and 412 sites in the Foyle area. Within the Foyle area 150 sites
were surveyed in the eastern region (rivers Roe, Burndennett and Faughan), 110 sites in the southern region (rivers Strule,
Camowen, Drumragh and Fairywater), 43 sites in the western region, (rivers Finn, Deele and Culdaff) and 109 in the
central region (rivers Mourne, Derg and Owenkillew).

Further details are provided in the Status Report which is available from the Agency or on our web site www.loughs-
agency.org

Coded Wire Tagging (CWT)

This programme continued in 2003 on the Rivers Finn and Faughan and is undertaken for a number of reasons including
the collection of biological data on the smolt run and a minimum estimate of marine survival rates. Table 1 outlines the
numbers of smolts tagged at Killygordon on the River Finn and some of the biological characteristics. Table 2 highlights
the recapture data.

The Marine Institute collates the recapture data from the tagging programme. For fish tagged in any year there is a lag
of 2 years before the recapture data is available.

All micro-tagged fish have had their adipose fin removed (small fin between dorsal fin and tail), if any fisher catches a
salmon or grilse without this fin a bounty is payable on the return of the fish head to Loughs Agency Headquarters in
Prehen, please include location and date fish was caught, length, weight and scale sample.

Table 1. Numbers of smolt tagged on River Finn 2002-2004

Year Number of Smolts Tagged Mean Age Mean Length (cm) Mean Weight (g)
2002 690 2+ 125 19.8

2003 2252 2+ 12.7 20.2

2004 773 2+ 12.73 20.31
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Table 2. Re-capture data from River Finn micro-tagging programme. Note lag in data due to length of time
spent at sea and length of time needed to collate data.

Year Tagged  Year Re-captured Numbers Recaptured Re-capture Location
2002 2003 10 Donegal, Foyle area, North Coast,
Mayo, Galway
2004 1 River Finn
2003 2004 25 Donegal, Foyle area, Mayo, Kerry,
River Finn

2005 (No data available yet) (No data available yet) (No data available yet)

The Agency through Interreg I1la Water Measure Programme purchased CWT equipment for use in the Foyle and
Carlingford areas. This will allow the Agency to potentially expand the programme in future years.

Instream Works

Following the recent genetic programme which highlighted the ineffectiveness of historical stocking programmes on the
River Roe the Agency undertook a series of instream enhancement initiatives in 2004. These included in the Camowen
catchment work in the Glencurry Burn and Cloghfin River and also removal of impassable barriers to fish on the Cranny
Burn in Omagh. Other habitat enhancement schemes included work on the Faughan and the Roe. These were drawn up
in consultation with Dr. Martin O’Grady from the Central Fisheries Board and it is hoped they will aid in maintaining
and improving the runs of salmon and trout back to the Foyle in the years to come.

Conservation

The genetic programme was ongoing 2003 and reported towards the end of 2004. The report is currently undergoing
peer review and a published report will be issued in 2005 and will be available on the Agency’s website at
www.loughs-agency.org

11.2 Coarse Fisheries Management and Development

Background

Coarse fishing is of particular importance in the Carlingford area, the Agency continued to work with Newry and
Mourne District Council and tourism interests to develop and promote the canal. Significant potential for development
also exists in the Foyle Area and elsewhere in the Carlingford Area. The fisheries on the Baronscourt Lakes are already
very important, as is the River Strule at its confluence with the River Fairywater.

11.3 Shellfish Management and Development

Background

The weekly shore monitoring program in Lough Foyle was continued throughout 2003 and 2004 with additional
reference sites being added to the sample list for greater spatial coverage of the Lough. Boat monitoring was carried out
periodically in both Carlingford Lough and Lough Foyle as a comparison to the shore samples. The baseline data being
recorded during these sample runs will be used to assess fluctuations in local environmental variables and these values can
then be cross-referenced with reproductive periods and growth rates of the shellfish in the Loughs.

As well as the above water quality records the Agency commenced sampling of water and shellfish within the Lough for
statutory sampling programs operated by DARD and the Marine Institute. This included taking water samples for
estimations of phytoplankton abundance and identification of toxic algal blooms. The water samples for these programs
are taken weekly from sites within Lough Foyle and Carlingford and forwarded to the relevant authorities for
examination. Mussel samples were also taken on a monthly basis from the Loughs and forwarded to the relevant
departments for classification for toxic algal concentrations.

A joint shellfish survey of Lough Foyle by Aquaculture Initiative, BIM and the Loughs Agency took place in 2003 and
again in 2004 during May and August. This survey included dredging of the Lough and records of the abundance and
distribution of mussel, oysters and their predators being made. A preliminary summary of this survey was given to the
fishermen in September 2004 showing good recruitment to the native oyster fishery in the northern beds, however oysters
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in other areas were considerably smaller than previous years and densities were not thought to be lower on many of the
beds.

In May of 2003 a shellfish workshop was hosted by the Agency in the Canal Court Hotel, Newry. The workshop was
entitled “Managing Shellfish for Sustainability”. This workshop attracted speakers from the UK, Ireland, Holland, and
America. These speakers related their experiences of trying to manage shellfisheries in their respective countries in a
sustainable manner and presented much food for thought to the workshop delegates in relation to the proper
management of the resources of Loughs Foyle and Carlingford. The report of this workshop is available on the Agency’s
website at www.loughs-agency.org.

Trials using the RoxAnn groundmaster equipment have also been completed during the early part of 2003 This
equipment enables a detailed seabed map to be created through acoustic surveying of the substrate from a boat platform.
Unfortunately weather conditions can affect the reliability of the results of this system and it relies on calm weather for
accurate operation. This was not always possible during 2003 and boat and manpower availability during the busy salmon
season was also a factor. The trials were further developed in 2004 and a survey of the inner Lough was initiated in
October. The survey worked on a 400m grid system, with RoxAnn data being collected from latitudinal transects running
at 400m spacing from east-west and west-east. The survey was successful in collecting large amounts of data on the
substrate types available in the inner Lough however weather hampered the effort towards the end of 2004 and made
much of the RoxAnn data unsuitable for interpretation due to spiking.

The Environmental Monitoring Systems purchased in 2002 were in development during the beginning of 2003 and the
first buoy in the system was launched in late 2003. These systems allow in situ continuous automatic records of
temperature, dissolved oxygen, depth, and chlorophyll fluorescence to be made. These systems have a patented wipe clean
technology to allow them to be submersed in marine waters for long periods without the accuracy of results decreasing
with time. The first of the systems was launched at Black Braes in Lough Foyle and its hoped that this system will provide
high accuracy information about the quality of the water in the Foyle for shellfish for many years ahead. Initial results
are good and the system is generating detailed records of temperature and chlorophyll-a fluctuations in the inner Lough.
The data from this monitoring system is available online for the benefit of private and educational users. Refinements in
the variability of the data are being made and it is hoped that the Carlingford Buoy will be deployed in early 2004.

During 2004 the Environmental Monitoring System deployed at Black Braes in Lough Foyle was checked and calibrated
monthly. The system is operating well and the data is being refined for release to the stakeholders. These systems allow
in situ continuous automatic records of temperature, dissolved oxygen, depth, and chlorophyll fluorescence to be made.
These systems have a patented wipe clean technology to allow them to be submersed in marine waters for long periods
without the accuracy of results decreasing with time. The second of the systems was launched in Carlingford during 2004.
This is the first system to be deployed in Carlingford and so far it has performed excellently, producing much needed
data on the fluctuating environmental variables within the water body. The data from this monitoring system is available
online for the benefit of private and educational users. Refinements in the variability of the data are being made and it
is hoped that all data can be presented in a useable format soon.

The Agency was successful in a bid to the European Regional Development Fund through the INTERREG I11A Water
Measure Programme for the purchase of four additional systems which were delivered in December 2004. It is intended
that one each shall be deployed in the outer loughs of Foyle and Carlingford respectively. Of the remaining systems it is
hoped to deploy one seawards of Lough Foyle and the other in a freshwater system.

A chlorophyll and nutrient monitoring program was commenced during 2004. This program involved water samples
from 12 sites within Lough Foyle and the River Foyle being sampled on a monthly basis. Chlorophyll and nutrient
samples allow estimates of productivity to be made and will allow the records from the environmental monitoring systems
to be cross checked as a calibration or quality control measure. The program is being run in collaboration with DARD
Aquatic Services, who will process samples and determine results.
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A survey of the reproductive activity of the native oysters in Lough Foyle was carried out from May to August 2004. This
involved taking a sample of oysters from the major beds in the Lough and estimating the degree of reproductive activity
within each individual. Spat collectors were also deployed to monitor settlement of spat within the oyster beds and
temperature and salinity measurements were made throughout the summer to determine how these variables influenced
breeding success of the stock. Unfortunately very little reproductive behaviour was observed within the samples and it
was thought that this may have been due to the small size of the oysters on the main beds or the fact that sample size was
not big enough.

The production tonnage for the shellfisheries in Loughs Foyle and Carlingford are outlined in Table 3

Table 3

Species Year Production Area Volume Sum of Value (£)
Bottom Mussel 2003 Lough Foyle 15,318 €10,504,240
Native Oyster 2003 Lough Foyle 50 not known
Bottom Mussel 2003 Carlingford Lough 1,500 €1,725,000
Gigas Oyster 2003 Carlingford Lough 457 €900,350
Native Oyster 2004 Lough Foyle 50 not known
Bottom Mussel 2004 Lough Foyle 12,162 €8,762,960
Gigas Oyster 2004 Carlingford Lough 320 €332,200
Bottom Mussel 2004 Carlingford Lough 2,500 €2,468,000

12. CONSERVATION AND PROTECTION OF FISHERIES

Enforcement of the Fisheries Acts and Regulations remains a primary function of the Loughs Agency staff. Details of
Loughs Agency seizures are presented in Tables 21A & B in Appendix 2. During 2003 salmon runs back to the Foyle
were again excellent but while a long dry spell during the summer and autumn inhibited angling activity, sufficient
salmon moved into the fresh water to trigger a one week extension to the commercial fishery as in 2002.

In August 2004 a major fish kill occurred on the River Strule in which over 700 adult salmon were recovered. The Agency
following consultation with the local angling interests and fishery owners, introduced an emergency regulation to bring
forward the beginning of the close season in the River Strule and its tributaries from 21 October to 13 September. This
regulation allowed the remaining salmon migrating to their spawning grounds protection and helped minimise the effect
of the incident as evidenced by the assessment of the spawning activity in the area.

Regulations introduced during 2004 included further protection for spring salmon with a one salmonid bag limit for the
period 1 March to 31 May and a four fish limit for the remainder of the season. Sustained enforcement of fishery
legislation by Agency staff continues to contribute towards the observed reduction of illegal fishing.

Details of Loughs Agency prosecutions are presented in Tables 20A & B in Appendix 2.

Loughs Agency would wish to acknowledge the substantial assistance given by DARD, the Garda Siochana and the Police
Service for Northern Ireland in the enforcement of the Fisheries Acts in the Loughs Agency area. Also particular thanks
to the private river watchers who, often in very difficult circumstances and on a voluntary basis, provide additional
protection on their fisheries to the benefit of all. This help is very much appreciated by the Board of the FCILC, the
Loughs Agency and its staff.

Seed mussel fishery patrols were undertaken by DARD and DCMNR assisted by the Loughs Agency during October and
November 2003. This required extensive patrol on-board the FPV Lough Bradan observing the fishing activities of
mussel dredgers and also boarding of vessels for estimation of catches and quality of seed reserves. This fishery was open
for the majority of the period from October to January and the Loughs Agency directed much of its effort towards the
observation of this fishery and the facilitating of department officials in their roles as officers of this fishery.

13. WATER QUALITY

The Agency ceased to act as formal agents of The Environment and Heritage Service on 31 May 2004 with regard to the
control of water pollution, the Agency staff, however retain their authority under the Water (Northern Ireland) Order
1999, and also through the enforcement of the Foyle Fisheries Acts 1952 enabling Agency staff to work closely with
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Environment and Heritage staff should the need arise. The Agency will continue to be the lead organisation in
investigations pertaining to fish kills.

The protocols for the interactions between the two bodies will be formalised within a Memorandum of Understanding
currently being drafted jointly by both parties.

Whilst the Agency is no longer involved in the comprehensive river monitoring regime that will be continued by EHS
staff all results resulting arising from this programme are available to the Agency for appraisal and interpretation.

A similar regime exists with regard to the routine Consent compliance sampling programme, with the results from the
samples collected by EHS staff made available to the Agency, thus allowing the Agency to assess the individual premises
performance, and take any appropriate action.

The Agency believes that its strategy of targeting catchments that appear to be stressed for its Proactive Pollution
Prevention Programme is both sound and beneficial to these catchments, the base information for this strategy is
primarily sourced from the qualitative electro-fishing surveys carried out each year and to a lesser extent from the habitat
update programme and the redd count surveys.

The Agency continues to be a statutory consultee regarding developments that have the potential to impact on the
riverine, environment either from a water quality or physical habitat aspect. This includes discussions with the Forest
Service & various forestry bodies regarding possible impact of proposed planting schemes, roads service regarding new
river crossings and road schemes, Water Service regarding sewage and water abstraction schemes, Planning Service
regarding new developments, Environment and Heritage Service regarding discharge consents, their quality and possible
impact, and Rivers Agency regarding drainage and watercourse management issues, including habitat reinstatement
works.

The Agency has purchased and installed telemetry buoys in both Lough Foyle and in Carlingford Lough, the purpose of
which is to measure and record several water quality parameters that will be used to develop carrying capacity models for
shellfish in both Loughs.

14. EU INTERREG IIIA WATER MEASURE PROGRAMME

In 2004 the Agency received funding from the European Regional Development Fund through the INTERREG I11A
Programme, administered by the Environment and Heritage Service, on behalf of the Department of Environment for
the following projects:

an

_—E Environment & AnAgen.cywwlhmlhe Department of the INTERHEG
Heritage Service @ Eﬂi‘d“‘;onkmem na
=== www.ehsnigov.uk o |

e Inshore Patrol Vessel for Carlingford Lough (€209k) — This vessel will be used by the Agency for protection
and survey work mainly within Carlingford Lough.

* Four Auto-Telemetry Monitoring Buoys (€233k) for real-time monitoring of the waters of both Lough Foyle
and Carlingford Lough. This project is in partnership with Environment and Heritage Service, Marine Institute,
Department of Agriculture and Rural Development, the Environmental Protection Agency and will be deployed
early in 2005.

e Coded Wire Tagging & Detection Units (€82k). These units will be used for the 2005 smolt run and for
monitoring the returning adult salmon.

e Weir and Fish Counter River Strule Omagh (€155Kk) this project has been developed in partnership with Omagh
District Council and is on target for completion in mid 2005.

15. MARINE TOURISM

The Agency was given the new function of the development of marine tourism by the British Irish Agreement. Progress
on developing this function was delayed during the year by the suspension of the Northern Ireland Assembly however an
“Audit of the Fisheries-based Recreation and Leisure Resource of both the Foyle and Carlingford Areas” was completed
by Fitzpatrick Associates towards the end of 2002 and this formed the basis for consultation with interest groups and the
preparation of a 5 year development plan for the Foyle and Carlingford Areas. A further joint study of Marine Leisure in
both Areas in co-operation with the North West and Eastern Regional Cross Border Groups was initiated in 2004.
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GLOSSARY

Bacteriology — Refers to bacteria

Benthic surveys — Surveys of the sea bed

Biotoxins — Toxins produced by certain species of algae

Coarse fish — Fish such as roach, rudd, bream, perch, pike, tench etc.
Egg deposition — The number of eggs deposited by the adult fish

Electrofishing — A technique employing electricity to capture fish. It does this through specialised equipment
producing an electric charge which allows fish within an area to be stunned, and caught unharmed.

Eyed ova — Developmental stage of a salmon/trout egg where the eyes of the young fish become visible.
Macro-invertebrates — Insects found in streams

Spawning escapement — The number of fish left to spawn at the end of the season.

Salmonids — Trout and salmon.
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APPENDIX 1
OUTTURN AGAINST TARGETS 2004

OBJECTIVE

1. To conserve and protect the salmon and inland
fisheries of the Foyle and Carlingford Areas.

KEY ACTIVITY

1.1 Habitat protection

1.1 Enforcement

1.1 Education

PERFORMANCE TARGET

1.1.1  Proactively promote pollution prevention by presence on
rivers and carry out 1,500 farm visits.

1.1.2 Respond to all pollution reports within 8 hours of
notification.

1.1.3  Specify fisheries protection requirements for forestry,
engineering, and other works affecting the riverine
environment of the Foyle and Carlingford Areas, and
respond within 21 days of consultation.

1.2.1 Provide 120 days at sea protection in Lough Foyle and
area seaward of Lough Foyle and check licences of
100% of boats observed fishing.

1.2.2  Provide 40 days at sea protection in Carlingford Lough.

1.2.3  Check 3,000 angling licences and logbooks in the
Foyle Area, reducing the number of unlicensed
anglers detected to less than 0.5%.

1.2.4  Check 600 angling licences in the Carlingford Area,
reducing the number of unlicensed anglers detected to
less than 0.5%.

1.25 Check 100% of operational netsmen’s log books
during the commercial season.

1.2.6  Check 100% of licensed salmon dealers once per
week between 1st March and 30th October.

1.2.7 Increase visitor numbers to the “Riverwatch” interpretive
centre by 50% on visits in 2003.

OBJECTIVE

2. To manage and develop the Salmon and Inland
Fisheries of the Foyle and Carlingford Areas.

KEY ACTIVITY

2.1 Management information.

2.2 The Improvement of Fisheries Habitat.

2.3 Provide information and advice in relation to the
Foyle and Carlingford Bill.
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UPDATE

80% complete
Achieved to date no breaches of SLA

Ongoing

65% complete (Lough Bradan out of water
being serviced and rewired)

23% complete (Carlingford Rib under repair)
84% complete

58% complete

Achieved
Achieved

6203 (industrial action by teachers at peak time)
(4660 in 2003)

UPDATE



PERFORMANCE TARGET

2.1.1  Provide validated adult recruitment figures
from the fish counters on the Rivers Roe,
Faughan, Mourne, Owenkillew, Camowen, Culdaff and

Finn by December 2004.

Survey 340 electro-fishing sites by the end of
September 2004.

Establish exploitation rates by commercial and
recreational fisheries by December 2004.

2.1.2
2.1.3
2.1.4  Carry out 5 coarse fishery surveys by October 2004.

2.1.5 Undertake a review of the conservation limits and

escapement targets for the Foyle catchment by June 2004.

2.1.6  Complete aerial digital photographic surveys of the
freshwater Foyle and Carlingford catchments by

May 2004.

Introduce a programme of sampling in the commercial
salmon fisheries to establish temporal and spatial
variances in the exploited populations.

2.1.7

2.2.1  Submit proposals for habitat improvement schemes
and associated business plans for the Rivers Deele,
Culdaff, Roe, Faughan, and Camowen to Departments

by March 2004.

Commence work on the habitat improvement
schemes in May 2004.

2.2.2

2.2.3 Identify areas for enhancement for each sub catchment

that will achieve a 5% increase in 2003 spawning target.

2.2.4  Deliver improvement in habitat to provide 10%

increase in the 2003-spawning target.

2.2.5 Encourage 20 groups of Riverwatch clients to use
the ‘adopt a stream’ programme to improve their

local stream/river habitat.

2.3.1 Respond to requests for information and advice in

relation to the Foyle and Carlingford Bill within the

deadlines set, and attend the Committee Stage of the Bill.

OBJECTIVE

3. To promote the development of Lough Foyle and
Carlingford Lough for commercial and recreational
purposes.

KEY ACTIVITY

3.1 Develop a strategic plan for the promotion of the
development of Lough Foyle and Carlingford Lough for
commercial and recreational purposes.

PERFORMANCE TARGET

3.1.1 Prepare a strategic plan for the promotion of the
development of Lough Foyle and Carlingford Lough for
commercial and recreational purposes, including any
provision for funding, by June 2004 derived from the
Study of Marine Tourism and the Fisheries Based

Recreation and Leisure Development Plan.
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Finn and Mourne Validation Complete others
to follow in 2005.

Electrofishing completed

Awaiting outcome of PFA/Genetics and
Digital Photography

Lough Derg completed August others to follow
in 2005

Ongoing as 2.1.3

Finn Complete others awaiting new
digital technology (now May 2005)

Ongoing DNA work

Work on Rivers Roe and Faughan completed.
Business cases for the Dennett, Omagh
catchment and Culdaff currently being worked
up in partnership with Rivers Agency.

Work on the Rivers Roe and Faughan now
complete. SLA agreed with Rivers Agency.

Ongoing see 2.2.2
Ongoing see 2.2.2

Delayed due to H&S risk assessments, to date
two groups have carried out cleanups Oakgrove
(St. Columb’s Park), YMCA (Drumahoe),

Ongoing

UPDATE

Final draft of Marine Tourism Study Commenced
received currently being considered by the
Marine Tourism Sub Cttee.



3.1.2  Provide up to date angling information through the
Agency’s web site, information line and angling
press notes

OBJECTIVE
4, To licence and develop aquaculture

KEY ACTIVITY

4.1.1  Put into practice those parts of Implementation
Plan required prior to the enactment of the Foyle and
Carlingford Fisheries Bill.

4.1.2 Provide information and advice in relation to the
Foyle and Carlingford Fisheries Bill.

PERFORMANCE TARGET

4.1.1  Further develop monitoring programme to provide
scientific basis for the management and
implementation of the provisions of the forthcoming
Primary Legislation.

4.1.2 Continue consultation on the proposals for developing
sustainable aquaculture in Lough Foyle and
Carlingford Lough within 6 months of the
enactment of Primary Legislation.

4.1.3 Finalise a development plan for aquaculture within
9 months of the enactment of the Primary Legislation.

4.2.1 Respond to requests for information and advice in
relation to the Foyle and Carlingford Bill within the

deadlines set, and attend the Committee Stage of the Bill.

OBJECTIVE
5. To develop marine tourism

KEY ACTIVITY

51 Develop a strategic plan for the development of
marine tourism in consultation with other interested
agencies and organisations.

52 Commence the implementation of the marine tourism
strategy.
PERFORMANCE TARGET

5.1.1 Develop a strategy for the development of marine
tourism in the Foyle and Carlingford Areas, including
the identification of potential partnerships, any proposals
for funding and targets for its implementation, by
June 2004.

5.2.1 Commence the implementation of the marine tourism
strategy by September 2004.

OBJECTIVE

6. To pursue increased efficiency and continuous
improvement in the delivery of services to all customers.

KEY ACTIVITY

6.1 The provision of information and services to
customers developed to a high standard, and tailored
to customer requirements.
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Ongoing — weekly press release, foyleline,
web updated. Website currently being
redesigned.

UPDATE

PFA/DNA/Digital Photography work
commenced.

No primary legislation yet
No primary legislation yet

No primary legislation yet.

No primary legislation yet.

UPDATE

Marine Tourism Study final draft received
following consultation workshops currently
being considered by MT Board/Sub Committee.

To follow adoption of recommendations from
study.

UPDATE



6.2 To maintain and improve human resources within
the Agency, in order to ensure a high level of customer
service.

6.3 Targeting Social Need and Equality Obligations
(section 75 NI Act 1998)

PERFORMANCE TARGET

6.1.1 Respond to all correspondence received within 15 working  Achieved
days.

6.1.2  Provide timely, relevant and accurate information to Ongoing

Sponsoring Departments, FCILC Board, Advisory
Forum and North South Ministerial Council Secretariat
in order to meet specified deadlines.

6.1.3  Regularly review and update material held on the Web site re-design now under construction to be
Agency’s website. completed in early 2005.

6.1.4 Complete the recruitment of the 2nd Advisory Forum Advice from NSMC — 1 year extension to
by April 2004. current Forum IP procedures in process.

6.2.1  Arrange training and development opportunities Ongoing. Training needs workshop held.

including equality training for staff in accordance with
the Agency’s revised Training and Development Plan.

6.3.1 Consider nTSN when planning, delivering and Ongoing
evaluating all activities and review nTSN action plan
by December 2004 and provide timely quarterly
updates to sponsor Departments.

6.3.2  Throughout the year promote and maintain equal Ongoing
opportunities awareness in all activities.
6.3.3 Implement and promote the key recommendations Ongoing
derived from the Agency’s outreach and dissemination
strategy.
6.3.4 Review and update were necessary the Agency’s Risk Updated and register approved by Board
Management Strategy at least on a quarterly basis.
OBJECTIVE UPDATE
7. To ensure the efficient, effective and economic

consumption of resources available to the Agency.

KEY ACTIVITY

7.1 Ensure optimal use of Agency resources, and that all
expenditure complies with relevant guidance.

PERFORMANCE TARGET

7.1.1  Ensure compliance with DAO’s and applicable financial Ongoing
guidance North and South.

7.1.2  Comply with provisions of the Loughs Agency’s FM agreed by Board & signed off by Sponsor
Financial Memorandum. Depts.

7.1.3  Inform Sponsoring Departments of any budgetary Ongoing

changes (deviants with budgetary changes) in a
timely manner.

7.1.4 Review the Agency’s Fraud Policy by September 2004 Revised and incorporated into FM
and implement any amendments.
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Appendix 2

Fisheries Conservation Protection and Management Statistics
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Table 2: Foyle Area Fish Counter Data 1989 — 2004

Year Faughan Sion Mills Glenelly Roe Finn
Owenkillew

1989 8287

1990 6458

1991 4301 7987

1992 7357 7420

1993 8655 17978

1994 7439 19908

1995 10838 7547

1996 13297 8978

1997 3525 7047

1998 3077 9599

1999 * 6514

2000 2551 4690

2001 1518 6250 2742 3265 3311

2002 4288 12991 4543 5459 5768

2003 3097 12129 1908 4086 6461

2004 2,855 10,270 99 1.922 3,778

» Counter out of order for the 1999 season
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Table 3A: Foyle Area Fish Counter Data 2003

Month No. of fish >45cm

Mourne Finn Roe Faughan Owenkillew
January 2
February -11
March 43
April 104
May 127 695 26 5 7
June 6040 1371 114 468 493
July 2837 2962 1604 1182 934
August 212 1 276 430 76
September 1002 809 518 186 216
October 731 396 954 462 182
November 952 183 535 362 1
December 228 -94 59 2 -1
Total 12129 6461 4086 3097 191908

Minus figures early in the year a result of previously spawned salmon kelts migrating back out to sea.
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Table 3B: Foyle Area Fish Counter Data 2004 providers

Month No. of fish >45cm

Mourne Finn Roe Faughan  Owenkillew
January 65 3 -3 -6 0
February 6 -16 -8 0
March -8 77 -1 2
April 81 -16 -15 0
May 217 57 25 36 0
June 3344 1851 51 75 2
July 1908 880 35 903 0
August 1916 455 380 1002 77
September 1534 200 690 575 18
October 596 130 360 153 —
November 473 1520 169 62 —
December 138 5 239 51 —
TOTAL 10,270 3,778 1.922 2,855 99

Minus figures early in the year a result of previously spawned salmon kelts migrating back out to sea.

26



0£86. celLee Sq9rse 16691 67CT €TS 668TE 9¥8TT LT28 Z8gee sjeloL
— — — — — — — — — — bny-g2
— — — — — — — — — — bny-91
L6TV 14°1) 0S¢ T€E6 ve TT 06ST 84S et 114 Bnv-60
SYT. €99¢ €8re 90vT 76 ge 9€6¢ 566 TA%Y) L12 Bnv-20
1ZAA 96¢ 6¢¢E 144 99 44 G9¢e cecl v¢Z6 8G¢E INf-9¢
0ve6 LT.LE QGcy 08T 0€T (514 ov.E LLET qT¢T L8V INC-6T
0G.TT 6€09 €6¢S €566¢ [AR4 LTT e€CLy 69.T ¢0ST 00. IN-¢1
886¢€T 0165 9.5 8¢9¢ ove A0 18179 8¢s¢ €0ST 299 INt-S0
8GIrT 8609 144 qTeE vece ¢6 6199 1474 0LET Evs unf-8¢
6LYTT ve8y 98/9 0TTE 66T g8 9¥Se 67T 8¥6 08¢ ung-1e
— — — — — — — — — — unf-T
0 ‘ON 0 ‘ON 0 ‘ON SBY ‘ON 'SBY "'ON
90y Janry
79 9]A04 Janly 311seIPaY 01 alown)d ©3S 0] 3]1SeIPaY AJUuQ esg Bulpuz
s|e10l s18N yela SEINRIIle SEINRIIle S18N BUQ MEENN

£00¢ saulbu3 [ersswwo) Ag
95119 pue UoW[es Jo sayd1e)d Ao\ ealy ajAo4

Vi algeL

27



09798  S6¢¢cc 0.vTCc 0676 866 TT¥ ¢esle EVT0T 9919 ovee €T S s|eloL
— — — — — — — — — — — — pny-gz
— — — — — — — — — — — — pny-T2
— — — — — — — — — — — — bny-yT
— — — — — — — — — — — — bny-20
T9¥0T  889¢ €eee 86TT 60¢ 8 eevs 6587 L09T 6vS — — Inc-T€
G689 955¢ 0L0¢ 908 09 €c 6587 8evT L8L 68¢ — — Inc-¥¢
88T0T  SWOv 650€ 8eeT S1°14 €Tt L0.S 8ST¢ 9971 9eY — — Int-LT
88.6 8¢ty ¢6LE €187 68 8¢ L69Y 1287 L6TT 1A% €T q Int-0T
8,98 Zrse 188¢ 424" LLT L9 86.L¥ €TLT 918 8T¢ — — Int-€0
9599 vIve Lyve 0,97 €LT cL 8897 659 8ve €Tt — — unr-9¢
14144 26T 266¢ TCET Ge 91 T€CT S6v gee 06 — — unr-6T7
'sBM 'ON Y| "ON 'sHM "ON )Y "ON )Y ‘ON By 'ON
90y JaAIY
79 9]A04 Janly 311seIPaY 01 atown)d ©3S 0] 3]1SeIPaY AlUQO ®ss saulbug
s|elolL 18N Helq S1I9N ¥Qa S1I9N ¥Qa S1IaN ¥uQa paxiq Buipu3 e

00z saulbu3 erosswiwo) Ag
3S[119 pUR UOWIeS JO saydred ApIaspn ealy ajAod

dv s|qeL

28



G6¢ce celce 89.0¥% 9/6¢¢ 2/9ce 06¢€cC LEVTY €96EY ¥S0€ 2165¢€ ¥588¢ SIVLOL
g — — — — — — — — — — : sauIbu3 paxi4
90y Janly

79 9|A04 Jonry

0616 16697 LT6TT 9/16 6€€0T €68/ V17T 99G¢T 98507 09207 9%00T SIBN Yeud
Auo ybno

v €Tg €eot 269 99¢T 809 0¥0T 850/ LVT9 €809 066/ :S1I9N Yla
©ag 79 ybno

V10T 9v8TT 9GG¢¢ 6€.0T 6EELT 16027 L1122 07887 6/80T 99907 16797 :S1I9N Yla
KluQ ®as

9vee Z8¢ce 29¢S 69T¢ 8¢9¢ 26.¢ 6€G. 6055 2€6¢ €Tv8 Levy :S1I9N Yla
¥00¢ €00¢ 200¢ T00C 000¢ 666T 866T L66T 9667 G667 7661 aulbu3

8s|119 79 uowes Jo ('SON) YyaeDd [enuuy

Buiysi4 Jo sse|D

002 — 66T Saulbug BuiysiH [e1913WWO0) JO Sasse|D snoLeA Ag
9s|119) puUe UOWI[eS JO Saydle)d [enuuy ealy ajko4

S 3lqeL

29



S — — — — — — — — — — sau1bu3 paxi4
90y JoAlY

X474 LvE LLZ 0c¢ 0c¢ 78T L2¢ 9 967 ¢6T G97 ’® 9|04 Janiy
: S1I9N Yeuq

Auo ybno

65 €L 62T 1722 TLT 99 S6 ALS) €89 L0S 069 : $18N Wua
©ag 79 ybno

YT vST 68¢ 14’ 8¢¢ €qT 88¢ 8¥¢ 9T eer 102 : $18N Wua
KluQ ®as

eLT 88T 0Te 1T c0¢ LT LLE 06¢ 12 TZY T2¢ : $18N Wla
¥00¢ €00¢ 200z T00C 000¢ 666T 866T L66T 966T G661 661 aulbu3

Buiysi4 Jo sse|D

002 — ¥66T au1buz Bulysi4 [e1o1awWwwo) JO Sse|D Yaes o) as|uo

pue uowjes Jo sayde)d jenuuy abelsay ealy ajAo4

9 9IqeL

30



T — — — — — — — — — — saulbu3 paxi4
— — — T T T T T T T T 80y JoAry
9|A04 Jonry

TS 0g v 4% oy 4% 1514 0s €9 Qg 99 - SI8N Jeud
Kuo ybno

L 9 8 8 8 6 17 17 6 4! 1T - SI8N Huad
©ag 79 ybno

69 LL 8. 9. 9. 6. 6. 9. 08 08 18 - SI8N Huad
AluQ ®as

€T 8T LT 8T 8T 67 0¢ 67 67 0¢ 0¢ - SI8N Huad
¥00¢ €00¢ 200¢ 1002 000z 6667 8667 1667 9667 S66T 66T 90U8dIT JO SSe|D

¥002 — Y66T PaNSS| SaU3dIT [E1943WW0D) JO JaqUINN

L 3lgeL

31



200 — — — — — — — — — — soulbu3 paxi4
90y Janly

8G'¢y 6'TS 2'6¢ Ty 9'T¢ G'6¢ €9¢ 98¢ L'VE 00¢ 6°'9¢ 2 91Ao4 Janry
'S19N Yeua

Auo ybno

8T 971 G'¢ 9¢ A €¢ G¢ 097 T0¢ 697 G'6T S1sN Ha
©ag 79 ybno

GGy 2'9¢ ¥'qS L9y T'€S ¥'qS ¥'€s 6'¢y 9'sg L'6¢ ey :S1I9N Yla
KluQ ®as

T0T €0t 6¢T ¥'6 TTT 8¢t 8.7 ) 9'6 v'ee an S1sN Hua
¥700¢ €00¢ 200¢ T00C 000¢ 6661 866T L66T 966T G667 66T au1bu3

o120 18N ®Baly 3|£04 Jo uonodoid

Buiysi4 Jo sse|D

002 — ¥66T saulbug Buiysi4 Jo sasse|D snOLIEA

Ag uayel yae)d 18N ealy 9j4o04 Jo uoniodoid

8 9lqeL

32



Table 9

Purchases of Rod Caught Salmon
March — April 30th

1991 — 2004
Year No. of Salmon Purchased
1991 149
1992 172
1993 73
1994 483
1995 167
1996 129
1997 195
1998 186
1999 124
2000 170
2001 39
2002 118
2003 85
2004 151
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Table 12
Angling Returns 2003 — 2004

2003 2004
Number of Licences Issued 8,399 9,629
Total Number of Returns Received 1,303 1,348
Returns as a Percentage of all Licences Issued 155 13.99
Number of “Nil” Returns 293 264
Nil Returns as a Percentage of all Returns 3.48 2.74
Number of Salmon and Grilse Reported Caught 1,844 2,285
Average Number of Salmon and Grilse Caught per Return 1.41 1.69
Number of Sea Trout Caught 361 75
Average Number of Sea Trout Caught per Return 0.03 0.06
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TABLE 13A: Distribution of Rod Licences 2003

Place of Season Adult Endorsement 14 Days 3 Days Coarse Adult
Residence & Juvenile & Juvenile
Foyle &

Carlingford Area 3417 858 21 165 4
Rest of NI 380 2619 4 529 114
Rest of ROI 39 95 41 —
TOTAL 3836 3572 26 735 118
England 24 12 48 47 1
Scotland 1 4 9 18 —
Wales 1 3 —
loM — 1 4 1 —
TOTAL 26 19 62 69 1
Spain — — 4 — —
Austria 1 — — — —
Belgium — 1 1 — —
Denmark 1 — — 3 —
France 4 1 2 14 —
Germany — — 1 3 —
Italy — — — — —
Netherlands — 1 — 1 —
Poland — — — — —
Switzerland — — — 11 —
Sweden — — — — —
TOTAL 6 3 8 32 —
Australia 1 — — — —
Canada — — 1 — —
Japan — — — — —
Africa — — — — —
America — — — 1 —
New Zealand — 1 — 1 —
TOTAL 1 1 1 2 —
OVERALL TOTAL 3869 3595 97 838 119
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TABLE 13B: Distribution of Rod Licences 2004

Place of Season Adult Endorsement 14 Days 3 Days Coarse Adult
Residence & Juvenile & Juvenile
Foyle &

Carlingford Area 3627 1361 18 288 94
Rest of NI 593 2605 14 440 3
Rest of ROI 54 168 19 155

TOTAL 647 2773 33 595 4
England 35 19 22 77 —
Scotland 7 4 3 18 —
Wales — — — —
loM 1 — 3 1 —
TOTAL 45 23 28 96 0
Spain — — 1 1 —
Austria 1 — — — —
Belgium — — 3 — —
Denmark 2 1 — — —
France 5 6 3 27 —
Germany — 1 1 13 —
Italy 1 — — — —
Netherlands 2 — 4 5 —
Poland — — — 1 —
Switzerland — — — 4 —
Sweden — — — — —
TOTAL 11 8 12 51 0
Australia — — — — —
Canada — 1 — 1 —
Japan — — — — —
Africa — — — 1 —
America — 1 4 3 —
New Zealand — 2 — — —
TOTAL 0 4 4 5 0
OVERALL TOTAL 4330 4169 95 1035 98

40



Table 14

Number of Draft Consents to Discharge Considered

2002 — 2004

Nature of Effluent 2002 2003 2004
Sewage Treatment 38 27 50
Sandwashing/Quarry 4

Landfill 3
Industrial 1
Fish Farm 0 0 1
Storm Water 11 11 13
Peat Abstraction 0 0 0
Dumping at Sea 0 1 0
Vehicle Wash 2 1 2
Filling Station/Qil Distribution 3 0 1
Food Processing 0 0 0
TOTALS 62 46 73
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Table 15

Number of Consents to Discharge an Effluent Issued

2000 — 2004
Nature of Business 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Sewage Treatment 15 19 35 24 60
Sand washing/Quarry 10
Landfill
Industrial
Fish Farm 0 0 0 1
Storm Water 14 10 10 12 11
\ehicle Wash 2 2 2 1 2
Filling Station/Qil
Distribution 3 1
Food Processing 2 1 0 0 0
TOTALS 52 38 56 48 85
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Table 16

Details of Sampling of Effluents
Londonderry & Carlingford Areas

2002, 2003 & 2004

Nature of
Effluent

Number of
Samples Taken

Number of Samples
found to be satisfactory

Number of Samples
found to be unsatisfactory

2002 2003 2004

2002 2003 2004

2002 2003 2004

Farm Wastes 19 20 14 0 0 0 19 20 14
Sewage 0 0 0
Trade Wastes 0 0 0
Others 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0
Totals 26 26 20 0 0 0 26 26 20
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Table 17

Details of Sampling of Effluents

Moville Area
2002-2004
Nature of Number of Number of Samples Number of Samples
Effluent Samples Taken found to be satisfactory found to be unsatisfactory
2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004
Farm Wastes
Sewage
Trade Wastes 2 0 1 2 0 1
Totals 6 5 8 0 0 0 6 5 8
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Table 18

Water Pollution Control Inspections
& Pollution Incidents

Londonderry
2002-2004
Nature of Number of Inspections Number of Pollution Number of
Effluent made but no incidents warnings issued

Pollution seen

2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004

Agricultural

Wastes 1505 1107 1309 81 73 56 70 59 42
Sewage 182 194 274 18 27 14 5 9 5
Industrial

Trade Wastes 61 79 39 39 16 37 17 12 23
Oil Discharges 15 42 27

Others 9 27 21 2 4 3 2 4

Totals 1772 1449 1670 146 122 114 98 86 77
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Table 19

Water Pollution Control Inspections

Moville Area

2002-2004
Nature of Number of Inspections Number of Number of
Effluent made but no Pollution incidents warnings issued

Pollution seen

2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004

Agricultural

Wastes 394 341 407 14 12 14 14 11 10
Sewage Wastes 30 36 37 18 21 16 9 2 3
Industrial

& Trade 41 32 29 4 2 3 4 0 3

Wastes Discharges

Totals 465 409 473 36 35 33 27 13 16
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TABLE 20A

DETAILS OF PROSECUTIONS 2003

Charges Initiated By

Nature of Offence

Agency Staff

Royal Ulster Constabulary

Garda Siochana

Successful

Unsuccessful

Successful

Unsuccessful

Successful  Unsuccessful

© 00 N o g~ wDdh e

[
o

11.

12.
13.

14.
15.

16.

17.
18.

Angling without a licence
Angling during close time
Angling in prohibited area
Unlawful angling

Possession of gaff or illegal instrument

Snatching offences

Trespass on a Several Fishery
Using a net in a prohibited area
Possession/use of unlawful net

Fishing a net during close or
suspended period

Assaulting/impeding an authorised
person

Unlawful possession of fish

Using a boat/vehicle as an aid to an
offence

Exceeding breaking strain

Permitted deleterious matter to enter
a river

Caused deleterious matter to enter
a river

Salmon dealing offences
Erect/make use of a fixed engine

7
2
1
5

13

1

w w

TOTAL CHARGES

60

30
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TABLE 20B

DETAILS OF PROSECUTIONS 2004

Charges Initiated By

Nature of Offence Agency Staff PSNI Garda Siochana
Successful Unsuccessful  Successful Unsuccessful - Successful Unsuccessful

1. Angling without a licence — 2 — — — —
2. Angling during close time 2 2 — — — —
3. Angling in prohibited area 3 — — — — —
4. Unlawful angling 3 2 — — — —
5. Possession of gaff or illegal instrument — — — — — — —
6.  Snatching offences — — — — — —
7. Trespass on a Several Fishery — — — — — —
8. Using a net in a prohibited area 1 3 — — — —
9.  Possession/use of unlawful net 1 13 — — — —
10. Fishing a net during close or

suspended period 2 2 — — — —
11. Assaulting/impeding an authorised

person — — — —
12.  Unlawful possession of fish 2 — — — —
13. Using a boat/vehicle as an aid to an

offence 5 — — — — —
14. Exceeding breaking strain — — — — — —
15. Permitted deleterious matter to enter

a river — 3 — — — —
16. Caused deleterious matter to enter

a river 3 — — — — —
17.  Salmon dealing offences — — — — — —
18. Erect/make use of a fixed engine 4 — — — — —
19. Failure to provide name/false details — — — — —
TOTAL CHARGES 38 29 — — — —
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TABLE 21A

2003 Seizures

Engines Nets Rods & Reels Boats  Dinghies Gaffs Fish Other
FCILC 165 10 22 0 0 152 6
PSNI 2 0 0 0
Garda 0 0 0 0
Angling Clubs 52 2 0 0
TOTALS 219 10 24 2 0 160 6
TABLE 21B
2004 Seizures
Engines Nets Landing Rods & Boats Dinghies Gaffs Fish Other Bait
net Reels

FCILC 145 2 12 14 0 0 129 6 4
PSNI 0 0 0 0 0 0
Garda 0 0 0 0 0 0
Angling Clubs 44 0 1 0 1 0
TOTALS 189 2 16 16 1 0 137 7 4
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Table 22A

Rod Licences

2003 — 2004

2003 2003 2004 2004

Description No. of Licence No. of Licence
Licences Duty Licences Duty

Season 2,529 £54,373.50 2,781 £41,715
Adult Coarse 109 £872 85 £1,275
Juvenile 1,340 £2,680 1,549 £3,098
Juvenile Coarse 10 £20 13 £26
Endorsement 3,595 £3,595 4,169 £4,169
Fourteen-Day 97 £1,018.50 95 £712.50
3 Day 838 £4,190 1,035 £3,622.50
TOTALS 8,518 £66,749 9,727 £54,618
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Table 23

Angling Permits 2003 — 2004

2003 2003 2004 2004
Type of Permit No. £ No. £
River Foyle 14 £280 12 £240
River Foyle Juvenile 11 £110 4 £40
River Finn 129 £2,580 102 £2,040
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Table 24

Net Licences 2003 — 2004

2003 2004
Description No. of £ £ No. of £ £
of Licences Licence Licence Licences Licence Licence
Licence Sold Fee Duty Paid Sold Fee Duly Paid

Bag — — — — —
Draft (River Foyle) 50 163 8,150 51 168 8,568
Draft (Fixed) — — — 1 342 342
Draft (River Roe) — — — — — —
Draft (Culdaff Estuary) — — — — — —
Drift (Lough Foyle) 6 230 1,380 7 237 1,659
Drift (Lough & Sea) 77 251 19,327 69 259 17,871
Drift (Sea) 18 230 4,140 13 237 3,081
TOTALS 151 32,997 140 31,521
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Table 25

Salmon Dealers Licences 2003 — 2004

Residence of Dealer

No. of Licences Issued

No. of Licences Issued

2003 2004
Republic Of Ireland 8 8
Northern Ireland 20 17
TOTALS 28 25
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GNIOMHAIREACHT NA LOCHANNA
TUARASCAIL BHLIANTUIL
Ag cuimsit na Tréimhse 6 1 Eanair 2003 go 31 Nollaig 2004
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GNIOMHAIREACHT NA LOCHANNA

Tuarascail Bhliantuil
agus Cuntals

don tréimhse déar chrioch 31 Nollaig 2003 agus 31 Nollaig 2004
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1. REAMHRA AN CHATHAOIRLIGH

Ta luchair orm an Tuarascéil Bhliantil do 2003 agus 2004, ina leagtar amach priomhéachtai na heagraiochta agus
dushlain a bhi os ar gcoinne le linn na bliana, a chur i lathair.

T4 mé an-bhuioch as tiomantas fhoireann Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna agus as an tacaiocht a thug comhaltai an
Bhoird, a&r Ranna Coimirciochta, an Roinn Cumarsaidi, Muiri agus Acmhainni Néadurtha, an Roinn Talmhaiochta agus
Forbartha Tuaithe; an Chomhairle Aireachta Thuaidh/Theas, na Ranna Airgeadais agus a bhfeidhmeannaigh.

Is iomai dushlan a bhi againn, ach, os a choinne sin, is iomai éacht a rinne muid fosta. Thug an saineolas a fuair muid
mar oidhreacht 6 Choimisitn lascaigh an Fheabhail bonn laidir ddinn le togail air don todhchai agus lenar n-aidhm a
bhaint amach:

“tairbhi inbhuanaithe, séisialta, geilleagracha agus comhshaoil a sholathar tri chaomhnd, bhainistid, chotht agus fhorbairt
¢ifeachtach acmhainni iascaigh agus muiri Cheantair an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne le leas gach duine.”

Peter Savage
Cathaoirleach
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2. FORBHREATHNU AN PHRIOMHFHEIDHMEANNAIGH

Le linn tréimhse na tuarascala seo lean an obair ar na dréachtbhilli leis an reachtaiocht phriomhuil facina bhfeidhmionn
Gniomhaireacht Lochanna Choimisiin an Fheabhail, Chairlinne agus Shoilse na hEireann. D’0sdid na Ranna
Coimirciochta acmhainni breise san obair seo agus rinneadh cuid mhor dul chun cinn.

Ag ullmha d’acht( na reachtaiochta seo di, chriochnaigh an Ghniomhaireacht a dréachtPhlean Forfheidhmithe do
rialichan agus cheadnu sliogéisc agus dobharshaothraithe agus cuirfear tus le comhairliichan poibli air seo go luath sa
bhliain 2005.

Bhi seach-chonairi na mbradan a taifeadadh le linn na tréimhse ar fheabhas i 2003 ach bhi titim beag ann i 2004. Ba
chuis seach-chonairi 2003 le sineadh seachtaine a chur leis an iascach trachtala, ach niorbh amhlaidh do 2004 €. Tharla
morshlad ar éisc ar Abhainn na Sruthaile ar an Omaigh i 2004 nuair a maraiodh corradh le 700 bradan. D4 bharr seo,
druideadh an ceantar a bhi buailte leis d’iascaireacht slaite clig seachtaini luath, i ndiaidh comhairlitichain le hiascairi
slaite aitiula agus uinéiri iascaigh, leis an stoc poraithe a bhi fagtha a chaomhnu.

Lean an obair ar éagsulacht ghéiniteach stoic bhradain Cheantar an Fheabhail, agus foilseofar tuarascail iomlan ar an obair
cheannrédaiochta seo i 2005. Faomhadh forbairt leaninach an chérais bhainistit bradan ag an Bhord agus ag na Ranna
Coimirciochta sa mhéid is gur thionscain an Ghniomhaireacht, i gcomhphéirtiocht leis an Instititid Mhuiri, an Institidid
Naisiinta um Thaighde Talmhaiochta (An Fhrainc), Ollscoil Ghlascha agus RTFT forbairt Eiseamlair Flairse
Réamhiascach agus criochndfar an obair seo i 2008.

Chuir “Riverwatch,” ionad léirmhinithe na Gniomhaireachta, failte roimh an 10,0000 cuairteoir le linn tréimhse na
tuarascéala agus ba chuis na clair fhor-rochtana mar “sruthan a ghlacadh i gciram” agus “gorlann sa tseomra ranga” le spéis
mhor ar fud na ndobharcheantar.

Ba rathuil freagrachtai cothula na Gniomhaireachta fosta, go héirithe an chéad Aonach lascaireachta Slaite i Mi Mhérta
2004 a tharraing corradh le 3,000 cuairteoir agus féile Flaidireachta agus lascaireacht Baoite Saile Chairlinne, i measc
ocaidi eile.

Creidim go bhfuil an Ghniomhaireacht ag dul chun cinn i gcdnai i dtaca lena freagrachtai a chomhlionadh de, agus ba
maith liom mo bhuiochas don Bhord as a dtacaiocht agus a dtreoir, d'fhoireann na Gniomhaireachta as a dtiomantas agus
dar Ranna Coimirciochta agus do Runaiocht na CATT as a gcuidil agus a dtacaiocht leantach d’obair na
Gniombhaireachta, a chur ar thaifead.

RJ Derick Anderson
Priomhfheidhmeannach
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3. RAITEAS BUNCHUSPORA
Is aidhm do Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna tairbhi inbhuanaithe, soisialta, geilleagracha agus comhshaoil a sholthar tri
chaomhnu, bhainistit, chotht agus fhorbairt éifeachtach acmhainni iascaigh agus muiri Cheantair an Fheabhail agus
Chairlinne.
4. CUSPOIRI
Is iad priomhchuspo6iri na Gniomhaireachta i gCeantair an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne:-

e lascaigh bhradain agus intire Cheantair an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne a chaomhnu agus a chosaint;

lascaigh bhradain agus intire Cheantair an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne a bhainistit agus a fhorbairt;
e Forbairt Loch Feabhail agus Loch Cairlinne a chotht mar gheall ar thrachtail agus aineas;
« Dobharshaothru a cheadunu agus a fhorbairt;
e Muirthuraséireacht a fhorbairt;
Eifeachtacht mhéadaithe agus feabhst leantnach a éileamh i solathar seirbhisi do gach custaiméir;
«  Usaid éifeachtuil, éifeachtach, gheilleagrach acmhainni ata ar fail don Ghniomhaireacht a chinnti.
Féach aguisin 1 do thairgeacht os coinne spriocanna.

5. COMHALTAS AN BHOIRD 2003/2004

An tUas Peter Savage Cathaoirleach

An Tiarna Cooke of Islandreagh Leaschathaoirleach

An tUas Jack Allen Ms Siobhan Logue

An tUas Keith Anderson * An tUas Joseph Martin

An tUas Dick Blakiston-Houston Jacqui Inion McConville
An tUas Francis Feely An tUas Tarlach O’Crosain
An Dr Patrick Griffin An tUas Andrew Ward

* d’éirigh as ar 170 Samhain 2004 mar gheall ar thiomantais oibre
Thainig an Bord i gceann a chéile ar shé 6céid le linn 2003, mar a leanas:

« 50 Marta 2003 Ostan Theach Bhaile Mhic Scanlain, Dan Dealgan

e 210 Bealtaine 2003 Ceanncheathrii na Gniomhaireachta, Préachan

e 90 lail 2003 Ceanncheathrii na Gniomhaireachta, Préachan

e 30 Meén Fomhair 2003 Ceanncheathri na Gniomhaireachta, Préachan
e 220 Deireadh Fémhair 2003 lonad Oidhreachta na Triondide Naofa, Cairlinn

e 100 Nollaig 2003 Ceanncheathrii na Gniomhaireachta, Préachan

Thainig an Bord i gceann a chéile ar chiig dcéid le linn 2004, mar a leanas:

e 240 Mérta 2004 Ceanncheathr(i na Gniomhaireachta, Préachan

e 190 Bealtaine 2004 Ostan na Cathrach, Ard Macha

e 150 Meén Foémhair 2004 Ostan Theach Bhaile Mhic Scanlain, Dan Dealgan
e 170 Samhain 2004 Ceanncheathr( na Gniomhaireachta, Préachan
15 Nollaig 2004 Ostan na Cathrach, Ard Macha
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Iniuchadh Airgeadais Sliogéisc lascaigh Bhradain Muirthurasoireacht

agus Pearsanra agus Intire

Peter Savage Joseph Martin Dick Blakiston-Houston Francis Feely

Jack Allen Patrick Griffin Tarlach O’Crosain Andrew Ward

Siobhan Logue Siobhan Logue Andrew Ward Lord Cooke of Islandreagh
Patrick Griffin Tarlach O’Crosain Francis Feely Keith Anderson

6. FORAM COMHAIRLEACH CHEANTAIR AN FHEABHAIL AGUS CHAIRLINNE

Ag a chéad chruinniu, d’iarr an earndil CATT — CFCSE ar an Bhord moltai a thabhairt chun tosaigh le meicniochtai
combhairlitchain a bhunu le grapai leasmhara abhartha i gCeantair an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne. Ina dhiaidh sin thoiligh
an CATT le buni Fhéram Combhairleach Cheantair an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne tri phrdiseas comhairlitchain a bhi
neamhspléach 6n Ghniomhaireacht le comhairle a thabhairt don Ghniomhaireacht maidir lena priomhchuspoiri
straitéiseacha:-

e Caomhnu agus Cosaint
e Forbairt Dobharshaothraithe
« Forbairt iascaigh Intire
e Forbairt Muirthuraséireachta
«  Seirbhis do Chustaiméiri
Le linn tréimhse na tuarascala seo tion6ladh na cruinnithe seo a leanas den Fhéram:

Eanair 2003: D’éirigh An tUas Brian McDermott as an chathaoirleacht agus d’admhaigh an Féram a thiomantas don
fhéram reatha agus d’Fhéram Combhairleach Cheantar an Fheabhail a thainig roimhe araon. Toghadh An tUas Pat
McLaughlin mar chathaoileach, An tUas Eamon Mullan mar leaschathaoirleach agus An tUas Gary Neill mar ranai.

Mérta 2003: Ghlac an Féram le buan-orduithe nua agus phléigh siad an Cod Cleachtais Sliogéisc, Initichadh Aineasa
agus Foilliochta ata bunaithe ar lascaigh agus an Staidéar MuirthurasGireachta ata molta fosta.

Meitheamh 2003: Tugadh cur i lathair don Fhéram ar Threoir Chreat Uisce an AE agus an tionchar ar réimsi freagrachta
na Gniomhaireachta.

Mean FOmhair 2003: Phléigh an Féram na torthai leictri-iascaireachta agus seach-chonairi na mbradan don tséasur;
phléigh siad chomh maith na dréachtrialachain mholta ar chaomhnu agus chosaint.

Samhain 2003: Fuair an Foram cur i lathair ar an obair DNA — Géineolaiochta at4 & déanamh i gcomhphairtiocht le
OBBF agus ar mholtai na Gniomhaireachta d’Fhorbairt iascaireachta slaite i gceantair an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne fosta.

Aibrean 2004: | measc rudai eile, pléadh an Staidéar Muirthurasdireachta agus dul chun cinn chun data ar dhréachtBhille
lascaigh an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne.
7. FOIREANN

Earcajocht

Lean an Foras d'earcu a lion iomlan foirne buaine. T4 athbhreithnit & dhéanamh ar struchtdr eagruchain na
Gniomhaireachta faoi lathair agus td na moltai a mbreithnit ag na Ranna Coimirciochta agus na Ranna Airgeadais.
Fograiodh foluntais go forleathan ar fud oiledn na hEireann agus cuireadh spéis mhor iontu. Ba d’ardchaighdean na
hiarratais agus fuarthas ¢ réimse leathan daoine iad maidir le hinscne agus culra pobail agus b’as an Tuaisceart agus as an
Deisceart araon na hiarrthéiri. Lionadh na poist seo a leanas le linn 2003 agus 2004:

» Bainisteoir lascaireachta Slaite

e OF1 (Airgeadais)

e Leasliagoir

« Oifigigh agus Cuntéir Riarachain
e Feighlithe Abhann

Scoir
Nior scoir duine ar bith le linn tréimhse na tuarascala seo.
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8. FORBAIRT FOIRNE

Lean an Ghniomhaireacht d’infheistii in oilitint agus i bhforbairt a foirne le linn tréimhse na tuarascala seo agus
chuimsigh an clar oilina Teagascoir Inneallbhaid, Loingseoireacht Chdsta, Marthanas Mara, Garchabhair ar Bord
Loinge agus bhi réimse eile cursai agus seiminedir fheasachta ann, mar shampla Slainte agus Sébhéilteacht, Teastas i
gCleachtas Bainistiochta agus Bainistit Riosca.

Rinneadh anailis iomlan ar riachtanais oilitna le linn 2004 agus is ran don Ghniomhaireacht pleananna forbartha
pearsanta a thabhairt isteach i 2005.

9. TEICNEOLAIOCHT EOLAIS

Tionscnaiodh athdhearadh laithrean gréasain na Gniomhaireachta (www.loughs-agency.org ) mar chuid de thiomantas
na Gniomhaireachta do sholathar tairsi Usaidi nua-aimseartha doibh sitd atd ag iarraidh eolais ar iascaireacht slaite,
mhuirthuraséireacht agus dhobharshaothrtd i gCeantair an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne.

Chuir muid roinnt beart i bhfeidhm le slandail agus cumarsaidi, le cois bailidl agus aistrit sonrai, a fheabhst. Chuimsigh
seo seirbhis leathanbhanda a thabhairt isteach inar gceanncheathru, agus ta ran againn seo a thabhairt isteach de réir a
chéile i ngach laithrean airimh éisc de réir mar a bheas an tseirbhis a cur ar fail nios forleithne, teicneolaiocht chianfhisedin
digitigh, a Usaidtear i ndearbhd go bhfuil cérais airimh éisc baili, a phiol6tu; cuireadh cdras cultacai seachtracha in ait
chomh maith.

10. IONAD OIDEACHAIS AGUS LEIRMHINITHE “RIVERWATCH”

D’aithin Bord Turasoireachta Thuaisceart Eireann lonad Léirmhinithe “Riverwatch” mar éit ar diol spéise do thurasoiri
i i lar 2003 agus tri iarrachtai margaiochta teoranta thainig 4660 cuairteoir isteach. Bunaiodh ceangail le scoileanna agus
le heagraiochtai pobail tri scéimeanna piol6tacha for-rochtana mar ghlanadh aibhneacha, trathnonta staire, turais
iascaireachta, etc. Forbraiodh naisc le haiteanna agus le nithe eile aitidla ar diol spéise do thuraséiri iad agus le
heagraiochtai aitiula mar Oifig Chuairteoiri agus Chomhdhala Dhoire agus larsmalann an Chuain, lonad Cuairteoiri Du
Pont agus Chursai Farraige Toucan One le heispéireas chuairteoiri a leathn( agus a fheabhsu.

Le linn 2004, mar gheall ar mhargaiocht agus chothi méadaithe, thainig 6203 cuairteoir le hamharc ar an ionad no le
bheith pdirteach i gclair oideachais fhor-rochtana. Leathnaiodh an clar for-rochtana le Gorlann sa tSeomra Ranga,
Scaoileadh Gilidini, Comharthai Rithabhachtacha, Féilte lascaireachta, Liniocht Mhor, Féile Eolaiochta agus
tionscnaimh eile mhionscéla a chuimsiu. Cuireann na tionscadail fhor-rochtana leis na priomhtheachtaireachtai in ionad
na gcuairteoiri agus le hobair na Gniomhaireachta. Thaitin a gcuid eispéireas go mor le gach rannphairti agus ta raitis
mar seo a leanas i leabhar na gcuairteoiri:

“Spreaguil 6 thaobh smaoinimh, oideachasuil, aiseanna iontacha.”

“Cuir i lathair ar doigh agus an-fhaisnéiseach. lontas orm le pléisiar!”

“Thaitin an turas seo go mor le daltai agus muinteoiri araon. B'fhii go mor é,” — Ardscoil Naomh Peadair.

“Bhi 14 iontach againn agus rinne muid cuid mhor oibre leantai. Bheadh Itchdir as cuimse orainn an scaoileadh a dhéanamh
aris an bhliain seo chugainn.” — Bunscoil Broadbridge.

11. BAINISTIU AGUS FORBAIRT IASCAIGH

11.1 Bainistiu agus Forbairt Bradan

Culra

In Oirthuaisceart an Atlantaigh is sainiGil an coras ata i bhfeidhm do bhradain i nDobharcheantar an Fheabhail.
Bhunaigh Coimisiin lascaigh an Fheabhail é i ndiaidh Tuarascéla PF Elson agus ALW Tuomi “lascaigh an Fheabhail,
Bonn Nua do Bhainistiu Réastinach” a foilsiodh i 1975. Rinneadh mionchoigeart( ar an straitéis san idirlinn agus Uséid
4 baint as an teicneolaiocht is nua-aimseartha agus as an eolas eolaiochta is déanai, agus athbhreithnit iomlan ar
spriocanna éalaithe ag Combhairleoiri Eolaiochta na Gniomhaireachta i 1997 san aireamh. Le tuilleadh mionsonrai a fhail
ar na straitéisi seo agus ar an eolas a Usdideann an Ghniomhaireacht le hiascaigh a bhainistia, féach, le do thoil,
Tuarascalacha Bliantula roimhe seo. Ina dhiaidh seo, tugtar tuairisc ghairid chun data ar an eolas a bailiodh i 2003 agus
2004.
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Pointi Cuntais

Baisceanna Trachtala

Bhi isliti ar bhaisceanna foriomlana trachtala do 2003 ar an bhliain roimhe (2002) cé gurbh airde iad na an figiar do
2001. Chuaigh go leor bradan thar an éiritheoir ar an Mhorn ag Muileann an tSidin le sineadh seachtaine a chur leis an
tséasur iascaireachta trachtala. Ba mhealltach séasur 2004 do shrutheangacha cé go raibh baisceanna eangacha tarraingthe
thart faoin mhean. T4 mionsonrai na mbaisceanna i dtablai 4, 5 agus 6 in Aguisin 2.

Aliritheoiri Eisc

D’oibrigh gach &iritheoir go sasuil i 2003 agus nior tuairisciodh mérfhadhb ar bith. Bhi seach-chonair 2004 thar na
hairitheoiri ar an Mhorn measartha maith cé go raibh lion an éisc a chuaigh thar na hairitheoiri ar an Fhinn agus ar an
RO ni b'isle na mar a bhi i mblianta roimhe seo agus bhi an Fhochaine tart faoin mheéan. Ba i an Fhinn an t-aon abhainn
i gceantar an Fheabhail nar chomhlion a teorainneacha caomhnaithe agus a spriocanna bainistithe i 2004; leanfaidh an
Ghniomhaireacht de mhonatéireacht a dhéanamh ar an chas seo. Bhi deacrachtai leantnacha teicnitla ag baint le

haithritheoir Abhainn Coilleadh le linn na bliana agus, mar sin de, ta an cuntas 6n laithrean seo neamhiomlan. Is féidir
na torthai seo a fhéil i dTéblai 2 agus 3 in Aguisin 2.

lascaireacht Slaite

Bhi ceatadan na n-iascairi slaite, 15%, a thug torthai a leabhar tuairisce i 2003 ni b'isle na figiar 2002, cé go bhfuil an
figidr seo i bhfad nios airde nd mar a bhi sa ré réamhchlibedla éisc. | 2004 mhéadaigh ceatadan na dtorthai a tuairisciodh
go 21% agus bhi lion coigeartaithe na mbradan a maraiodh beagnach mar a gcéanna le 2003, cé go raibh seo thios go
mor ar shéastr 2002. Coigeartaiodh an bhaisc a tuairisciodh le torthai nar tuairisciodh a chur san &ireamh agus
taispeantar na figidiri seo i dTéblai 10, 11 agus 12 in Aguisin 2.

Cuntais Log Sceite

Is rithdbhachtach dalai na haimsire agus loig sceite & gcuntas no is fiordheacair iad a aimsid in uisce an-mhoirtidil agus,
lena chois sin, is féidir le sruthanna arda uisce na cairn ghairbhéil, a chruthaitear nuair até loig sceite & ndéanambh, a leacu;
nuair a bhionn dalai nios soiléire uisce aris ann, mar sin de, ni léir go raibh an log sceite riamh ann. Ba bhliain mhaith
2003, afach, i dtaca le dalai uisce de, agus creidtear go bhfuarthas cuntas measartha beacht.

Leictri-iascaireacht

I 2003 rinneadh suirbhé leathchainniochtuil ar 396 laithrean i gceantar an Fheabhail tri leictri-iascaireacht. Ar an mhean
fhoriomlan bhi 10 gilidin bric agus 19 gilidin bradain ag gach laithrean.

I 2004 iascadh go leathchainniuil 484 laithrean go leictreach agus ar an mhean bhi 6 gilidin bric agus 17 gilidin bradain
ag gach laithrean. Rinneadh suirbhé ar 72 laithrean i gceantar Chairlinne agus ar 412 laithrean i gceantar an Fheabhail.
Taobh istigh de cheantar an Fheabhail rinneadh suirbhé ar 150 laithrean sa réigitn thoir ( An R6, Burndennett agus an
Fhochaine), 110 laithrean sa réigiun theas (An tSruthail, An Chamabhainn, Abhainn Droim Ratha agus an Fairywater),
43 laithrean sa réigian thiar (An Fhinn, an Daoil agus Abhainn Chuil Damhcha) agus 109 laithrean sa réigian lair (an
Mhorn, Abhainn na Deirge agus Abhainn Coilleadh).

T4 tuilleadh mionsonrai ar fail sa Tuarascail Stadais atd ar fail 6n Ghniomhaireacht n6 ar ar laithrean gréasain
www.loughs-agency.org

Clibeail Sreinge Codaithe (CSC)

Leanadh den chlar seo i 2003 ar an Fhinn agus ar an Fhochaine agus tabhartar faoi ar roinnt fathanna, agus bailiu sonrai
bitheolaiochta ar sheach-chonair na ngéiteog agus iosmheastachain ar ratai marthanais mhuiri san aireamh. T4 achoimre
i dTébla 1 ar lion na ngéiteog a clibedladh ag Killygordan ar an Fhinn agus ar chuid de na tréithe bitheolaiocha.
Aibhsionn Téabla 2 na sonrai athghabhala.

Sainscagann an InstitiGiid Mhuiri na sonrai athghabhala 6n chlér clibeéla. Bionn idirlinn 2 bhliain ann 6 chlibeéltar éisc
i mbliain ar bith go raibh na sonrai athghabhéla ar fail.

Baintear an eite shaille de gach iasc a mhicriclibealtar (eite bheag idir eite an droma agus an ruball). M& mharaionn iascaire
ar bith bradan né maighrean gan an eite seo, ioctar deontas, ach cloigeann an éisc a chur chuig Ceanncheathrd
Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna, Préachan, an ait agus an data ar maraiodh an t-iasc, an fad, an meéachan agus eiseamlair
lainne.
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Tébla 1. Lion na ngéiteog a clibedladh ar an Fhinn 2002-2004

Bliain Lion na nGéiteog Meénaois Meanfhad Meadnmheéachan

a Clibealadh (cm) (9)
2002 690 2+ 12.5 19.8
2003 2252 2+ 12.7 20.2
2004 773 2+ 12.73 20.31

Tabla 2. Sonrai athghabhala 6 chlar mhicriclibeil na Finne. Notail an mhoill i solathar sonrai mar gheall ar an
am a chaitear san fharraige agus an t-am até riachtanach le sonrai a sainscagadh.

Bliain a Clibeéladh Bliain a Athghabhadh Lion na n-lasc Laithrean
a Athghabhadh Athghabhala
2002 2003 10 Ddn na nGall, ceantar an

Fheabhail, An Césta
Thuaidh, Maigh Eo, Gaillimh
2004 1 Abhainn na Finne
2003 2004 25 Dun na nGall, ceantar an

Fheabhail, Maigh Eo,
Ciarrai, Abhainn na Finne

2005 (Nil sonrai ar (Nil sonrai ar (Nil sonrai ar bith ar fail
bith ar fail go foill) bith ar fail go foill) go faill)

Cheannaigh an Ghniombhaireacht treallamh CSC tri Clar Tamhais Visce Interreg llla le husaid i gceantair an Fheabhail
agus Chairlinne. Cuirfidh seo ar chumas na Gniomhaireachta an clar a leathnu sna blianta romhainn.

Oibreacha Insruthain

I ndiaidh an chlair ghéinitigh ar na mallaibh a d’aibhsigh neamhéifeacht chlar roimhe seo le stoc a chur ar an R0, ghabh
an Ghniomhaireacht sraith tionscnamh feabhstchain insruthain de laimh i 2004. Chuimsigh siad seo, i ndobharcheantar
na Camabhann, obair i Sruthan Ghleann Chorai agus in Abhainn Chloch na Finne chomh maith le baic dhothrasnaithe
ag iasc a bhaint ar shidl ar an Cranny Burn ar an Omaigh. Chuimsigh scéimeanna eile feabhsaithe gnathdg obair ar an
Fhochaine agus ar an R6. Dréachtadh iad seo i gcomhairle leis an Dr. Martin O’Grady 6n Phriomh-Bhord lascaigh agus
tathar ag stil go mbeidh siad ina gcuidid leis na seach-chonairi bradan agus breac ar ais chun an Fheabhail sna blianta
ata le teacht a chaomhnu agus a fheabhsu.

Caomhnu

Lean an clar géiniteach 6 2003 i leith agus tuairisciodh € i ndeireadh na bliana 2004. T4 athbhreithnii comhchéime a
dhéanamh ar an tuarascail faoi lathair agus eiseofar tuarascail thoilsithe i 2005 a bheas ar fail ar laithrean gréasain na
Gniomhaireachta ag www.loughs-agency.org

11.2 Bainistit agus Forbairt Gharbhiascaigh

Clulra

Téa tabhacht ar leith le garbhiascaireacht i gceantar Chairlinne. Lean an Ghniomhaireacht d’oibrit le Comhairle Ceantair
an l0ir agus Mhuirn agus le pairtithe leasmhara san earnail turaséireachta leis an chanail a fhorbairt agus a chothd. Ta
acmhainn shuntasach forbartha i gCeantar an Fheabhail chomh maith agus in aiteanna eile i gCeantar Chairlinne. Ta na
hiascaigh ar Lochanna Chuirt an Bhartin an-tdbhachtach cheana féin, mar atd Abhainn na Sruthaile ag a cumar le
hAbhainn Fairywater.

11.3 Bainistit agus Forbairt Sliogéisc

Cllra

Leanadh den chlar seachtainidil monatdireachta cladaigh i Loch Feabhail i rith 2003 agus 2004 agus cuireadh laithredin
bhreise thagartha leis an liosta samplala le cumhdach spasuil nios m6 den Loch a bhaint amach. Rinneadh monatdireacht
6 bhaid 6 am go céile i Loch Cairlinne agus i Loch Feabhail araon le comértas a dhéanamh leis na samplai 6n chladach.
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Bainfear Usaid as na sonrai bonnline até & dtaifeadadh le linn na n-6céidi samplala seo le luaineacht in athruithe éitidla
comhshaoil a mheasand; is féidir ansin na luachanna seo a chrostagairt do thréimhsi siolraithe agus ratai fais sliogéisc sna
Lochanna.

Chomh maith leis na taifid chaighdedin uisce thuas thoisigh an Ghniomhaireacht ar uisce agus sliogéisc sa Loch a
shamplail do chléir shamplala reachtula a fheidhmionn RTFT agus an Institidid Mhuiri. Chuimsigh seo samplai uisce a
ghlacadh le flairse an fhiteaplanctéin a mheas agus blais nimhiula algacha a aithint. Glactar na samplai uisce do na clair
seo 0 laithredin i Loch Feabhail agus i Loch Cairlinne gach seachtain agus cuirtear ar aghaidh chuig na hudarais dbhartha
iad le haghaidh scrudaithe. Glacadh samplai de dhidilicini 6 na Lochanna fosta ar bhonn miosuil agus cuireadh ar
aghaidh chuig na ranna dbhartha iad le haicmid 6 thaobh comhchruinnithe nimhidla algacha.

Rinne an Tionscnamh Dobharshaothraithe, BIM agus Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna comhshuirbhé sliogéisc ar Loch
Feabhail i 2003 agus aris i 2004 le linn Mhi na Bealtaine agus Mhi Lunasa. Chuimsigh an suirbhé seo dreidireacht an
Locha agus rinneadh taifid de fhldirse agus dhaileadh diuilicini, oisri agus a gcreachadéiri. Tugadh réamh-achoimre ar an
tsuirbhé do na hiascairi i Mean Fdmhair 2004 ag léiri méadd maith ar an iascach oisri duchasacha sna beirtreacha
thuaidh; in aiteanna eile, afach, bhi oisri go mor nios 14 na i mblianta roimhe seo ach nior measadh go raibh dls nios
isle ann ar chuid mhor de na beirtreacha.

| Mi na Bealtaine 2003, thiondil an Ghniomhaireacht ceardlann shliogéisc in Ostan Chdirt na Canala, 1ar Cinn Tra. “Ag
Bainistit Sliogéisc d’'Inbhuaine” a ba teideal don cheardlann. Tharraing an cheardlann seo cainteoiri 6n RA, ¢ Eirinn, én
Ollainn agus 6 Mheiriced. Thug na cainteoiri seo cuntas ar a dtaithi féin agus iad ag iarraidh iascaigh shliogéisc a
bhainistit i modh inbhuanaithe ina dtiortha féin agus thug siad moéran abhair smaointe do thoscairi na ceardlainne i dtaca
le bainistit cui acmhainni Loch Feabhail agus Loch Cairlinne de. T4 tuarascéil ar an cheardlann seo ar fail ar laithrean
gréasain na Gniomhaireachta ag www.loughs-agency.org ,

Criochnaiodh trialacha a bhain Gsaid as treallamh Groundmaster RoxAnn fosta go luath sa bhliain 2003. Ceadaionn an
treallamh seo léarscail mhionsonraithe de ghrinneall na farraige a chruthd tri shuirbhéireacht fhuaime ar an tsubstrait 6
ardan baid. Ar an drochuair is féidir le dalai aimsire dul i bhfeidhm ar iontaofacht thorthai an chorais seo agus ta sé ag
braith ar aimsir chidin le feidhmid go cruinn. Niorbh'fthéidir seo a dhéanamh i gconai i rith 2003 agus ba toisc fosta
infhaighteacht bad agus oibrithe le linn shéasur gnéthach na mbradan. Forbraiodh na trialacha a thuilleadh i 2004 agus
tionscnaiodh suirbhé ar an Loch istigh i Mi Dheireadh Fomhair. D’oibrigh an suirbhé ar choras eangai 400m agus
bailiodh sonrai RoxAnn ¢ traschriosanna domhanleithid anoir-siar agus aniar-soir agus spas 400m eatarthu. D’éirigh leis
an tsuirbhé cuid mhér sonrai ar chinealacha substraite a bhi le fail sa Loch istigh a bhailid ach chuir an aimsir isteach ar
an iarracht i dtreo dheireadh 2004, rud a d’fhag nach raibh cuid mhér de shonrai RoxAnn oiriinach do Iéirmhinit mar
gheall ar spiceail.

Bhi na Cérais Mhonatdireachta Comhshaoil, a ceannaiodh i 2002, & bhforbairt ag tas 2003 agus seoladh an chéad bhulla
sa choras go mall i 2003. Ceadaionn na corais seo taifid in situ, leanunacha, uathoibriocha de theocht, ocsaigin
thuaslagtha, dhoimhneacht agus fhluaraiseacht chloraifille a dhéanamh. T4 teicneolaiocht phaitinnithe ghlanta ag na
corais seo le ligint doibh a bheith faoi uisce muiri ar feadh tréimhsi fada gan laghdu ar bith ar chruinneas torthai le
himeacht aimsire. Seoladh an chéad cheann de na corais seo ag Black Braes i Loch Feabhail agus tathar ag sdil go
solathréidh an cdras seo eolas ardchruinnis ar chaighdean an uisce do shliogéisc san Fheabhail go ceann blianta fada. Ta
na torthai tosaigh maith agus ta an coras ag solathar taifead mionsonraithe de theocht agus luaineacht i gcléraifill-a sa
Loch istigh. T4 na sonrai 6n chéras monatoireachta seo ar fail ar line le leas Usaideoiri priobhaideacha agus oideachasula.
Ta mionchoigeartuithe & ndéanamh in inathraitheacht na sonrai agus tathar ag suil go gcuirfear Bulla Chairlinne in Usaid
go luath sa bhliain 2004.

I rith 2004 seicealadh agus calabraiodh an Céras Monatdireachta Comhshaoil até in Gsaid ag Black Braes gach mi. Ta an
coras ag feidhmid go maith agus ta na sonrai & mionchoigeartt sula gcuirtear ar fail do na pairtithe leasmhara iad.
Ceadaionn na corais seo taifid in situ, leanGnacha, uathoibriocha de theocht, ocsaigin thuaslagtha, dhoimhneacht agus
fhluaraiseacht chléraifille a dhéanamh. Ta teicneolaiocht phaitinnithe ghlanta ag na corais seo le ligint doibh a bheith faoi
uisce muiri ar feadh tréimhsi fada gan laghdu ar bith ar chruinneas torthai le himeacht aimsire. Seoladh an dara ceann
de na corais i gCairlinn i 2004. Is é seo an chéad choras a cuireadh in Usaid i gCairlinn agus go dti seo ta sé ag oibrit go
sarmhaith, agus € ag solathar sonrai a bhfuil géargha leo ar luaineacht in athruithe comhshaoil san uisce. T4 na sonrai 6n
chdras monatoireachta seo ar fail ar line le leas Usaideoiri priobhaideacha agus oideachasula. T4 mionchoigeartuithe &
ndéanambh in inathraitheacht na sonrai agus tathar ag suil go bhféadfar na sonrai uilig a chur i lathair i bhformaid indséaide
gan mhoill.

D’éirigh le hiarratas na Gniomhaireachta maoinit a fhail tri Chlar Clar Tamhais Visce INTERREG I11A le ceithre chdras
breise a cheannacht, a seachadadh i Mi na Nollag 2004. Is rdn go gcuirfear ceann in Gsaid i lochanna amuigh an
Fheabhail agus Chairlinne faoi seach. Téathar ag suil go gcuirfear ceann de na corais ata fagtha in Usaid ar thaobh na
farraige de Loch Feabhail agus an ceann eile i sruthan fionnuisce.

Tosaiodh ar chlar le monatoireacht a dhéanamh ar chloraifill agus chothaithigh le linn 2004. Bhain an clar le samplai
uisce 6 12 laithrean taobh istigh de Loch Feabhail agus Abhainn an Fheabhail a shamplail ar bhonn miosuil. Ceadaionn
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samplai cloraifille agus cothaitheach meastachéin tairgeachta a dhéanamh agus ceadoidh siad cros-seicedil le taifid na
gcoras monatoireachta comhshaoil mar bheart calabraithe né dearbhu caighdeain. Ta an clar & reachtail i gcomhar le
Seirbhisi Uisceacha RTFT, a phroiseélfaidh samplai agus a chinnfidh ar na torthai.
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Rinneadh suirbhé ar ghniomhaiocht siolraithe oisri duichasacha i Loch Feabhail 6 Bhealtaine go Lnasa 2004. Bhain seo
le sampla oisri a ghlacadh 6 phriomhbheirtreacha an Locha agus méid na gniomhaiochta siolraithe i ngach ceann acu a
mheas. Baineadh Usaid as bailitheoiri sceithe le monatdireacht a dhéanamh ar shiothlu sceithe taobh istigh de na
beirtreacha agus glacadh tomhais teochta agus salandachta i rith an tsamhraidh lena fhionnadh cad é mar a chuaigh na
hinathruithe seo i bhfeidhm ar rath siolraithe an stoic. Ar an drochuair, ba bheag gniomhaiocht siolraithe a chonacthas
sna samplai agus measadh go mb’fheidir go raibh sin amhlaidh ceann is go raibh na hoisri sna priomhbheirtreacha beag
n6 nach raibh lion na samplai mor go leor.

Ta achoimre ar thonaiste tairgeachta do na sliogiascaigh i Lochanna an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne i dTabla 3

Tébla 3.

Spéiceas Bliain Ceantar Tairgthe Méid (t) Luach lomlan (€)
Ditilicin Grinnill 2003 Loch Feabhail 15,318 € 10,504,240
Oisre Duchasach 2003 Loch Feabhail 50 ni fios

Ditilicin Grinnill 2003 Loch Cairlinne 1,500 €1,725,000

Oisre Gigas 2003 Loch Cairlinne 457 €900,350

Oisre Duchasach 2004 Loch Feabhail 50 ni fios

Didlicin Grinnill 2004 Loch Feabhail 12,162 €8,762,960

Oisre Gigas 2004 Loch Cairlinne 320 €332,200
Ditilicin Grinnill 2004 Loch Cairlinne 2,500 €2,468,000

12. CAOMHNU AGUS COSAINT IASCAIGH

la priomhfheidhm de chuid fhoireann Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna Achtanna agus Rialachéin lascaigh a chur i
bhfeidhm. Cuirtear sonrai ar ghabhéalacha Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna i lathair i dTablai 21A agus B in Aguisin 2. Le
linn 2003 bhi seach-chonairi na mbradan ar ais chun an Fheabhail ar fheabhas aris, ach cé gur chuir tréimhse fada, tirim
i rith an tsamhraidh agus an fhomhair bac ar ghniomhaiocht iascaireachta slaite, bhog go leor bradan isteach san
fhionnuisce is gur cuireadh sineadh seachtaine le hiascach trachtala, mar a rinneadh i 2002.

I Mi Lunasa 2004 tharla morshlad ar éisc ar an tSruthail inar maraiodh corradh le 700 bradan fasta. | ndiaidh
combhairlitichain le pairtithe leasmhara aitidla iascaireachta slaite agus le hdinéiri iascaigh, thug an Ghniomhaireacht riail
géigeandala isteach le deireadh an tséasdir ar an tSruthail agus ar a craobhaibhneacha a thabhairt chun tosaigh ¢ 21
Deireadh Fomhair go 13 Mean Fémbhair. Thug an riail seo cosaint do na bradain a bhi fagtha agus a bhi ag tarraingt ar
a lathair sceite agus bhi si ina cuidit le hiarmhairt na heachtra a ioslaghdd mar a ba léir 6 mheasunt ar ghniomhaiocht
sceite sa cheantar.

Thug rialachain a tugadh isteach i 2004 tuilleadh cosanta do bhradain earraigh, le teorainn mala bradain n6 bric amhain
sa tréimhse 6 1 Marta go 31 Bealtaine, agus teorainn ceithre iasc sa chuid eile den tséasar. Cuireann forghniomhu
leantnach reachtaiocht iascaigh ag foireann na Gniomhaireachta leis an laghdu follasach ar iascaireacht mhidhleathach i
gconai.

Téa mionsonraithe ar ionchtisimh Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna i dTéblai 20A agus B in Aguisin 2.

Ba mhaith le Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna an cuidit mér a thug RTFT, an Garda Siochana agus Seirbhis Péilineachta
Thuaisceart Eireann i bhforghniomhd na n-Achtanna lascaigh i gceantar Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna a admhail. T4
buiochas ar leith tuillte fosta ag na feighlithe priobhaideacha abhann, a thugann cosaint bhreise d’iascaigh le leas gach
duine go minic i dtosca deacra agus ar bhonn deonach. T4 Bord an CFCSE, Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna agus a
foireann an-bhuioch as an chuidiu seo.

Ghabh RTFT agus RCMAN, le cuidit 6 Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna, patroil ar iascaigh didilicini sil de laimh i
nDeireadh FOmhair agus Samhain 2003. D’¢éiligh seo patrol leitheadach ar bord ACI Loch Bradan ag coimhéad
gniomhaiochtai dreidiri didilicini agus ag gabhail ar bord arthach le baisceanna agus caighdean stoc sil a mheas. Bhi an
t-iascach seo oscailte bunus na tréimhse 6 Dheireadh Fombhair go hEanair agus dhirigh an Ghniomhaireacht cuid mhaith
da hiarracht ar choimhéad an iascaigh seo agus ar éasct fheidhmeannaigh na roinne ina r6l mar oifigigh an iascaigh seo.

13. CAIGHDEAN UISCE

Stad an Ghniombhaireacht de ghniomh( mar ghniomhairi foirmeéalta na Seirbhise Comhshaoil agus Oidhreachta ar 31
Bealtaine 2004 i dtaca le cosc thruailliti uisce de. Coinnionn foireann na Gniomhaireachta a n-Udaras, afach, faoin Water
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(Northern Ireland) Order 1999, agus tri fhorghniomh( na Foyle Fisheries Acts 1952 chomh maith. Ligeann seo
d’fhoireann na Gniomhaireachta agus d’foireann na Seirbhise Comhshaoil agus Oidhreachta oibrit as laimh a chéile ma
bhionn feidhm leis. Leanfaidh an Ghniomhaireacht mar eagraiocht cheannais i bhfiosruithe a bhaineann le sladanna ar
eisc.

Déanfar foirmeélta na protacail do na hidirghniomhaiochtai idir an d& fhoras i Meamram Tuisceana atd &
chomhdhréachtl ag an dé phairti faoi lathair.

Cé nach bhfuil baint ag an Ghniomhaireacht nios mé leis an choras chuimsitheach monatéireachta ar aibhneacha,
leanfaidh foireann na SCO leis sin agus beidh torthai uile an chlair ar fail don Ghniomhaireacht le haghaidh measunaithe
agus léirmhinithe.

T4 a mhacasamhail de choras i bhfeidhm maidir le Comhthoil chomhlionadh an chlair ghnathshampléla, agus cuirtear
torthai na samplai a bhailionn foireann SCO ar fail don Ghniomhaireacht. Ar an ddigh seo, t& an Ghniomhaireacht in
ann feidhmiocht laithrean aonarach a mheastnt agus gniomha mar is cui da réir.

Creideann an Ghniomhaireacht gur céilli a straitéis, a dhirionn ar dhobharcheantair, ar cosdil déibh go bhfuil siad faoi
strus, da Clar um Thruaillit a Chosc go hOnnghniomhach agus go bhfuil si le leas na ndobharcheantar seo. Faightear an
buneolas don straitéis seo go priomha 6 na suirbhéanna céiliochtula leictri-iascaireachta a dhéantar gach bliain, agus go
pointe nios 14, 6n chlar leis an eolas is déanai a fhail ar ghnathdga agus 6 na suirbhéanna ar chomhaireamh log sceite.

Is comhairli reachtuil an Ghniomhaireacht i gconai i dtaca le forbairti de, a bhfuil an acmhainn acu tionchar a bheith acu
ar chomhshaol na n-aibhneacha, ¢ thaobh chaighdean an uisce né 0 thaobh gnathdga fisicitla. Cuimsionn seo
diospdireachtai leis an tSeirbhis Foraoiseachta agus le comhlachtai éagsula foraoiseachta faoi thionchar féideartha
scéimeanna plandala atd molta, leis an tseirbhis boithre faoi bhealai nua trasnaithe aibhneacha agus scéimeanna béthair,
leis an tSeirbhis Uisce faoi scéimeanna séarachais agus astarraingt uisce, leis an tSeirbhis Pleandla faoi fhorbraiochtai nua,
leis an tSeirbhis Comhshaoil agus Oidhreachta faoi chomhthoileanna doirte, a gcaighdean agus a dtionchar féideartha,
agus le Gniomhaireachta na n-Aibhneacha faoi cheisteanna bhainistiu draenala agus sruthchdrsai, agus oibreacha aischur
gnathog san aireamh.

Cheannaigh agus shuiteéil an Ghniomhaireacht bullai teileméadrachta i Loch Feabhail agus i Loch Cairlinne araon le
roinnt gnéithe den chaighdean uisce a thomhas agus a thaifeadadh a mbainfear Usaid astu le heiseamlairi acmhainneacht
iompair do shliogéisc sa da Loch a fhorbairt.

14. CLAR TOMHAIS UISCE INTERREG IlIA AN AE

I 2004 fuair an Ghniomhaireacht maoinit 6 Chiste Forbartha Réigitnai na hEorpa tri Chlar INTERREG IIIA. Riar an
tSeirbhis Comhshaoil agus Oidhreachta an maoiniu ar son Roinn an Chomhshaoil do na tionscadail seo a leanas:

an
__E Environment & AnAgen::yW\lhmlhs Department of the IHTEHHEG
M~ Heritage Service @ Eﬁﬁﬁmem A
=== www.ehsnigov.uk o |

—~AAN

Arthach Patr6il Cladaigh do Loch Cairlinne (€209k) — Bainfidh an Ghniomhaireacht Gséid as an arthach seo
d’obair chosanta agus shuirbhé i Loch Cairlinne go priomha.

e Ceithre Bhulla Monatdireachta Uath-Theileméadrachta (€233k) do mhonatéireacht fhior-ama ar uisci Loch
Feabhail agus Loch Cairlinne araon.T4a an tionscadal seo i gcomhphéirtiocht leis an tSeirbhis Comhshaoil agus
Oidhreachta, an Instititid Mhuiri, an Roinn Talmhaiochta agus Forbartha Tuaithe agus an Ghniomhaireacht um
Chosaint an Chomhshaoil agus cuirfear in Gsaid € go luath sa bhliain 2005.

 Clibedil Sreinge Codaithe agus Aonaid Bhraite (€82k). Usaidfear na haonaid seo do sheach-chonair géiteog
2005 agus do mhonatoireacht ar bhradain fhésta até ag pilleadh.

 Cora agus Airitheoir Eisc ar an tSruthail ar an Omaigh (€155k). Forbraiodh an tionscadal seo i
gcomhphairtiocht le Comhairle Ceantair na hOmai agus ta sé le bheith criochnaithe i lar 2005.

15. TURASOIREACHT MHUIRI

Faoi Chomhaont( na Breataine/na hEireann tugadh sainchdram fhorbairt turaséireachta muiri don Ghniomhaireacht.
Chuir fionraiocht Thiondil Thuaisceart Eireann moill le dul chun cinn ar fhorbairt na feidhme seo, ach criochnaiodh
“IniGichadh ar Acmhainn Fdilliochta agus Aineasa lascachbhunaithe cheantair an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne araon” ag
Fitzpatrick Associates i dtreo dheireadh na bliana 2002, a bhi mar bonn le comhairliichan le grapai leasmhara agus le
hullmha phlean forbartha 5 bliana do Cheantair an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne. Tionscnaiodh comhstaidéar eile ar
Fhailliocht Mhuiri sa d& Cheantar i gcomhar le Grupai Réigiinacha Trasteorann an larthuaiscirt agus an Oirthir i 2004.
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GLUAIS

Baictéareolaiocht — Tagraionn seo do bhaictéir

Suirbhéanna beantacha — Suirbhéanna ar ghrinneall na farraige
Bithocsaini — Tocsaini a thairgeann speicis airithe algai

lasc garbh — Eisc mar roiste, ruan, bhran, phéirse, ghailliasc, chiraman etc.
Deascadh uibheacha — Lion na n-uibheacha a dheascann iasc fasta

Leictri-iascaireacht — Teicniocht a Usaideann leictreachas le héisc a ghabhail. Baintear Usaid as saintreallamh le lucht
leictreach a théirgeadh a cheadaionn néal a chur in éisc taobh istigh d’achar éirithe agus iad a ghabhail gan diobhail.

Ubhain suileacha — Céim fhorasach ubh bhradain/bhric nuair a thagann stile an éisc 0ig ris.
Macrai-inveirteabraigh — Feithidi a fhaightear i sruthain.

Céimshrian sceite — Lion na n-iasc nar sceith go f6ill ag deireadh an tséasuir.

Salmonids — Bric agus bradain.
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AGUISIN 1
TAIRGEACHT OS COINNE SPRIOCANNA 2004

CUSPOIR

1. lascaigh bhradan agus intire Cheantair an
Fheabhail agus Chairlinne a chaomhnu agus a chosaint.

PRIOMHGHNIOMHAIOCHT
1.1 Cosaint ghnathog

1.2 Forghniomhd

13 Oideachas

SPRIOC FEIDHMIOCHTA

1.1.1  Cosc truaillithe a chotht go honnghniomhach tri
laithreacht ar aibhneacha agus tri 1,500 cuairt a
thabhairt ar fheirmeacha.

1.1.2  Freagairt do gach tuairisc faoi thruaillit taobh istigh de
8 uair a chloig 6n fhogra.

1.1.3  Ceanglais chosanta iascaigh a shonru d’fhoraoiseacht,
d’innealltéireacht agus d’'oibreacha eile a théann i
bhfeidhm ar chomhshaol aibhneach Cheantair an
Fheabhail agus Chairlinne, agus freagairt taobh istigh
de 21 14 6n chombhairlitchan.

1.2.1 120 l4 cosanta ar farraige a sholathar i Loch Feabhail
agus san achar ar thaobh na farraige de Loch Feabhail,
agus ceaduinais 100% de bhéid a fheictear ag
iascaireacht, a sheicedil.

1.2.2 40 la cosanta ar farraige a sholathar i Loch Cairlinne.

1.2.3 3,000 ceadlnas iascaireachta slaite agus leabhair tuairisce
a sheicedil i gCeantar an Fheabhail, agus lion na
n-iascairi slaite a bhraitear gan ceaddnas a laghda go
nios 10 na 0.5%.

1.2.4 600 ceadunas iascaireachta slaite a sheiceail i gCeantar
Chairlinne, agus lion na n-iascairi slaite a bhraitear
gan ceadunas a laghdd go nios 10 na 0.5%.

1.2.5 100% leabhar tuairisce fhir eangai até ag feidhmiu a
sheicedil le linn an tséasuir trachtala.

1.2.6  100% déiledlaithe ceadunaithe bradain a sheiceail uair
sa tseachtain idir 10 Marta agus 310 Deireadh Fomhair.

1.3.1 Lion na gcuairteoiri ar ionad léirmhinithe “Riverwatch”
a mhéadu le 50% ar chuairteanna 2003.

CUSPOIR
2. lascaigh bhradan agus intire Cheantair an Fheabhail
agus Chairlinne a bhainistit agus a fhorbairt.

PRIOMHGHNIOMHAIOCHT
2.1 Eolas a Bhainistiu.
2.2 Gnathdga lascaigh a fheabhsd.

2.3 Eolas agus comhairle a sholathar maidir le Bille an
Fheabhail agus Chairlinne.
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TUAIRISC CHUN DATA

80% criochnaithe

Déanta go dti seo — nil aon saru ar CLS

Ag dul ar aghaidh faoi lathair

65% criochnaithe (T4 “Lough Bradan” &
seirbhisitl agus & hathshreangu
agus nil si ar an fharraige)

23% criochnaithe (T4 Bdi Chairlinne & choirit)
84% criochnaithe

58% criochnaithe

Bainte amach
Bainte amach

6,203 (gniomhaiocht thionsclaioch
ag muinteoiri sa bhuaic-am) (4,660 i 2003)

TUAIRISC CHUN DATA



SPRIOC FEIDHMIOCHTA

211

212

2.1.3

2.14

2.15

2.1.6

2.1.7

221

2.2.2

2.2.3

2.2.4

2.2.5

231

Figidiri earcaithe iasc fasta atd dearbhaithe a

bheith baili a sholathar 6 na hairitheoiri iasc ar an
Ro, an Fhochaine, an Mhorn, Abhainn Coilleadh, an
Chamabhainn, Abhainn Chuil Damhcha agus an
Fhinn faoi Mhi na Nollag 2004.

Suirbhé a dhéanamh ar 340 laithrean leictri-iascaireachta
faoi dheireadh Mhean Fémhair 2004.

Réatai dushaothraithe ag iascaigh thrachtala agus aineasa a
fhionnadh faoi Mhi na Nollag 2004.

Suirbhé a dhéanambh ar 5 iascaigh iasc garbh faoi
Dheireadh Fomhair 2004.

Tabhairt faoi athbhreithnit ar theorainneacha
caomhnaithe agus spriocanna céimshriain do
dhobharcheantar an Fheabhail faoi Mheitheamh 2004.

Suirbhéanna fotagrafaiochta digiti 6n aer
dhobharcheantair fhionnuisce an Fheabhail agus
Chairlinne a chriochn( faoi Bhealtaine 2004.

Cléar sampléla a thabhairt isteach sna hiascaigh
thrachtala bradain le hathruithe aimseartha agus
spasula san iascra dushaothraithe a fhionnadh.

Moltai a chur isteach chuig na Ranna abhartha do
scéimeanna fheabhsu gnathog agus pleananna gné
gaolmhara don Daoil, d’Abhainn Chuil Damhcha,
don R4, don Fhochaine agus don Chamabhainn
faoi Mhi an Mharta 2004.

Obair ar na scéimeanna fheabhsu gnéathdg a
thosacht faoi Mhi na Bealtaine 2004.

Ceantair le haghaidh feabhsaithe a aithint i ngach
fo-dhobharcheantar a bhainfidh méadd 5% ar
sprioc sceite 2003 amach.

Feabhsu gnathog a chur i gerich le méada 10% ar
sprioc sceite 2003 a bhaint amach.

20 grupa de chliaint “Riverwatch” a ghriosu le husaid
a bhaint as clar “glac sruthan faoi charam” le gnathég a
sruthain/abhann éitiuil a fheabhsu.

Freagairt d’iarratai ar eolas agus chombhairle ar Bhille an
Fheabhail agus Chairlinne taobh istigh den sprioc-am
ata leagtha sios, agus freastal ar Chéim an Choiste den
Bhille.

CUSPOIR

3.

Forbairt Loch Feabhail agus Loch Cairlinne a
choth mar gheall ar thrachtail agus aineas.

PRIOMHGHNIOMHAIOCHT

3.1

Plean straitéiseach a ullmhu le forbairt Loch
Feabhail agus Loch Cairlinne a chotht mar gheall ar
thrachtail agus aineas.
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Bailiocht na Muirne agus na Finne Criochnaithe
—an chuid eile le criochnu i 2005.

An Leictri-iascaireacht criochnaithe.

Ag fanacht le torthai FRI/Géineolaiochta
agus Fotagrafaiochta Digiti

Criochnaiodh suirbhé Loch Dearg i Mi Llnasa.
Ta an chuid eile le criochn( i 2005.

Ag dul ar aghaidh, mar atd 2.1.3

Criochnaiodh suirbhé na Finne. T4 an chuid eile
ag fanacht le teicneolaiocht nua digiteach
(Bealtaine 2005 an sprioc-am anois)

Obair DNA ag dul ar aghaidh.

Criochnaiodh an obair ar an R6 agus an
Fhochaine. Tathar ag obair ar chasanna gno don
Dennett, do dhobharcheantar na hOmai agus
don Abhainn Chuil Damhcha faoi lathair i
gcomhphéirtiocht le Gniomhaireacht na n-
Aibhneacha.

Criochnaiodh an obair ar an R4 agus ar an
Fhochaine. Comhaontaiodh CLS le
Gniomhaireacht na n-Aibhneacha.

Ag dul ar aghaidh. Féach 2.2.2

Ag dul ar aghaidh. Féach 2.2.2

Cuireadh moill leis seo de thairbhe meastnuithe

riosca S agus S. Rinne dha ghrupa glanadoireacht
— Oakgrove (Pairc Naomh Coluim) agus YMCA
(Droimachaidh)

Ag dul ar aghaidh

TUAIRISC CHUN DATA



SPRIOC FEIDHMIOCHTA

3.11

3.1.2

Plean straitéiseach a ullmhu faoi Mheitheamh

2004 do chothua agus d'fhorbairt Loch Feabhail agus
Loch Cairlinne mar gheall ar thrachtail agus aineas,

agus aon socrt do mhaoiniu a fhaightear 6n Staidéar ar
Thurasdireacht Mhuiri agus 6n Phlean Forbartha

Aineasa agus Failliochta Bunaithe ar lascaigh san aireamh.

Eolas chun data ar iascaireacht slaite a sholathar ar
laithrean gréasain, line eolais agus phreasnotai
iascaireachta slaite na Gniomhaireachta.

CUSPOIR

4.

Dobharshaothrd a cheadind agus a fhorbairt.

PRIOMHGHNIOMHAIOCHT

41

4.2

Na pairteanna den Phlean Fhorfheidhmithe ata
riachtanach a chur i bhfeidhm roimh achtd Bhille
lascaigh an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne.

Eolas agus comhairle a sholathar ar Bhille lascaigh an
Fheabhail agus Chairlinne.

SPRIOC FEIDHMIOCHTA

411

41.2

4.1.3

421

An clar monatoireachta a fhorbairt a thuilleadh le bonn
eolaioch a sholathar do bhainistit agus fhorfheidhmiu
foralacha na Reachtaiochta Priomhula até le teacht.

Leandint de chomhairlitichan ar na moltai le
dobharshaothr( inbhuanaithe a fhorbairt i Loch
Feabhail agus i Loch Cairlinne taobh istigh de 6 mi 6
acht na Reachtaiochta Priomhila.

Plean forbartha do dhobharshaothr( a thabhairt
chun criche taobh istigh de 9 mi ¢ achtl na
Reachtaiochta Priomhula.

Freagairt d’iarratai ar eolas agus chombhairle ar Bhille an
Fheabhail agus Chairlinne taobh istigh den

sprioc-am ata leagtha sios, agus freastal ar Chéim an
Choiste den Bhille.

CUSPOIR

5.

Muirthuraséireacht a fhorbairt.

PRIOMHGHNIOMHAIOCHT

5.1

5.2

Plean straitéiseach a ullmhu d’fhorbairt
mhuirthuraséireachta i gcomhairle le gniomhaireachtai
agus eagraiochtai leasmhara eile

Forfheidhmiu na straitéise muirthuraséireachta a thosacht.

SPRIOC FEIDHMIOCHTA

5.11

Straitéis a fhorbairt d’fhorbairt muirthurasdireachta

i gCeantair an Fheabhail agus Chairlinne, agus aithint
comhphadirtiochtai féideartha, aon mholtai maidir

le maoinit agus spriocanna forfheidhmithe san
aireamh, faoi Mheitheamh 2004.
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Tosaiodh ar dhréacht deiridh an Staidéir
ar Thuraséireacht Mhuiri, fuarthas é
agus ta an Fochoiste Turasoireachta
Muiri & bhreithnia faoi lathair.

Ag dul ar aghaidh — preasrditeas seachtainiuil,
foyleline, laithredn gréasain tugtha chun data. Ta
an laithrean gréasain & athdhearadh faoi lathair.

TUAIRISC CHUN DATA

Tosaiodh ar obair FRI/DNA/ Fotagrafaiocht
Digiteach.

Nil aon reachtaiocht phriomhuil ann go f6ill.
Nil aon reachtaiocht phriomhuil ann go f6ill.

Nil aon reachtaiocht phriomhuil ann go foill.

Nil aon reachtaiocht phriomhuil ann go f6ill.

TUAIRISC CHUN DATA

Fuarthas dréacht deiridh an Staidéir ar
Mbhuirthuraséireacht i ndiaidh ceardlanna
combhairliichain. Ta sé & bhreithnid ag
Bord/Fochoiste MT faoi lathair.



5.1.2 Tosacht ar fhorfheidhmit na straitéise
muirthurasoireachta faoi Mhean Fémhair 2004.

CUSPOIR

6. Eifeachtacht mhéadaithe agus feabhs( leantnach a
eileamh i solathar seirbhisi do gach custaiméir.

PRIOMHGHNIOMHAIOCHT

6.1 Solathar eolais agus seirbhisi ardchaighdein
do chustaiméiri, cumtha do riachtanais chustaiméiri.

6.2 Acmbhainni daonna taobh istigh den Ghniomhaireacht
a choinneail agus a fheabhsu le caighdean ard
seirbhise do chustaiméiri a chinntid.

6.3 Dualgais maidir le Dirid ar Riachtanas
Shoisialta agus Dualgais Chomhionannais (atl 75,
NI Act 1998)

SPRIOC FEIDHMIOCHTA

6.1.1 Freagairt do gach comhfhreagrachas a fhaightear
taobh istigh de 15 Ia oibre.

6.1.2  Eolas trathuil, abhartha, cruinn a sholathar do na
Ranna Coimirciochta, do Bhord CFCSE, don Fhdéram
Chombhairleach agus do Runaireacht na Comhairle

Aireachta Thuaidh/Theas le cloi le sprioc-amanna sainitla.

6.1.3  An t-dbhar ar laithrean gréasain na Gniomhaireachta a
athbhreithnid agus a thabhairt chun data go rialta.

6.1.4 Earct an 20 Féraim Chomhairligh a chriochnu faoi
Aibrean 2004.

6.2.1 Deiseanna oilitina agus forbartha, agus oilitint ar
chomhionannas san aireamh, a shocrt don
fhoireann de réir Phlean QOilitina agus Forbartha
athmheasta na Gniomhaireachta.

6.3.1 nDRS a bhreithnit nuair ata gach gniomhaiocht a
pleandil, & solathar agus & measina, agus athbhreithnid
a dhéanamh ar phlean gniomhaiochta nDRS faoi
Mhi na Nollag 2004 agus tuairisci trathdla, raithidla,
chun data a sholathar do na Ranna Coimirciochta.

6.3.2 Feasacht ar chomhdheiseanna i ngach gniomhaiocht a
chothu agus a choinnedil i rith na bliana.

6.3.3  Priomh-mholtai straitéis fhor-rochtana agus scaipthe na
Gniombhaireachta a fhorfheidhmiu agus a chothu.

6.3.4  Athbhreithnil a dhéanamh ar Straitéis Bhainistit
Riosca na Gniomhaireachta agus i a thabhairt chun
data nuair is g4, uair amhain sa réithe ar a laghad.

CUSPOIR

7. Usaid éifeachtil, éifeachtach, gheilleagrach na
n-acmhainni ata ar fail don Ghniomhaireacht a chinntiu.
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Tosofar an forfheidhmit nuair a ghlacfar le moltai
an Staidéir.

TUAIRISC CHUN DATA

Bainte amach.

Ag dul ar aghaidh.

T4 athdhearadh an laithredin ghréasain ar sidl
anois agus ta sé le bheith criochnaithe go luath
i 2005.

Combhairle 6 CATT - sineadh bliana le prdiseéil
nésanna imeachta reatha IP an Fhoraim.

Ag dul ar aghaidh. Tionéladh ceardlann ar
riachtanais oiliuina.

Ag dul ar aghaidh.

Ag dul ar aghaidh.
Ag dul ar aghaidh.

Tugtha chun déta agus cheadaigh an Bord an clar.

TUAIRISC CHUN DATA



PRIOMHGHNIOMHAIOCHT

7.1 Usaid is fearr acmhainni na Gniomhaireachta a chinnti,
agus a chinntit go gcloionn an caiteachas uile leis an
treoir abhartha.

SPRIOC FEIDHMIOCHTA

7.1.1  Cloi le treoir DAO agus treoir abhartha airgeadais
Thuaidh agus Theas, a chinntiu.

7.1.2  Cloi le socruithe Mheamraim Airgeadais Ghniomhaireacht
na Lochanna.

7.1.3  Na Ranna Coimirciochta a chur ar an eolas faoi athruithe
buiséadaigh ar bith (diallais a bhfuil athruithe buiséadaigh
ag baint leo) in am trathuil.

7.1.4  Athbhreithnil a dhéanamh ar Bheartas Calaoise na
Gniombhaireachta faoi Mhean Fémhair agus leasuithe ar
bith a fhorfheidhmi.
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Ag dul ar aghaidh.
MA comhaontaithe ag an Bhord agus sinithe ag

na Ranna Coimirciochta.
Ag dul ar aghaidh

Athmbheasta agus ionchorpraithe sa MA.



AGUISIN 2

STAITISTICI AR CHAOMHNU CHOSAINT AGUS BHAINISTIU IASCAIGH

76



(#T e1geL ‘1won] snfe uos|3 "yoseunseay niusiuleyg op enN uuog : Jieygesy- ue ybiease))
uos|3 1Q ..J4109Y1189S BISeay Al Sleuelyoely,, 9| 1INibi4 eu uuesuleg

659G TGy TT19 T6¢ 1401% ¥70¢ 09% €6. 8TTT 08¢T 0.6 duuld BuU seI0D >
86¢T TeVT €GT¢ 098 890T T€C 866 L9€T G761 8¢6T 9/¢v SUJIOIA BU SeI0D
cive €9T1¢e 8ECy L997 vETC 09 696T ¢lic V.19 8.9¢€ Ll urgjwol
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 I'N L9¢ 0T. eyoesuyqre
-yqoeuD snbe reyiniSy uy
ey ¢l9 0€9 98T €8¢ 9eT 69T 0 LT ¢ et 0y uy
0Ty 0se LLE 121 144 L8 €0¢ A4 99¢€ 1451% 9t uuesjjioey uy >
0 € 89 AN 8€T 0 €6 LEE 1444 0 0S. Upes|[lod uuleyqy  «
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L1 8T 0 8ee UIOYN UV «
0 0 1€ 0 8¢ 0 9C 99 e 9 0L€ 3|31V Uues|yo uuleyqy «
6171 T0T 1474 LET 69T LTT LGE ¢SS A<y 9¢8 vv8 uulyq uy >
T0S 1474% €L9 €ec L8 €g ¥8 0 ¢lS 8 065 suleydoyd uvy
(WA% Tce 14 04T LT 08 LTT €at 09 69 999 eyley wioig «
89 9es 6778 L9V TS 61T €469 918 79 LEST vEL Bie@ «
1T L9 L9 T¢ 8L 0 89 0 AN} 0s 99¢ Nsuusg
0 68 08 99 ZL 9T 69 L9 90T 19 ey [loeq uy
0 4! 144 0 A% 0 T¢ 1514 VL oy 0 eYyoyweq [Inyd uureyqy
L9/ T.S 099 T€T v1¢ ce 60¢ 8.¢ 8v. 65 80, uureyqeweyd uy «
S0/¥00¢ ¥0/€00C €0/¢00C ¢0/T00C TO/000C 00/666T 66/866T 86/.66T L6/966T 96/S66T UOS|3 eyoeauyqly

S0/¥00¢ — 96/S66T I'eyqgeayq ue Jejueayd a118dS siejun

TelgeL

7



Tabla 2: Sonrai Airitheoiri Eisc Cheantar an Fheabhail 1989 — 2004

Bliain An Fhochaine Muileann an Abhainn Ghleann An RO An Fhinn
Aichle/
tSiain Abhainn Coilleadh
1989 8287
1990 6458
1991 4301 7987
1992 7357 7420
1993 8655 17978
1994 7439 19908
1995 10838 7547
1996 13297 8978
1997 3525 7047
1998 3077 9599
1999 * 6514
2000 2551 4690
2001 1518 6250 2742 3265 3311
2002 4288 12991 4543 5459 5768
2003 3097 12129 1908 4086 6461
2004 2,855 10,270 99 1.922 3,778

*Bhi an t-airitheoir in aingléas do shéasur 1999
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Tébla 3A: Sonrai Airitheoiri Eisc Cheantar an Fheabhail 2003

Lion na n-iasc > 45cm

Mi An Mhorn An Fhinn An R6 An Fhochaine Abhainn
Coilleadh

Eanair 2

Feabhra -11

Marta 43

Aibrean 104

Bealtaine 127 695 26 5 7

Meitheamh 6040 1371 114 468 493

1Gil 2837 2962 1604 1182 934

LUnasa 212 1 276 430 76

Meéan Fomhair 1002 809 518 186 216

Deireadh Fémbhair 731 396 954 462 182

Samhain 952 183 535 362 1

Mi na Nollag 228 -94 59 2 -1

lomlan 12129 6461 4086 3097 1908

Ta figitiri minis ann go luath sa bhliain mar gheall ar bhradéin a sceith cheana féin imeacht ar ais chun na
farraige.
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Tabla 3B: Sonrai Airitheoiri Eisc Cheantar an Fheabhail 2004

Lion na n-iasc > 45cm

Mi An Mhorn An Fhinn An R6 An Fhochaine Abhainn

Coilleadh
Eanair 65 3 -3 -6 0
Feabhra 6 -16 -8 0
Marta -8 77 -1 2
Aibrean 81 -16 -15 4 0
Bealtaine 217 57 25 36 0
Meitheamh 3344 1851 51 75 2
1Gil 1908 880 35 903 0
LUnasa 1916 455 380 1002 77
Meéan Fomhair 1534 200 690 575 18
Deireadh Fémbhair 596 130 360 153 —
Samhain 473 152 169 62 —
Mi na Nollag 138 5 239 51 —
lomlan 10,270 3,778 1,922 2,855 99

Ta figitiri minis ann go luath sa bhliain mar gheall ar bhradéin a sceith cheana féin imeacht ar ais chun na
farraige.
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Tébla 9

Ceannachain Bradan a Maraiodh le Slat
Marta — Aibrean 300
1991 - 2004

Bliain Lion na mBrada
a Ceannaiodh

1991 149
1992 172
1993 73

1994 483
1995 167
1996 129
1997 195
1998 186
1999 124
2000 170
2001 39

2002 118
2003 85

2004 151
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Tébla 12

Tuairisceain lascaireachta Slaite 2003 — 2004

2003 2004
Lion na gCeadunas a Eisiodh 8,399 9,629
Lion lomlan na dTuairiscean a Fuarthas 1,303 1,348
Tuairiscedin mar Cheatadan d’lomlan na gCeadunas a Eisiodh 15.5 13.99
Lion na dTuairiscean “Naid” 293 264
Tuairiscedin “Naid” mar Cheatadan d’lomlan na dTuairiscean 3.48 2.74
Lion na mBradan agus na mBlathén a Tuairisciodh gur Maraiodh 1,844 2,285
Meénlion na mBradan agus na mBlathan a Maraiodh an Tuairiscean 1.14 1.69
Lion na mBreac Geal a Maraiodh 361 75
Meénlion na mBreac Geal a Maraiodh an Tuairiscean 0.03 0.06
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TABLA 13A: Déaileadh Cheadunais Slaite 2003

Ait Daoiné Fasta CeadU 14 L& 3 L4 Daoiné Fasta
Chénaithe agus Aosénaigh agus Aoséanaigh
Séasur Garbhiascaireacht
Ceantair an 3417 858 21 165 4
Fheabhail agus
Chairlinne
An Chuid Eile 380 2619 4 529 114
de Thuaisceart
Eireann
An Chuid Eile 380 2619 4 529 114
de Phoblacht
na hEireann
IOMLAN 3836 3572 26 735 118
Sasain 24 12 48 47 1
Alba 1 4 9 18 —
An Bhreatain Bheag 1 3 —
Oilean Mhanann — 1 4 1 —
IOMLAN 26 19 62 69 1
An Spéinn — — 4 — —
An Ostair 1 — — — —
An Bheilg — 1 1 — —
An Danmhairg 1 — — 3 —
An Fhrainc 4 1 2 14 —
An Ghearmain — — 1 3 —
An lodail — — — — —
An Isiltir — 1 — 1 —
An Pholainn — — — — —
An Eilvéis — — — 11 —
An tSualainn — — — — —
IOMLAN 6 3 8 32 —
An Astrail 1 — — — —
Ceanada — — 1 — _
An tSeapain — — — — —
An Afraic — — — — —
Meieiceé — — — 1 —
An Nua-Shéalainn — 1 — 1 —
IOMLAN 1 1 1 2 —
FORIOMLAN 3869 3595 97 838 119
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TABLA 13B: Déileadh Cheadunais Slaite 2004

Ait Daoiné Fasta CeadU 14 L& 3 L4 Daoiné Fasta
Chénaithe agus Aosénaigh agus Aoséanaigh
Séasur Garbhiascaireacht
Ceantair an 3627 1361 18 288 94
Fheabhail agus
Chairlinne
An Chuid Eile 593 2605 14 440 3
de Thuaisceart
Eireann
An Chuid Eile 54 168 19 155 1
de Phoblacht
na hEireann
IOMLAN 647 2773 33 595 4
Sasain 35 19 22 77 —
Alba 7 4 3 18 —
An Bhreatain Bheag — — — —
Oilean Mhanann 1 — 3 1 —
IOMLAN 45 23 28 96 0
An Spéinn — — 1 1 —
An Ostair 1 — — — —
An Bheilg — — 3 — —
An Danmhairg 2 1 — — —
An Fhrainc 5 6 3 27 —
An Ghearméin — 1 1 13 —
An lodail 1 — — — —
An Isiltir 2 — 4 5 —
An Pholainn — — — 1 —
An Eilvéis — — — 4 —
An tSualainn — — — — —
IOMLAN 11 8 12 51 0
An Astrail — — — — —
Ceanada — 1 — 1 —
An tSeapain — — — — —
An Afraic — — — 1 —
Meieiceé — 1 4 3 —
An Nua-Shéalainn — 2 — — —
IOMLAN 0 4 4 5 0
FORIOMLAN 4430 4169 95 1035 98

94



Tabla 14

Lion na nDréachtcheadanna Doirte a Breithniodh

2002 - 2004

Cineadl Eisiltigh 2002 2003 2004
Coiredil Séarachais 38 27 50
Greanroiseadh/Cairéal 4 2
Lionadh Talaimh

Tionsclaioch 1
Feirm Eisc 0 0 1
Uisce Stoirme 11 11 13
Toégail Mhdna 0 0 0
Dumpéil san Fharraige 0 1 0
Niochan Feithicli 2 1 2
Staisitin Lionta/Déileadh Ola 3 0 1
Prdisedil Bia 0 0 0
IOMLAIN 62 46 73
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Tabla 15

Lion na gCeadanna a Eisiodh le hEisilteach a Dhoirteadh

2000 — 2004
Cineél Gno 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Coiredil Séarachais 15 19 35 24 60
Greanroiseadh/Cairéal 10
Lionadh Talaimh 3 4
Tionsclaioch
Feirm Eisc 0 1
Uisce Stoirme 14 10 10 12 11
Niochan Feithicli 2 2 2 1 2
Staisitin Lionta/Daileadh Ola 3 1
Préiseail Bia 2 1 0
IOMLAIN 52 38 56 48 85
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Tabla 16

Mionsonrai Shamplail Eisilteach
Ceantair Dhoire agus Chairlinne

2002, 2003 agus 2004

Cineal Lion na Samplai Lion na Samplai Lion na Samplai
Eisiltigh a Glacadh a fuarthas Sasuil nach bhfuarthas Sasuil

2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004

Dramhail Feirme 19 20 14 0 0 0 19 20 14

Séarachas 4 4 0 0 0

Dramhail Tradala 2 0 0 0

Nithe eile 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0

lomlain 26 26 20 0 0 0 26 26 20

97



Tabla 17

Mionsonrai Shamplail Eisilteach
Ceantair Bhun an Phobail

2002 - 2004
Cineal Lion na Samplai Lion na Samplai Lion na Samplai
Eisiltigh a Glacadh a fuarthas Sasuil nach bhfuarthas Sasuil
2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004
Dramhail Feirme 2
Séarachas 2
Dramhail Tradala 2 0 1 2 0 1
lomlain 6 5 8 0 0 0 6 5 8
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Tabla 18

Scraduithe ar Chosc Thruaillia Uisce
agus Teagmbhais Thruaillithe

Doire
2002 - 2004
Cineal Lion na Scruduithe Lion na dTeagmhas Lion na Rabhadh
Eisiltigh a Rinneadh ach nach Truaillithe a tugadh

bhFacthas Truaillit

2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004

Drambhail

Talmhaiochta 1505 1107 1309 81 73 56 70 59 42
Séarachas 182 194 274 18 27 14 5 9 5
Drambhail 61 79 39 39 16 37 17 12 23
Tionsclaioch

Tradala

Doirteadh Ola 15 42 27 6 2 4 4 2 4
Nithe eile 9 27 21 2 4 3 2 4

lomléin 1772 1449 1670 146 122 114 98 86 77
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Tabla 19

Scraduithe ar Chosc Thruaillit Uisce
Ceantar Bhun an Phobail

2002 - 2004
Cineal Lion na Scruduithe Lion na dTeagmhas Lion na Rabhadh
Eisiltigh a Rinneadh ach nach Truaillithe a tugadh

bhFacthas Truaillit

2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004

Drambhail
Talmhaiochta 394 341 407 14 12 14 14 11 10

Drambhail
Séarachais 30 36 37 18 21 16

Doirteadh 41 32 29 4 2 3 4 0
Dramhaiola
Tionsclaiche
agus Tradala

lomlain 465 409 473 36 35 33 27 13 16
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TABLA 20A MIONSONRAI IONCHUISEAMH 2003

Cuiseanna Curtha i Leith ag:

An Cineél Coire

Foireann na
Gniomhaireachta

Constablacht Rioga Uladh An Garda Siochana

Rathuil Mirathuil Rathuil Mirathuil Rathuil ~ Mirathuil
1. lascaireacht slaite gan ceaddnas 7 1 — — —_ —
2. lascaireacht slaite taobh — — — — —
amuigh den tséasdr
lascaireacht slaite in achar coiscthe 1 — — — —
lascaireacht slaite mhidhleathach 5 3 — — — —
Seilbh gheafa nd ghléis — — — — — —
mhidhleathaigh
6. Coireanna sciobtha — — — — — —
7.  Treaspas ar lascach Measctha — — — — — —
8.  Usaid eangai in achar coiscthe — — — — — —
9.  Seilbh/Gséaid eangai midhleathai 4 11 — — — —
10. lascaireacht le heangach i — 1 — — — —
dtréimhse druidte no fionrai
11. Pearsa Udaraithe a ionsai/a chosc 9 — — — —
12. Seilbh mhidhleathach éisc 11 — — — —
13. Bad/feithicil a Gsaid le cuidiu le coir 3 — — — — —
14. Strus briste a sharu — — — — — —
15. Ligean d’dbhar diobhélach — 1 — — — —
dul isteach in abhainn
16. A bheith i do chuis le habhar 5 — — — — —
diobhalach dul isteach i abhainn
17. Coireanna a bhaineann le déileéil bradan — — — — — —
18. Inneall suite a chur suas/a Usaid 13 1 — — — —
IOMLAN NA GCUISEANNA 60 30 — — — —
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TABLA 20B: MIONSONRAI IONCHUISEAMH 2004

Cuiseanna Curtha i Leith ag:

An Cineél Coire Foireann na
Gniomhaireachta SPTE An Garda Siochana
Rathuil Mirathuil Rathuil Mirathail Rathuil Mirathail
1. lascaireacht slaite gan ceaddnas — 2 — — — —
2. lascaireacht slaite taobh amuigh 2 — — — —
den tséasur
lascaireacht slaite in achar coiscthe — — — _ _
lascaireacht slaite mhidhleathach 2 — — — —
Seilbh gheafa nd ghléis — — — — — —
mhidhleathaigh
6. Coireanna sciobtha — — — — _ _
7.  Treaspas ar lascach Measctha — — — — — —
8.  Usaid eangai in achar coiscthe 1 3 — — — —
9.  Seilbh/Gséaid eangai midhleathai 1 13 — — — —
10. lascaireacht le heangach i 2 2 — — — —
dtréimhse druidte né fionrai
11. Pearsa Udaraithe a ionsai/a chosc 2 — — — —
12. Seilbh mhidhleathach éisc — — _ _
13. Bad/feithicil a Usaid le — — — _ _
cuidiu le coir
14. Strus briste a sharu — — — — _ _
15. Ligean d’abhar diobhélach 3 — — — —
dul isteach in abhainn
16. A bheith i do chuis le habhar 3 — — — — _
diobhalach dul isteach in abhainn
17. Coireanna a bhaineann — — — — _ _
le déileail bradan
18. Inneall suite a chur suas/a Usaid 4 — — — — _
19. Gan ainm a thabhairt/ — — — _ _
mionsonrai bréagacha
IOMLAN NA GCUISEANNA 38 29 — — — _
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TABLA 21A

Gabhélacha 2003

Innill Eangacha Slata agus Baid Baidini  Geafanna Eisc Eile
Roithleain

CFCSE 165 10 22 152
SPTE 2 0
Garda 0 8
Cumainn
lascaireachta Slaite 52 0 2 0 0 0
IOMLAIN 219 10 24 0 160 6
TABLA 21B

Gabhalacha 2004
Innill Eangacha Braddga Slata agus Baid Baidini Geafanna Eisc Eile Baoite

Roithledin

CFCSE 145 2 12 14 0 0 129 6 4
SPTE 0 0 0 0 0 0
Garda 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cumainn 44 0 1 0 1 0
lascaireachta Slaite
IOMLAIN 189 2 16 16 1 0 137 7 4
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Tébla 22A

Ceadunais Slaite

2003 - 2004

2003 2003 2004 2004

Cur Sios Lion na Dleacht Lion na Dleacht

gCeadunas Cheadunais gCeadunas Cheadunais

Séasur 2,529 £54,373.50 2,781 £41,715

Garbhiascaireacht 109 £872 85 £1,275

— Daoine Fasta 1,340 £2,680 1,549 £3,098
Aosanaigh

Garbhiascaireacht — 10 £20 13 £26
Aosanaigh

Ceadu 3,595 £3,595 4,169 £4,169

Ceithre L& Déag 97 £1,018.50 95 £712.50

3La 838 £4,190 1,035 £3,622.50

IOMLAIN 8,518 £66,749 9,727 £54,618
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Tabla 23

Ceadanna lascaireachta Slaite 2003 — 2004

2003 2003 2004 2004
Cineal Ceada Lion £ Lion £
An Feabhal 14 £280 12 £240
An Feabhal — Aosanaigh 11 £110 4 £40
River Finn 129 £2,580 102 £2,040
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Tabla 24

Ceadunais Eangai 2003 — 2004

2003 2003 2003 2004 2004 2004
Cur Sios ar Lion na £ £ Lion na £ £
an Cheadunas gCeadunas a Taille Dleacht gCeadunas Taille Dleacht
Dioladh Cheadlnais ~ CheadUnais a Dioladh Cheadunais Cheadunais
a locadh

Maéla — — — — —
Eangach Tarraingthe
(An Feabhal) 50 163 8,150 51 168 8,568
Eangach Tarraingthe
(Suite) — — — 1 342 342
EangachTarraingthe
(An RO) — — — — — —
Eangach Tarraingthe
(Inbhear Chuil Damhcha) — — — — — —
Eangach Srutha
(Loch Feabhail) 6 230 1,380 7 237 1,659
Eangach Srutha
(Loch agus Farraige) 77 251 19,327 69 259 17,871
Eangach Srutha (farraige) 18 230 4,140 13 237 3,081
IOMLAIN 151 32,997 140 31,521
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Tabla 25

CeadUnais Déilealaithe Bradan 2003 — 2004

Ait Chonaithe an

Lion na gCeadunas

Lion na gCeadunas

Déilealai a Eisiodh 2003 2004
Poblacht na hEireann 8 8
Tuaisceart Eireann 20 17
IOMLAIN 28 25
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FOYLE, CARLINGFORD AND IRISH LIGHTS COMMISSION
LOUGHS AGENCY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003

Foreword
The Board presents the financial accounts for the year ended 31 December 2003.

Brief History

The Foyle Fisheries Commission was established in 1952 under legislation enacted in both jurisdictions with the primary
objective of the conservation of the Foyle waterway system. Following the Good Friday Agreement, the Foyle,
Carlingford and Irish Lights Commission (FCILC) was created to continue the work done by the Foyle Fisheries
Commission and to achieve similar objectives in Carlingford Lough and its waterways.

The FCILC became operational on 2 December 1999 at which time the assets and liabilities of the Foyle Fisheries
Commission were transferred to the Loughs Agency.

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with:

* Aform directed by and approved by the Department of Finance and Personnel and the Department of Finance
as provided for in the Body’s Financial Memorandum.

e The annual reports and accounts guidance provided by the Department of Finance and Personnel, and the
Department of Finance.
Statutory Background

The British/Irish Agreement Act 1999 and the North/South (Implementation Bodies) (N.1.) Order 1999 provided for
the transfer of the powers of the Foyle Fisheries Commission to a new body, The Foyle, Carlingford and Irish Lights
Commission (FCILC). The FCILC is composed of two agencies, the Loughs Agency and the Irish Lights Commission.
The functions of the Irish Lights Commission have not yet transferred to the FCILC, as this requires amendment to the
current United Kingdom legislation.

These accounts deal with the Loughs Agency of the FCILC. The Lights Agency is not in operational existence.

Result for the Year

The Loughs Agency is jointly funded by the Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources, and the
Department of Agriculture and Rural Development (the Departments). The Loughs Agency incurred a deficit of
£202,865 Stg/€293,373 for the year ended 31 December 2003 (2002: surplus of £116,867 Stg/€186,011)
Performance Targets

The Draft Annual Reports and Accounts guidance for North/South Implementation Bodies (published February 2001)
requires the reporting of financial performance against key targets. During the previous year (2001), the Agency prepared
and obtained the approval from the North/South Ministerial Council, of a corporate plan for 2002-2004 and a business
plan for 2002. As the activities of the Loughs Agency do not correlate with measuring its performance against financial
targets, the Agency has not reported performance targets in these accounts.

Principal Activities

The strategic priorities of the Loughs Agency can be grouped into 4 major areas:

1) Fisheries management and development

2) Conservation and protection of fisheries

3) Shellfish and aquaculture

4) Marine tourism

The Annual Report provides further detail of the Loughs Agency’s work on these areas during the year.

Changes in Fixed Assets
Details of the movement in fixed assets are set out in note 7 to the accounts.
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FOYLE, CARLINGFORD AND IRISH LIGHTS COMMISSION
LOUGHS AGENCY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003 (contd)
Research and Development

The North/South Ministerial Council, during 2001, approved expenditure by the Agency on a programme of research
to investigate the genetic profiling of the salmon in the Foyle catchment. This is to be undertaken by the Department of
Agriculture for Northern Ireland, the Marine Institute and Queen’s University, Belfast. This work will be carried out from
2002 to 2004. It is intended that the results will be incorporated into the Agency’s management strategy for salmon. Total
expenditure on this programme in 2003 was £1,429/€2,067 (2002: £43,352/€69,001).

Post Balance Sheet Events

There have been no significant events since the year end that would affect these accounts.

Charitable Donations
The Loughs Agency made no charitable donations during the year.

Board Members

Mr Peter Savage Chairperson
Lord Cooke of Islandreagh Vice Chairperson
Mr Jack Allen

Ms Siobhan Logue

Mr Keith Anderson

Mr Joseph Martin

Mr Dick Blakiston-Houston
Mr Francis Feely

Dr Patrick Griffin

Mr Andrew Ward

Mr Tarlach O’Crossain

Ms Jacqui McConville

The present board members were appointed with effect from 12 December 2002. The North/South Ministerial Council’s
plenary meeting in Armagh on 13 December 1999 confirmed the creation of the original board of the Foyle, Carlingford
and Irish Lights Commission. The positions of the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson were confirmed at the
North/South Ministerial Council’s sectoral meeting for the Trade and Business Development Body on 21 January 2000.

Board Members’ Responsibilities

The board monitors and directs the work of the Loughs Agency towards the achievement of the objectives approved by
the North/South Ministerial Council. These objectives are fully detailed in the Agency’s corporate and business plans.
They require the Agency to provide sustainable benefits to the economy, the environment and to society in the Foyle and
Carlingford areas through the conservation, protection, development, and management of water based resources. They
also require the Agency to raise public awareness of the resources of the waterways of the area and deliver these
improvements through the development of partnerships with the users of the catchments.

Employment Objectives

The Loughs Agency is committed to providing information to employees and to consulting them on appropriate matters.
The Loughs Agency follows the Northern Ireland Civil Service Code of Practice on Employment of Disabled People and
aims to ensure that disablement is not a bar to recruitment or advancement.
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FOYLE, CARLINGFORD AND IRISH LIGHTS COMMISSION
LOUGHS AGENCY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003 (contd)
Payment to Suppliers
The Loughs Agency is committed to the prompt payment of bills for goods and services received within 30 days, in
accordance with the Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998. During the year 97% (2002: 98%) of bills
were paid within this standard.
Health and Safety
The Loughs Agency is committed to adhering to all existing legislation on health and safety at work to ensure that staff
and customers enjoy the benefits of a safe environment.
Future Developments

The future developments in the Loughs Agency’s activities are more fully detailed in the Annual report that accompanies
these financial statements. The most significant development that will impact on the work of the Loughs Agency will be
following the implementation of the amended Foyle Fisheries Acts, which will fully roll out the responsibilities of the
Agency in the areas of Aquaculture, Shellfisheries and Marine Tourism.

Accountable Person
Mr Derick Anderson, Chief Executive, is the accountable person of the Loughs Agency.

D ANDERSON
Chief Executive

Date 20th October 2004
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FOYLE, CARLINGFORD AND IRISH LIGHTS COMMISSION
LOUGHS AGENCY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003

Statement of Accountable Person’s Responsibilities

The Department of Finance and Personnel and the Department of Finance have directed the Loughs Agency to prepare
a statement of accounts for each financial year in the form and on the basis set out in the accounts direction on page 132.
The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the Agency’s state of affairs at the
year end and of its income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the financial year.

In preparing the accounts, the Loughs Agency is required to:

e Observe the accounts direction issued by the sponsor departments, including the relevant accounting disclosure
requirements, and apply accounting policies on a consistent basis;

* Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

e State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed and disclose and explain any material
departures in the financial statements;

e Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Agency
will continue in operation.

The Chief Executive’s responsibilities as the accountable person for the Loughs Agency, including responsibility for the
propriety and regularity of the public finances and for the keeping of proper records, are set out in the Agency’s Financial
Memorandum.
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FOYLE, CARLINGFORD AND IRISH LIGHTS COMMISSION
LOUGHS AGENCY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003

Statement on the System of Internal Control

As accountable person, | have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control, which supports the
achievement of departmental policies, aims and objectives, as set out by the departments’ Ministers whilst safeguarding
the public funds and departmental assets for which 1 am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities
assigned to me in Government Accounting.

The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and
objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.

Internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify the principal risks to the achievement of
departmental policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the nature and extent of those risks and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. This process has been in place for the year ended 31 December 2003 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and accounts, and it accords with Treasury guidance.

As accountable person, | also have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of internal control. The Loughs Agency
has established the following processes:

e Comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget that is reviewed and agreed by the senior management
and audit committee;

e Regular reviews by management of financial reports including bank reconciliations, payment schedules, grant in
aid and other income;

»  Clearly defined capital investment control guidelines;
» Appropriate formal project management disciplines.

e In December 2003 a meeting was held to update the risks previously identified and update the Draft Risk
Register. In addition actions were identified and allocated to relevant Loughs Agency officers/staff.

* The Board approved the Draft Risk Register on 24th March 2004.

e Three meetings of the Audit and Finance and Personnel Committee took place in 2003 at which the progress of
the risk management process was reviewed, and all Internal Audit reports were addressed.

The Loughs Agency has an agreement with the Internal Audit Units of the Department of Agriculture and Rural
Development and the Department of Communications, Marine and Natural resources to carry out the internal audit
testing of the Agency. The work of the internal audit units is informed by analysis of the risk to which the Loughs Agency
is exposed and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis. The internal audit units provide a report on the
internal audit activity in the Loughs Agency. The report includes an independent opinion on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Loughs Agency’s system of internal control. In their 2002/03 Annual Assurance Statement, Internal
Audit identified a number of areas of concern. Management has dealt with the majority of these. Those that remain
outstanding fall into two categories, those which management has plans in place to address, and those, which are
dependent upon the completion of the staffing review.

My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal audit units of the
departments, and the executive managers within the Loughs Agency who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework, and comments made by the external auditors in their management letter
and other reports.

D ANDERSON
Chief Executive

Date 20th October 2004
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Foyle Carlingford and Irish Lights Commission

The Certificate of the Comptrollers and Auditors General to the House of Commons
and the Houses of the Oireachtas

We have audited the financial statements on pages 118 to 132. Our audit has been carried out pursuant to the provisions
of the North/South Co-operation (Implementation Bodies) (Northern Ireland) Order 1999 and the British-Irish
Agreement Act 1999 which require us to audit and certify, in co-operation, the financial statements presented to us by
the Body.

Respective responsibilities of the Board, the Chief Executive and the Auditors

The responsibilities of the Board and the Chief Executive, including those pertaining to the preparation of the accounts
and the regularity of the financial transactions are set out in the Foreword to the Accounts on pages 111 to 113 and the
Statement of the Agency’s and Chief Executive’s responsibilities on page 4. It is our responsibility to audit the accounts.
As a result of our audit we express an opinion on the accounts.

We review whether the statement on page 115 reflects the Agency’s compliance with applicable guidance on corporate
governance and report any material instance where it does not do so, or if the statement is misleading or inconsistent
with other information we are aware of from our audit of the accounts. We also report, if, in our opinion, the Foreword
or other information in the Annual Report is not consistent with the accounts.

Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board.

An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts, disclosures and regularity of financial
transactions included in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by
the Board and Chief Executive in the preparation of the account, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the Agency’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the accounts
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by error, or by fraud or other irregularity and that, in all material
respects, the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes intended by the Northern Ireland Assembly,
Parliament and Dail Eireann and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. However, the
evidence available to us was limited because, as explained in Note 2 to the accounts, no actuarial review has been
commissioned since 1993 at which time the accrued pension liability was STG£1,308,900 (€1,854,319). Therefore, we
were unable to assess whether the current provision of STG£459,071 (€650,366) is sufficient. There were no other
satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to confirm that the Superannuation Scheme Provision is properly
stated.

In forming our opinion we have also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts.

Qualified opinion arising from limitation in audit scope
In our opinion:

e except for any adjustments that might have been found necessary had we been able to obtain sufficient evidence
concerning the Superannuation Scheme Provision proper accounting records have been kept by the Agency and
the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Agency at 31 December 2003 and of its
transactions, total recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the accounts direction issued under the governing legislation.

 Inall material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the purpose intended by the Northern
Ireland Assembly, Parliament and Dail Eireann and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

In respect alone of the limitation on our work relating to the Superannuation Scheme Provision:

e \We have not obtained all the information and explanations that we considered necessary for the purposes of our
audit;
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e \We were unable to determine whether proper accounting records had been maintained.

J M Dowdall

Comptroller and Auditor General for Northern Ireland
106 University Street

Belfast

BT7 1EU

18th November 2004
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FOYLE, CARLINGFORD AND IRISH LIGHTS COMMISSION
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Income and Expenditure Account
for the year ended 31 December 2003
2002-03  2001-02  2002-03  2001-02
Note £ Stg £ Stg € S
Income

SN

Revenue grants from Departments 1,038,172 1,367,100 1,501,352 2,175,945

Ordinary income 5 124,484 164,027 180,023 261,074
EU and government grants released 10 297,430 162,493 430,128 258,632
EU and government grants on disposal of assets (438) (11,644) (633) (18,533)
Water pollution 235,092 225,300 339,978 358,599
Bailiffing 18,162 12,850 26,265 20,452
Interest received 5,036 3,362 7,283 5,351
1,717,938 1,923,488 2,484,396 3,061,520
Expenditure
Staff costs 3 1,027,217 897,422 1,485,510 1,428,382
Administration 6 616,321 651,844 891,292 1,037,508
Currency exchange (1,164) 4,151 (1,683) 6,607
Depreciation 7 278,429 253,204 402,650 403,012
1,920,803 1,806,621 2,777,769 2,875,509
Operating (Deficit)/Surplus
Transferred to Reserves 12 (202,865) 116,867  (293,373) 186,011

All amounts relate to continuing activities.

The Loughs Agency has no recognised gains or losses other than those included in the results above, and therefore no
separate statement of recognised gains and losses has been presented.

The notes on pages 121 to 132 form part of these accounts.
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Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2003

Fixed Assets
Tangible fixed assets

Current Assets
Debtors and prepayments
Cash at bank and in hand

Current Liabilities
Creditors and accruals

Net Current Assets

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

Provisions
Superannuation Scheme
Net Assets

Represented By
Capital grants
General reserve

Note

~

oo

11

10
12

The notes on pages 121 to 132 form part of these accounts.

D ANDERSON
Chief Executive

Date: 20th October 2004
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2003 2002 2003 2002

£ Stg £ Stg € €
3,711,649 3,737,193 5,258,293 5,721,344
3,711,649 3,737,193 5,258,293 5,721,344
216,577 346,519 306,825 530,492
248,612 184,903 352,209 283,071
465,189 531,422 659,034 813,564
(259,294)  (145,355) (367,342)  (222,527)
205,895 386,067 291,692 591,037
3,917,544 4123260 5,549,985 6,312,381
(459,071)  (429,017)  (650,366)  (656,791)
3,458,473 3,694,243 4,899,619 5,655,590
3,288,475 3,324,580 4,658,783 5,089,666
169,998 369,663 240,836 565,924
3,458,473 3,694,243 4,899,619 5,655,590
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2003

Note

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from
Continuing Activities

Servicing of finance — interest received
Capital expenditure and financial investment

Net cash outflow before financing
Financing

Increase in Cash

Reconciliation of Operating Surplus/(Deficit) to Net
Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Continuing Activities

Operating deficit before interest

(Profit)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets 6
Depreciation 7
Capital grant release 10

Profit on disposal of capital grant assets
Increase in debtors

(Increase)/decrease in creditors and provisions
Exchange difference

Net Cash Outflow from Continuing Activities

Capital Expenditure and Financial Investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets 7
Proceeds from disposal of tangible fixed assets

Net Cash Outflow from Capital Expenditure
and Financial Investment

Reconciliation of Financing
Capital grants received 4

Net Cash Inflow from Financing

Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to
Movement in Cash
Increase/(Decrease) in cash in year

Explained as follows:
At 1 January
At 31 December

Cash at bank and in hand
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2002-03  2001-02  2002-03  2001-02
£ Stg £ Stg 'S 'S
35,386 91,884 28,178 132,211
5,036 3,362 7,283 5,351
(240,800)  (473,417)  (340,456)  (722,973)
(200,378)  (378,171)  (304,995)  (585,411)
264,087 502,800 374,132 769,884
63,709 124,719 69,137 184,473
(207,901) 113,505 (300,656) 180,660
(12,085)  (15420)  (17,477)  (24,543)
278,429 253204 402,650 403,012
(297,430)  (162,493)  (430,128)  (258,632)
438 11,644 633 18,533
129,942  (70,714) 223,667  (78,650)
143,993  (37,842) 138,390  (123,654)
_ — 11,099 15,485
35,386 91,884 28,178 132,211
(264,087)  (502,890)  (374,132)  (769,884)
23,287 29,473 33,676 46,911
(240,800)  (473,417)  (340,456)  (722,973)
264,087 502,890 374,132 769,884
264,087 502,800 374,132 769,884
63,709 124,719 69,137 184,473
184,903 60,184 283,072 98,598
248,612 184,903 352209 283,071
63,709 124,719 69,137 184,473
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Notes to the Accounts

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

()

©)

(d)

()

(f)

Basis of Accounting

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable
accounting standards. The significant accounting policies adopted are set out below. The Board members
consider that these accounting policies are suitable, have been consistently applied, and are supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

From 1 January 2003 a policy has been put in place whereby only assets (or groups of assets where appropriate)
with costs greater than £1,000/€1,446 have been capitalised. Prior to this all items of a capital nature were
capitalised regardless of cost.

Fixed assets are stated on the balance sheet at cost less depreciation at annual rates calculated to write off the cost
of the assets over their estimated useful lives. The Agency uses the straight line method of depreciation.

The rates in use are as follows

Land & buildings, Interpretive Centre 4%

Boats & boating equipment 15%

Slipway 2%

Equipment & plant, office equipment, fixtures & fittings 2,4,10, 15, 20, 25%
Computer equipment 10, 15, 20, 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

Currency

The financial statements are stated denominated in £Stg as the Board members consider this to be the base
currency. The figures contained in the Income and Expenditure Account were converted using the average Euro
exchange rate for the year and the Balance Sheet using the rate at the year end. The gain/loss on exchange, which
arises from transactions effected in Euro, is deducted from/added to that part of the Loughs Agency’s deficit,
which is funded by the Department of Communications, Marine and Natural resources in the Republic of
Ireland and the Department of Agriculture and Rural Development in Northern Ireland.

Pension Costs

The Loughs Agency, under the Foyle Area (Pension) (Amendment) Regulations 1979 made in exercise of its
powers under paragraph 16 of the Third Schedule to that Act, provides retirement benefits to its employees.
Where a provision exists for a beneficiary, any pension paid is charged firstly against this provision. Should the
provision be exhausted, the cost of any pension paid is charged to the income and expenditure account. During
the period, one member of staff was on secondment from the Department of Agriculture and Rural
Development. Secondees from the Northern Ireland Civil Service continue to be members of the Principal Civil
Service Pension Scheme (Northern Ireland).

EU and Government Grants

Capital expenditure incurred to acquire fixed assets and investments is credited to the government grant reserve
from grant in aid received. EU and Government grants are released to the Revenue Account at the same
percentage rate as the assets to which they relate are depreciated. Any surplus arising on revaluation of tangible
fixed assets is credited to the government grant reserve. On disposal of a tangible fixed asset or redemption of a
fixed investment where applicable, the profit or loss arising is credited or charged to the Income and Expenditure
account. A transfer from the grant reserve equal to the profit or loss arising is made to the Income and
Expenditure account. The balance remaining on the grant reserve in relation to the asset disposed, which
represents proceeds on disposal is then transferred to the general reserve account.

Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to administrative costs on a straight line basis over the terms of
the lease.
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2 SUPERANNUATION SCHEME

The Loughs Agency came into existence on 2 December 1999. On that date the Loughs Agency assumed all the
assets and liabilities of the Foyle Fisheries Commission. The Agency operated a defined benefit pension scheme for
current and former employees, which provides for benefits based on final pensionable pay.

An actuarial review of the scheme has not been carried out since 1993, at which time the accrued liability was
calculated at £1,308,900.

Whilst the Agency is obliged to meet all future pension commitments, no provision for any obligation in excess of
£459,071/€ 650,366 has been made in these accounts.

Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 17 covers retirement benefits and applies to all accounts with account year ends
from June 2001. The objective of the FRS is to ensure that:

(a) Financial statements reflect at fair value the assets and liabilities arising from an employer’s retirement benefit
obligation and any related funding;

(b) The operating costs of providing retirement benefits to employees are recognised in the accounting period(s)
in which the benefits are earned by the employees, and the related finance costs and any other changes in
value of the assets and liabilities are recognised in the accounting period in which they arise; and

(c) The financial statements contain adequate disclosure of the cost of providing retirement benefits and the
related gains, losses, assets and liabilities.

The Department of Finance and Personnel, the Department of Finance and the Government Actuaries Department
have been preparing a new pension scheme specifically for North/South Implementation Bodies. Although work on
the new scheme is fairly advanced, it is unlikely to be available to permanent staff until the end of 2004. An actuarial
valuation of the Agency’s pension liability will be carried out prior to joining this scheme. This should then enable
the Agency to comply with FRS 17.

STAFF COSTS AND BOARD REMUNERATION (in financial period 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003)

2003 2002

(@) The average monthly number of employees (full time equivalent) was:
Administrative 8 9
Field staff and inspectorate 35 31
Total 43 40

It should be noted that the average monthly number of staff includes a secondee from a different department.
(b) The costs incurred in respect of these employees were:

2003 2002 2003 2002

£ £ € €

Staff costs 777,700 686,130 1,124,671 1,092,079
Social security costs 53,785 43,971 77,781 69,986
Other pension costs 137,341 118,551 198,616 188,692
Total Staff Costs 968,826 848,652 1,401,068 1,350,757
Board remuneration 55,834 46,571 80,744 74,125
Social security costs 2,557 2,199 3,698 3,500
Total Board Costs 58,391 48,770 84,442 77,625
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Total Board and Staff Costs 1,027,217 897,422 1,485,510 1,428,382

(c) Excluding the Chief Executive, there were no employees whose remuneration exceeded £40,000/€57,846 per

annum.
(d) The Chief Executive’s emoluments including pension scheme contributions were as follows:
2003 2002 2003 2002
£ £ € €
65,829 60,309 95,469 95,991

The Chief Executive’s total emoluments of £65,829/€95,469comprise a salary of £57,309/€82,877 and
pension contributions of £3,202/€4,631. The benefit in kind, which relates to the provision of a motor vehicle,
attributed to the Chief Executive was £5,318/€7,961. The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the
Agency’s pension scheme.

(e) The total emoluments of the board members (including the chairperson) were as follows:

2003 2002 2003 2002
£ £ € €
55,834 48,770 80,744 77,625

() Number of board members (excluding the chairperson) whose emoluments fell within the following bands:

2003 2002
NIL — STG£5,000/€7,231 10 12
STG£5,001/€7,232 to STG£10,000/€14,462 2 2

(f) The chairperson’s emoluments amounted to £8,000/€11,569. Board members’ salaries are not pensionable.

4 REVENUE AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Revenue Grants Received in Year 2003 2002 2003 2002
£ £ € €

Department of Communications, Marine and
Natural Resources 519,086 683,550 750,676 1,087,972
Department of Agriculture and Rural Developments 519,086 683,550 750,676 1,087,973
Total 1,038,172 1,367,100 1,501,352 2,175,945
Capital Grants Received in Year 2003 2002 2003 2002
£ £ € €

Department of Communications, Marine and
Natural Resources 132,044 251,445 187,066 384,942
Department of Agriculture and Rural Developments 132,043 251,445 187,066 384,942
264,087 502,890 374,132 769,884
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5 ORDINARY INCOME

Normal Activities
Licence Duties
Fishery rent and rates

Other Activities
Fines and costs recovered
Sundry receipts

Total

6 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Ex gratia payments

Staff training

Bank charges

Postage

Advertising

Light and heat
Telephone

Operating lease - rent
Insurance

Audit

Accountancy

Motor vehicle expenses
Boat stores

Boat maintenance
Printing and stationery
Licence dealers commission
Maintenance and repairs
Miscellaneous

2003 2002 2003 2002

£ £ € €
107,593 149,076 155,596 237,277
2,926 2,468 4,231 3,928
110,519 151,544 159,827 241,205
11,772 10,974 17,024 17,467
2,193 1,509 3,171 2,402
13,965 12,483 20,195 19,869
124,484 164,027 180,022 261,074
2003 2002 2003 2002

£ £ € €

— 1,200 — 1,910
10,555 8,346 15,264 13,284
3,132 3,191 4,529 5,079
6,094 5,750 8,813 9,152
26,854 22,163 38,835 35,276
16,142 6,276 23,344 9,989
43,696 35,741 63,191 56,887
5,000 5,000 7,231 7,958
70,650 69,003 102,170 109,829
17,000 15,000 24,585 23,875
17,908 60,539 25,898 96,357
51,641 33,791 74,681 53,783
2,083 255 3,012 406
20,585 48,427 29,769 77,079
43,064 21,046 62,277 33,498
12,577 10,816 18,188 17,215
16,501 23,776 23,863 37,843
2,495 4,409 3,608 7,018
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Travelling and conference expenses
Hospitality

Health and safety

Cleaning

Computer consumables and maintenance
Other equipment costs

Subscriptions

Surveys

Legal and professional fees

(Profit)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Purchases ledger old balances written off
Research programme

Tagging expenses

Interpretive centre expenses

Equality scheme

Bad and doubtful debts

Counter site expenses

LOUGHS AGENCY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
2003 2002 2003 2002
£ £ € €
35,997 29,230 52,057 46,524
9,620 8,789 13,912 13,989
12,874 20,185 18,618 32,127
8,269 6,403 11,958 10,191
19,390 4,494 28,041 7,153
21,624 4,293 31,272 6,833
10,791 10,480 15,605 16,680
9,624 10,738 13,918 17,091
59,658 92,737 86,274 147,605
(12,085) (15,420) (17,477) (24,543)
— 1,827 — 2,908
20,839 43,352 30,136 69,001
15,647 11,696 22,628 18,616
19,033 8,388 27,525 13,351
— 18,777 — 29,886
3,849 16,660 5,566 26,518
15,214 4,486 22,001 7,140
616,321 651,844 891,292 1,037,508
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8 DEBTORS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade Debtors and Prepayments
Trade debtors

Prepayments

Water Pollution

Bailiffing

Insurance

Fishing rent & rates
International Fund for Ireland

Debtors due after more than one year
International Fund for Ireland

Total

9 CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Trade creditors
Accruals

Total

10 CAPITAL GRANTS

(a) EU Surveillance Grant (DOM)
At 1 January

Received during year
Amortised in year

Disposal of grant assets

At 31 December

2003
£

22,013
52,921
58,724
18,162

9,050

4,936
50,771

216,577

216,577

2003
£

32,787
226,507

259,294
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2002
£

15,070
46,049
185,634
46,527

2,468

295,748

50,771

346,519

2002
£

200
145,155

145,355

2003 2002
€ €
31,186 23,071
74,973 70,497
83,194 284,192
25,730 71,229
12,821 —
6,993 3,778
71,928 —
306,825 452,767
— 77,726
306,825 530,493
2003 2002
'S S
46,450 306
320,892 222,221
367,342 222,527
2003 2002

£ £
26,739 44,053
(22,593) (14,310)
4,146 29,743
— (3,004)
4,146 26,739
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(b) Salmonoid Enhancement Programme (DARD)
At 1 January
Received during year
Amortised in year

At 31 December

(c) Building Fund (DARD/DOM)
At 1 January
Received during year
Amortised in year

At 31 December

(d) Finn Basin Project (EU Funding)
At 1 January
Received during year
Amortised in year

At 31 December

(e) Salmonoid Enhancement Programme (2) (DARD)
At 1 January
Received during year
Amortised in year

At 31 December

(f) Additional Angling Spaces
At 1 January
Received during year
Amortised in year

At 31 December

128

2003 2002

£ £
441,666 456,529
(69,92:) (14,86;)
371,745 441,666
1,771,892 1,845,964
(79,38;) (74,07;)
1,692,503 1,771,892
4,176 6,245
(2,73;) (2,06;)
1,444 4,176
57,935 59,148
(1,21;) (1,21;)
56,722 57,935
86,456 88,289
(1,70;) (1,83;)
84,756 86,456
2003 2002

£ £
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(9) International Fund for Ireland

At 1 January
Received during year
Amortised in year

At 31 December

(h) Water Hatchery (Landfill Tax)

)

At 1 January
Received during year
Amortised in year

At 31 December

Tourist Angling Measure (DOM)
At 1 January

Received during year

Amortised in year

At 31 December

Capital Expenditure Grant (DOM/DARD)
At 1 January

Received during year

Amortised in year

Disposal of grant assets

At 31 December

Summary of Capital Grants

Closing Balances as at 31 December

EU Surveillance Grant (DOM)

Salmonoid Enhancement Programme (DARD)
Building Fund (DARD/DOM)

Finn Basin Project (EU Funding)

2003 2002

£ £

49,479 50,042

(563) (563)

48,916 49,479

9,133 9,533

(400) (400)

8,733 9,133

253,148 258,782

(29,999) (5,634)

223,149 253,148

623,956 168,602

264,087 502,890

(88,920) (47,536)

799,123 623,956

(2,762) —

796,361 623,956

2003 2002 2003 2002
£ £ € €
4,146 26,739 5,874 40,935
371,745 441,666 526,651 676,155
1,692,503 1,771,892 2,397,769 2,712,625
1,444 4,176 2,046 6,393
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Summary of Capital Grants

Salmonoid Enhancement Programme (2) (DARD)
Additional Angling Spaces

International Fund for Ireland

Wiater Hatchery (Landfill Tax)

Tourist Angling Measure (DOM)

Capital Expenditure Grant (DOM/DARD)

Amortised in Year
EU Surveillance Grant (DOM)
Salmonoid Enhancement Programme (DARD)
Building Fund (DARD/DOM)
Finn Basin Project (EU Funding)
Salmonoid Enhancement Programme (2) (DARD)
Additional Angling Spaces
International Fund for Ireland
Wiater Hatchery (Landfill Tax)
Tourist Angling Measure (DOM)
Capital Expenditure Grant (DOM/DARD)

11 SUPERANNUATION SCHEME

At 1 January

Employee’s contributions

Loughs Agency’s contributions
Contributions to pensions by Loughs Agency

Payments during the year
Annual pensions
Lump sum payments
At 31 December

LOUGHS AGENCY
2003 2002 2003 2002
£ £ € €
56,722 57,935 80,358 88,694
84,756 86,456 120,074 132,357
48,916 49,479 69,299 75,748
8,733 9,133 12,372 13,982
223,149 253,148 316,135 387,549
796,361 623,956 1,128,205 955,228
3,288,475 3,324,580 4,658,783 5,089,666
22,593 14,310 32,673 22,777
69,921 14,863 101,116 23,657
79,389 74,072 114,808 117,897
2,732 2,069 3,951 3,293
1,213 1,213 1,754 1,931
1,700 1,833 2,458 2,917
563 563 814 896
400 400 578 637
29,999 5,634 43,383 8,967
88,920 47,536 128,592 75,660
297,430 162,493 430,127 258,632
2003 2002
£ £
429,017 423,571
36,127 33,130
36,127 33,131
101,214 85,420
602,485 575,252
(118,965) (101,303)
(24,449) (44,932)
459,071 429,017
€650,366 €656,791

At 31 December — Euro
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Charge to Income and Expenditure Account 2003 2002 2003 2002
£ £ € €
Loughs Agency’s contributions for staff 36,127 33,131 52,245 52,733
Loughs Agency’s contributions for pensioners 101,214 85,420 146,371 135,959
137,341 118,551 198,616 188,692

The pension scheme currently operated by the Loughs Agency is covered by the Foyle Area (Pension) (Amendment)
Regulations 1979. Section 9 of the regulations covers retirement on medical grounds. This section states that when
a person retires on medical grounds then the length of pensionable service to be used when calculating the lump sum
and annual pension should be increased as follows:

a) If the pensionable service is less than ten years then it should be doubled

b) If it is ten years or more it should be increased to either twenty years or by six years.

During the 2003 year, one member of staff retired on medical grounds. The length of pensionable service was
increased by six and two thirds rather than six years. This was to ensure parity between Loughs Agency staff and
Northern Ireland Civil Service staff. The difference between the amounts due to the individual for both lump sum
and pension when calculated using six years and six and two thirds years was £728/€1,031.

During the 2002 year, one member of staff retired on medical grounds. The length of pensionable service was
increased by six and two thirds rather than six years. The difference between the amounts due to the individual for
both lump sum and pension when calculated using six years and six and two thirds years was £687€973.

Pension payments were also made to individuals who retired in previous years and who had their length of service
increased by the additional two thirds of a year. The value of these additional payments is not known, but will be
small and not material.

GENERAL RESERVE

2003 2002 2003 2002
£ £ € €
At 1 January 369,663 238,148 565,924 390,151
Transfer of capital grant on disposal of grant assets 3,200 14,648 4,899 23,314
(Deficit)/Surplus for year (202,865) 116,867 (293,373) 186,011
Exchange difference — — (36,614) (33,552)
At 31 December 169,998 369,663 240,836 565,924
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2003 2002 2003 2002
£ £ € €
Contracted for NIL NIL NIL NIL
Authorised by Loughs Agency but not yet
contracted for NIL NIL NIL NIL
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OPERATING LEASE

At 31 December 2003 the Agency had an annual commitment under a short term business letting agreement for the
ground floor office at Old Quay Lane, Carlingford of £5,000.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Foyle, Carlingford and Irish Lights Commission (Loughs Agency) is a North/South Implementation Body
sponsored by the Department of Agriculture and Rural Development in Northern Ireland, and the Department of
Communications, Marine and Natural Resources in the Republic of Ireland.

The above named departments are regarded as related parties. During the period Loughs Agency has had various
transactions with these departments.

None of the members of key management staff or other related parties has undertaken any material transactions with
the Loughs Agency during the period.

CONTINGENT LOSS/GAIN

There were two ongoing tribunal cases (from the same claimant) against the Agency at the balance sheet date. The
potential costs to the Agency were estimated at £35,000/€49,585. As a result of the death of the claimant in early
2004, the Loughs Agency has obtained assurance from their legal advisors that the cases will not be pursued.

During 2003 the Loughs Agency was pursuing a claim against a limited company for compensation following a fish
kill. A settlement was reached whereby the limited company were to pay damages to the sum of £30,000/A42,501
to the Loughs Agency and meet the legal costs of the claim.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Financial Instruments

Due to the non — trading nature of its activities and the way the Agency is financed, the Agency is not exposed
to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. The Agency has very limited powers to borrow or invest
surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities and are not
held to change the risks facing the Agency in undertaking its activities.

The Agency’s financial instruments mainly consist of cash, trade debtors and trade creditors.
(b) Liquidity, Interest rate and Foreign Currency Risk

The Agency’s net revenue resource requirements are financed by resources voted annually by the Assembly, or
Parliament and the Oireachtas, as largely is its capital expenditure. It is not therefore exposed to significant
liquidity risks. The Agency does not access funds from commercial sources and so is not exposed to significant
interest rate risk. The Agency’s transactions are effected in the currencies of each part of Ireland, with realised
gains and losses being taken to the Income and Expenditure account. The Agency’s exposure to foreign currency
risk is not significant as it receives agreed levels of funding from its sponsoring departments, Department of
Agriculture and Rural Development and Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources, in
sterling and euro respectively and does not engage in trading activities. However as the Agency receives one half
of its funding from Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources in Euro, yet discharges the
majority of its transactions in sterling, it is exposed to foreign currency risk to a limited degree.
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ACCOUNTS DIRECTION

ACCOUNTS DIRECTION GIVEN BY THE NORTHERN DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURAL AND RURAL
DEVELOPMENT, THE SOUTHERN DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNICATIONS, MARINE AND NATURAL
RESOURCES WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE FINANCE DEPARTMENTS, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
NORTH/SOUTH CO-OPERATION (IMPLEMENTATION BODIES) (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1999
AND THE SOUTHERN BRITISH-IRISH AGREEMENT ACT 1999

The annual accounts shall give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial year,
and the state of affairs as at the year end. Subject to this requirement, the Loughs Agency shall prepare for the financial
period ended 31 December 2000 and subsequent years in accordance with:

a) The North/South Implementation Bodies Annual reports and Accounts Guidance;

b) Other guidance which Finance Departments may issue from time to time in respect of accounts which are
required to give a true and fair view;

¢) Any other specific disclosures required by sponsoring departments.

Except where agreed otherwise with finance departments, in which case the exception shall be described in the notes to
the accounts.

Signed by authority of the Department of Agriculture and Signed by authority of the Department of

Rural Development Communications, Marine and Natural Resources
Gerald Lavery Maurice Mullen

Date 3rd August 2001 Date 6th September 2001
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Foreword
The Board presents the financial accounts for the year ended 31 December 2004.

Brief History

The Foyle Fisheries Commission was established in 1952 under legislation enacted in both jurisdictions with the primary
objective of the conservation of the Foyle waterway system. Following the Good Friday Agreement, the Foyle,
Carlingford and Irish Lights Commission (FCILC) was created to continue the work done by the Foyle Fisheries
Commission and to achieve similar objectives in Carlingford Lough and its waterways.

The FCILC became operational on 2 December 1999 at which time the assets and liabilities of the Foyle Fisheries
Commission were transferred to the Loughs Agency.

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with:

* Aform directed by and approved by the Department of Finance and Personnel and the Department of Finance
as provided for in the Body’s Financial Memorandum.

e The annual reports and accounts guidance provided by the Department of Finance and Personnel, and the
Department of Finance.
Statutory Background

The British/Irish Agreement Act 1999 and the North/South (Implementation Bodies) (N.1.) Order 1999 provided for
the transfer of the powers of the Foyle Fisheries Commission to a new body, The Foyle, Carlingford and Irish Lights
Commission (FCILC). The FCILC is composed of two agencies, the Loughs Agency and the Irish Lights Commission.
The functions of the Irish Lights Commission have not yet transferred to the FCILC, as this requires amendment to the
current United Kingdom legislation.

These accounts deal with the Loughs Agency of the FCILC. The Lights Agency is not in operational existence.

Result for the Year

The Loughs Agency is jointly funded by the Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources, and the
Department of Agriculture and Rural Development (the Departments). The Loughs Agency incurred a surplus of
£89,677 Stg/€130,956 for the year ended 31 December 2004 (2003: deficit of £202,865 Stg/€293,373).
Performance Targets

The Draft Annual Reports and Accounts guidance for North/South Implementation Bodies (published February 2001)
requires the reporting of financial performance against key targets. During the year, the Agency prepared and obtained
the approval from the North/South Ministerial Council, of a corporate plan for 2005-2007 and a business plan for 2005.
As the activities of the Loughs Agency do not correlate with measuring its performance against financial targets, the
Agency has not reported performance targets in these accounts.

Principal Activities

The strategic priorities of the Loughs Agency can be grouped into 4 major areas:

1) Fisheries management and development

2) Conservation and protection of fisheries

3) Shellfish and aquaculture

4) Marine tourism

The Annual Report provides further detail of the Loughs Agency’s work on these areas during the year.

Changes in Fixed Assets
Details of the movement in fixed assets are set out in Note 7 to the accounts.
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Research and Development

The North/South Ministerial Council, during 2001, approved expenditure by the Agency on a programme of research
to investigate the genetic profiling of the salmon in the Foyle catchment. This was undertaken by the Department of
Agriculture for Northern Ireland, the Marine Institute and Queen’s University, Belfast. This work was completed in 2004.
The results are incorporated into the Agency’s management strategy for salmon. Total expenditure on this programme in
2004 was £37,429/€55,163 (2003: £1,429/€2,067).

Post Balance Sheet Events

There have been no significant events since the year end that would affect these accounts.

Charitable Donations
The Loughs Agency made no charitable donations during the year.

Board Members

Mr Peter Savage Chairperson
Lord Cooke of Islandreagh Vice Chairperson
Mr Jack Allen

Ms Siobhan Logue

Mr Keith Anderson (Resigned 17th November 2004)
Mr Joseph Martin

Mr Dick Blakiston-Houston

Mr Francis Feely

Dr Patrick Griffin

Mr Andrew Ward

Mr Tarlach O’Crossain

Ms Jacqui McConville

The present board members were appointed with effect from 12 December 2002. The North/South Ministerial Council’s
plenary meeting in Armagh on 13 December 1999 confirmed the creation of the original board of the Foyle, Carlingford
and Irish Lights Commission. The positions of the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson were confirmed at the
North/South Ministerial Council’s sectoral meeting for the Trade and Business Development Body on 21 January 2000.

Board Members’ Responsibilities

The board monitors and directs the work of the Loughs Agency towards the achievement of the objectives approved by
the North/South Ministerial Council. These objectives are fully detailed in the Agency’s corporate and business plans.
They require the Agency to provide sustainable benefits to the economy, the environment and to society in the Foyle and
Carlingford areas through the conservation, protection, development, and management of water based resources. They
also require the Agency to raise public awareness of the resources of the waterways of the area and deliver these
improvements through the development of partnerships with the users of the catchments.

Employment Objectives

The Loughs Agency is committed to providing information to employees and to consulting them on appropriate matters.
The Loughs Agency follows the Northern Ireland Civil Service Code of Practice on Employment of Disabled People and
aims to ensure that disablement is not a bar to recruitment or advancement.
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Payment to Suppliers
The Loughs Agency is committed to the prompt payment of bills for goods and services received within 30 days, in
accordance with the Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998. During the year 90.74% (2003: 97%) of
bills were paid within this standard.
Health and Safety
The Loughs Agency is committed to adhering to all existing legislation on health and safety at work to ensure that staff
and customers enjoy the benefits of a safe environment.
Future Developments

The most significant development that will impact on the work of the Loughs Agency will be following the
implementation of the amended Foyle Fisheries Acts, which will fully roll out the responsibilities of the Agency in the
areas of Aquaculture, Shellfisheries and Marine Tourism.

Accountable Person
Mr Derick Anderson, Chief Executive, is the accountable person of the Loughs Agency.

D Anderson
Chief Executive

23rd August 2005
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Statement of Accountable Person’s Responsibilities

The Department of Finance and Personnel and the Department of Finance have directed the Loughs Agency to prepare
a statement of accounts for each financial year in the form and on the basis set out in the accounts direction on page 186.
The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the Agency’s state of affairs at the
year end and of its income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the financial year.

In preparing the accounts, the Loughs Agency is required to:

e Observe the accounts direction issued by the sponsor departments, including the relevant accounting disclosure
requirements, and apply accounting policies on a consistent basis;

* Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

e State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed and disclose and explain any material
departures in the financial statements;

e Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Agency
will continue in operation.

The Chief Executive’s responsibilities as the accountable person for the Loughs Agency, including responsibility for the
propriety and regularity of the public finances and for the keeping of proper records, are set out in the Agency’s Financial
Memorandum.
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Statement on Internal Control

1.

Scope of Responsibility

As Accountable person, | have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control, that supports the
achievement of Agency’s policies, aims and objectives, as set out by the departments’ Ministers whilst safeguarding
the public funds and departmental assets for which 1 am personally responsible, in accordance with the
responsibilities assigned to me in Government Accounting.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the
risks to the achievement of the Agency’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The
system of internal control has been in place in the Loughs Agency for the year ended 31 December 2004 and up to
the date of approval of the annual report and accounts, and it accords with Treasury guidance.

Capacity to handle risk

The senior management takes responsibility for applying and overseeing the risk management process primarily to
ensure that it is operating as intended, to challenge content of the risk register and enable the Chief Executive to
report on the process to the Loughs Agency. In addition to reviewing the risk framework, all recommendations
received from both the internal and external auditors are reviewed, with controls being enhanced or introduced as
necessary.

All staff are expected to work within the Loughs Agency policies on risk management, alert management to emerging
risks or control weaknesses, participate fully in the risk management process and assume responsibility for risks and
controls within their own areas of work.

A training needs assessment was carried out in 2004 and the Loughs Agency is now in the process of developing
individual training plans. Whilst it will not be specific to risk management this will form part of the process.

The risk and control framework

The Loughs Agency developed a risk register during 2003 subsequently updated in 2004. The register identifies the
key risks facing the Loughs Agency and these have been categorised under headings. The register details
management’s assessment of the key risks and associated controls and actions required to mitigate these risks. Each
risk has been assessed for its severity and for the effectiveness of the controls currently operating.

Review of effectiveness

As accountable person, | have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. My
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal audit units of the
departments, and the executive managers within the Loughs Agency who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework, and comments made by the external auditors in their
management letter and other reports. | have been advised of the implications of the result of my review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Board of the Audit Committee and plan to address weaknesses
and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

As accountable person, | also have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of internal control. The Loughs
Agency has established the following processes:

e Comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget that is reviewed and agreed by the senior management
and audit committee;

* Regular reviews by management of financial reports including bank reconciliations, payment schedules, grant in
aid and other income;

» Clearly defined capital investment control guidelines;
» Appropriate formal project management disciplines.
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e In December 2003 a meeting was held to update the risks previously identified and update the Draft Risk
Register. In addition actions were identified and allocated to relevant Loughs Agency officers/staff.

* The Board approved the Draft Risk Register on 24th March 2004.

e Two meetings of the Audit and Finance and Personnel Committee took place in 2004 at which the progress of
the risk management process was reviewed, and all Internal Audit reports were addressed.

The Loughs Agency has an agreement with the Internal Audit Units of the Department of Agriculture and Rural
Development and the Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources to carry out the internal
audit testing of the Agency. The work of the internal audit units is informed by analysis of the risk to which the
Loughs Agency is exposed and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis.

6. Significant Internal Control Problems

The internal audit units provided a report on the internal audit activity in the Loughs Agency during 2004. The
report included an independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Loughs Agency’s system of internal
control. In their 2004 Annual Assurance Statement (presented January 2005), Internal Audit identified a number of
areas of concern and these included

* The organisational structure is currently under review and has been from 2001 with no resolution to date of the
staffing issues;

e There is an over reliance on individual members of staff in relation to financial tasks, IT management and policy
procedures;

e Poor debt management procedures;
e No fixed asset register
Management has plans in place to address the above issues.

D ANDERSON
Chief Executive

Date 23rd August 2005
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Foyle Carlingford and Irish Lights Commission

The Certificate of the Comptrollers and Auditors General to the Northern Ireland
Assembly, the House of Commons and the Houses of the Oireachtas

We have audited the financial statements on pages 166 to 186. Our audit has been carried out pursuant to the provisions
of the North/South Co-operation (Implementation Bodies) (Northern Ireland) Order 1999 and the British-Irish
Agreement Act 1999 which require us to audit and certify, in co-operation, the financial statements presented to us by
the Agency.

Respective responsibilities of the Board, the Chief Executive and the Auditors

The responsibilities of the Board and the Chief Executive, including those pertaining to the preparation of the accounts
and the regularity of the financial transactions are set out in the Foreword to the Accounts on pages 158 to 180 and the
Statement of the Accountable Person’s responsibilities on page 161. It is our responsibility to audit the accounts. As a
result of our audit we express an opinion on the accounts.

We review whether the statement on pages 162 and 163 reflects the Agency’s compliance with applicable guidance on
corporate governance and report any material instance where it does not do so, or if the statement is misleading or
inconsistent with other information we are aware of from our audit of the accounts. We also report, if, in our opinion,
the Foreword or other information in the annual report is not consistent with the accounts.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts, disclosures and regularity of financial transactions
included in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the Board
and Chief Executive in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Agency’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the accounts
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by error, or by fraud or other irregularity and that, in all material
respects, the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and Dail Eireann and
the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. However, the evidence available to us was
limited because, as explained in Note 2 to the accounts, no actuarial review has been commissioned since 1993 at which
time the accrued pension liability was STG£1,308,900 (€1,854,319). Therefore, we were unable to assess whether the
current provision of STG £506,542 (€738,386) is sufficient. There were no other satisfactory audit procedures that we
could adopt to confirm that the Superannuation Scheme Provision is properly stated.

In forming our opinion we have also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts.

Qualified opinion arising from limitation in audit scope
In our opinion:

e Except for any adjustments that might have been found necessary had we been able to obtain sufficient evidence
concerning the Superannuation Scheme Provision, proper accounting records have been kept by the Agency and
the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Agency at 31 December 2004 and of its
transactions, total recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the accounts direction issued under the governing legislation.

 Inall material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament
and Dail Eireann and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

In respect alone of the limitation on our work relating to the Superannuation Scheme Provision:

e \We have not obtained all the information and explanations that we considered necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

e \We were unable to determine whether proper accounting records had been maintained.
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Comptroller and Auditor General for Northern Ireland

106 University Street
Belfast

BT7 1EU

7th September 2005
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Income and Expenditure Account
for the year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003 2004 2003
Note £ Stg £ Stg S €
Income

Revenue grants from Departments 4 1,798,542 1,038,172 2,650,691 1,501,352
Ordinary income 5 139,847 124,484 206,107 180,023
EU and government grants released 10 377,456 297,430 556,295 430,127
EU and government grants on disposal of assets 55,507 (438) 81,806 (633)
Water pollution — monitoring of rivers 97,071 235,092 143,063 339,978
Bailiffing 18,162 18,162 26,767 26,266
Interest received 7,702 5,036 11,351 7,283
2,494,287 1,717,938 3,676,080 2,484,396

Expenditure
Staff costs 3 1,091,660 1,027,217 1,608,887 1,485,510
Administration 6 1,017,940 616,321 1,500,240 891,292
Currency exchange 6,314 (1,164) 10,517 (1,683)
Depreciation 7 288,696 278,429 425,480 402,650
2,404,610 1,920,803 3,545,124 2,777,769
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) Transferred to Reserves 12 89,677  (202,865) 130,956  (293,373)

All amounts relate to continuing activities.

The Loughs Agency has no recognised gains or losses other than those included in the results above, and therefore no
separate statement of recognised gains and losses has been presented.

The notes on pages 169 to 186 form part of these accounts.
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Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2004

Fixed Assets

Tangible fixed assets
Current Assets

Debtors and prepayments
Cash at bank and in hand

Current Liabilities
Creditors and accruals

Net Current Assets

Total Assets less Current Liabilities
Provisions
Superannuation Scheme

Net Assets

Represented By
Capital grants
General reserve

Note

11

10
12

The notes on pages 169 to 186 form part of these accounts.

D ANDERSON
Chief Executive

Date: 23rd August 2005
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2004 2003 2004 2003

£ Stg £ Stg € €
4,066,204 3,711,649 5,927,308 5,258,293
195,555 216,577 285,061 306,825
490,765 248,612 715,388 352,209
686,320 465,189 1,000,449 659,034
(206,579)  (259,294)  (301,130) (367,342)
479,741 205,895 699,319 291,692
4545945 3,917,544 6,626,627 5,549,985
(506,542)  (459,071) (738,386)  (650,366)
4,039,403 3,458,473 5,888,241 4,899,619
3,779,728 3,288,475 5,509,709 4,658,783
259,675 169,998 378,532 240,836
4,039,403 3,458,473 5,888,241 4,899,619
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003 2004 2003

Note £ Stg £ Stg € €
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from
Continuing Activities (14,700) 35,386 (15,371) 28,178
Return on investment and servicing of finance 7,702 5,036 11,351 7,283
Capital expenditure and financial investment (635,258)  (240,800)  (936,244)  (340,456)
Net cash outflow before financing (642,256)  (200,378)  (940,264)  (304,995)
Financing 884,409 264,087 1,303,443 374,132
Increase in Cash 242,153 63,709 363,179 69,137
Reconciliation of Operating Surplus/
(Deficit) to Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Continuing Activities
Operating surplus/(deficit) 89,677  (202,865) 130,956  (293,373)
(Profit) on disposal of fixed assets 6 (7,993) (12,085) (11,781) 27,477
Depreciation 7 288,696 278,429 425,480 402,650
Capital grant release 10 (181,829)  (297,430) (267,979)  (430,127)
Revenue grant released 10 (195,627) —  (288,316) —
(Profit)/Loss on disposal of capital grant assets (55,507) 438 (81,806) 633
Interest received (7,702) (5,036) (11,351) (7,283)
Decrease in debtors 21,022 129,942 21,764 223,667
Grants receivable 39,809 — 58,030 —
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors and provisions (5,246) 143,993 (21,808) 138,390
Exchange difference — 31,440 11,098
Net Cash Outflow from Continuing Activities (14,700) 35,386 (15,371) 28,178
Capital Expenditure and Financial Investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets 7 (674,670)  (264,087)  (994,329) (374,132)
Proceeds from disposal of tangible fixed assets 39,412 23,287 58,085 33,676
Net Cash Outflow from Capital Expenditure
and Financial Investment (635,258)  (240,800)  (936,244)  (340,456)
Reconciliation of Financing
Capital grants received 10 659,110 264,087 971,396 374,132
Revenue grant received 10 225,299 — 332,047 —
Net Cash Inflow from Financing 884,409 264,087 1,303,443 374,132
Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Movement in Cash
Increase in cash in year 242,153 63,709 363,179 69,137
Explained as follows:
At 1 January 248,612 184,903 352,209 283,072
At 31 December 490,765 248,612 715,388 352,209
Increase in cash in year 242,153 63,709 363,179 69,137
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Notes to the Accounts

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

()

©)

(d)

)

(f)

Basis of Accounting

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable
accounting standards. The significant accounting policies adopted are set out below. The Board members
consider that these accounting policies are suitable, have been consistently applied, and are supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

From 1 January 2003 a policy was put in place whereby only assets (or groups of assets where appropriate) with
costs greater than £1,000/€1,446 have been capitalised. Prior to this all items of a capital nature were capitalised
regardless of cost.

Fixed assets are stated on the balance sheet at cost less depreciation at annual rates calculated to write off the cost
of the assets over their estimated useful lives. The Agency uses the straight line method of depreciation.

Fixed asset additions are depreciated from the month of purchase and no depreciation charged in year of disposal.
The rates in use are as follows

Land & buildings, Interpretive Centre 4%

Weirs 4%

Boats & boating equipment 15%

Slipway 2%

Equipment & plant, office equipment, fixtures & fittings 2, 4,10, 15, 20, 25%
Computer equipment 10, 15, 20, 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

Currency

The financial statements are stated denominated in £Stg as the Board members consider this to be the base
currency. The figures contained in the Income and Expenditure Account were converted using the average Euro
exchange rate for the year and the Balance Sheet using the rate at the year end. The gain/loss on exchange, which
arises from transactions effected in Euro, is deducted from/added to that part of the Loughs Agency’s
surplus/(deficit), which is funded by the Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources in the
Republic of Ireland and the Department of Agriculture and Rural Development in Northern Ireland.

Pension Costs

The Loughs Agency, under the Foyle Area (Pension) (Amendment) Regulations 1979 made in exercise of its
powers under paragraph 16 of the Third Schedule to that Act, provides retirement benefits to its employees.
Where a provision exists for a beneficiary, any pension paid is charged firstly against this provision. Should the
provision be exhausted, the cost of any pension paid is charged to the income and expenditure account. During
the period, one member of staff was on secondment from the Department of Agriculture and Rural
Development. Secondees from the Northern Ireland Civil Service continue to be members of the Principal Civil
Service Pension Scheme (Northern Ireland).

EU and Government Grants

Capital expenditure incurred to acquire fixed assets and investments is credited to the government grant reserve
from grant in aid received. Any surplus arising on revaluation of tangible fixed assets is credited to the
government grant reserve. On disposal of a tangible fixed asset or redemption of a fixed investment where
applicable, the profit or loss arising is credited or charged to the Income and Expenditure account. A transfer
from the grant reserve equal to the profit or loss arising is made to the Income and Expenditure account. The
balance remaining on the grant reserve in relation to the asset disposed, which represents proceeds on disposal is
then transferred to the general reserve account.

Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to administrative costs on a straight line basis over the terms of
the lease.
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2 SUPERANNUATION SCHEME

The Loughs Agency came into existence on 2 December 1999. On that date the Loughs Agency assumed all the
assets and liabilities of the Foyle Fisheries Commission. The Agency operated a defined benefit pension scheme for
current and former employees, which provides for benefits based on final pensionable pay.

An actuarial review of the scheme has not been carried out since 1993, at which time the accrued liability was
calculated at £1,308,900.

Whilst the Agency is obliged to meet all future pension commitments, no provision for any obligation in excess of
£506,542/€738,386 has been made in these accounts.

Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 17 covers retirement benefits and applies to all accounts with account year ends
from June 2001. The objective of the FRS is to ensure that:

(a) Financial statements reflect at fair value the assets and liabilities arising from an employer’s retirement benefit
obligation and any related funding;

(b) The operating costs of providing retirement benefits to employees are recognised in the accounting period(s)
in which the benefits are earned by the employees, and the related finance costs and any other changes in
value of the assets and liabilities are recognised in the accounting period in which they arise; and

(c) The financial statements contain adequate disclosure of the cost of providing retirement benefits and the
related gains, losses, assets and liabilities.

The Department of Finance and Personnel, the Department of Finance and the Government Actuaries Department
have been preparing a new pension scheme specifically for North/South Implementation Bodies. Although work on
the new scheme is fairly advanced, it is unlikely to be available to permanent staff until the end of 2005. An actuarial
valuation of the Agency’s pension liability will be carried out prior to joining this scheme. This should then enable
the Agency to comply with FRS 17.

3 STAFF COSTS AND BOARD REMUNERATION (in financial period 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004)

2004 2003

(@) The average monthly number of employees (full time equivalent) was:
Administrative 8 8
Field staff and inspectorate 35 35
Total 43 43

It should be noted that the average monthly number of staff includes a secondee from a different department and
temporary summer time appointments.

(b) The costs incurred in respect of these employees were:

2004 2003 2004 2003

£ £ € €

Staff costs 848,892 777,700 1,251,097 1,124,671
Social security costs 60,383 53,785 88,992 77,781
Other pension costs 125,720 137,341 185,286 198,616
Total Staff Costs 1,034,995 968,826 1,525,375 1,401,068
Board remuneration 54,292 55,834 80,016 80,744
Social security costs 2,373 2,557 3,496 3,698
Total Board Costs 56,665 58,391 83,512 84,442
Total Board and Staff Costs 1,091,660 1,027,217 1,608,887 1,485,510
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Staff costs above include the following

2004 2003 2004 2003

£ £ € €

Contracted (Seconded) staff 41,506 36,513 61,172 52,805
Temporary staff 124,623 80,452 183,669 116,350
Total Staff Costs 166,129 116,965 244,841 169,155

(c) Excluding the Chief Executive, there were no employees whose remuneration exceeded £40,000/€57,846 per
annum.

(d) The Chief Executive’s emoluments including pension scheme contributions were as follows:

2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
75,430 65,829 111,169 95,469

The Chief Executive’s total emoluments of £75,430/€111,169 (2003 £65,829/€95,469) comprise a salary of
£64,594/€95,200 (2003 £57,309/€82,877) and pension contributions of £4,112/€6,060 (2003
£3,202/€4,631) and social security costs of £6,724/€ 9,909. The benefit in kind, which relates to the provision
of a motor vehicle, attributed to the Chief Executive was £4,953/€7,300 (2003 £5,318/€7,961). The Chief
Executive is an ordinary member of the Agency’s pension scheme.

(e) The total emoluments of the board members (including the chairperson) were as follows:

2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
54,292 55,834 80,016 80,744

(f) Number of board members (including the chairperson) whose emoluments fell within the following bands:

2004 2003
NIL — STG£5,000/€7,231 10 10
STG£5,001/€7,232 to STG£10,000/€14,462 2 2

(g) The chairperson’s emoluments amounted to £7,255/€10,692 (2003 £8,000/€11,569). Board members’ salaries
are not pensionable.
REVENUE AND CAPITAL GRANTS
Revenue Grants Received in Year 2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €

Department of Communications, Marine and
Natural Resources 899,271 519,086 1,325,346 750,676

Department of Agriculture and
Rural Developments 899,271 519,086 1,325,345 750,676

Total 1,798,542 1,038,172 2,650,691 1,501,352
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Capital Grants Received in Year 2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Department of Communications, Marine and
Natural Resources 100,729 132,044 148,454 187,066
Department of Agriculture and Rural Developments 100,729 132,043 148,455 187,066
201,458 264,087 296,909 374,132
ORDINARY INCOME
2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Normal Activities
Licence Duties 96,120 107,593 141,662 155,596
Fishery rent and rates 2,558 2,926 3,770 4,231
98,678 110,519 145,432 159,827
Other Activities
Fines and costs recovered 38,970 11,772 57,434 17,024
Sundry receipts 2,199 2,193 3,241 3,172
41,169 13,965 60,675 20,196
Total 139,847 124,484 206,107 180,023
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Staff training 17,788 10,555 26,216 15,264
Bank charges 3,804 3,132 5,606 4,529
Postage 7,997 6,094 11,786 8,813
Advertising 31,592 26,854 46,561 38,835
Light and heat 15,148 16,142 22,325 23,344
Telephone 32,807 43,696 48,350 63,191
Operating lease — rent 4,942 5,000 7,283 7,231
Insurance 88,955 70,650 131,101 102,170
Audit 29,000 17,000 42,740 24,585
Accountancy 25,403 17,908 37,439 25,898
Motor vehicle expenses 49,076 51,641 72,329 74,681
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Boat stores

Boat maintenance

Printing and stationery

Licence dealers commission
Maintenance and repairs
Miscellaneous

Travelling and conference expenses
Hospitality

Health and safety

Cleaning

Computer consumables and maintenance
Other equipment costs
Subscriptions

Surveys

Legal and professional fees

(Profit) on disposal of fixed assets
Research programme

Tagging expenses

Interpretive centre expenses

Bad and doubtful debts

Bad Debt Recovered

Counter site expenses
Conservation and protection works
Marine Tourism Study
Disbursements to Vital Signs Participators

LOUGHS AGENCY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004
9,553 2,083 14,080 3,012
38,786 20,585 57,163 29,769
30,805 43,064 45,401 62,277
8,256 12,577 12,168 18,188
29,558 16,501 43,562 23,863
12,194 2,495 17,972 3,608
32,908 35,997 48,500 52,057
4,727 9,620 6,966 13,912
5,999 12,874 8,841 18,618
6,729 8,269 9,018 11,958
25,123 19,390 37,026 28,041
38,212 21,624 56,316 31,272
12,845 10,791 18,931 15,605
7,225 9,624 10,649 13,918
60,289 59,658 88,857 86,274
(7,993) (12,085) (11,781) (17,477)
27,501 20,839 40,531 30,136
10,620 15,647 15,651 22,628
30,186 19,033 44,487 27,525
5,080 3,849 7,486 5,566
(8,330) — (12,277) —
3,672 15,214 5,412 22,001
92,796 — 136,763 —
39,680 — 58,480 —
195,007 — 287,402 —
1,017,940 616,321 1,500,240 891,292
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8 DEBTORS AND PREPAYMENTS

2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Trade Debtors and Prepayments
Trade debtors 22,997 22,013 33,522 31,186
Prepayments 55,112 52,921 80,336 74,973
Water Pollution 45,087 58,724 65,724 83,194
Bailiffing 18,162 18,162 26,475 25,730
Insurance 7,612 9,050 11,096 12,821
Other Debtors 6,776 4,936 9,878 6,993
Grants Receivable 39,809 50,771 58,030 71,928
195,555 216,577 285,061 306,825
9 CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS
2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Trade creditors 14,544 32,787 21,200 46,450
Accruals 192,035 226,507 279,930 320,892
206,579 259,294 301,130 367,342
10 CAPITAL GRANTS

2004 2003
£ £

(&) EU Surveillance Grant (DCMNR)
At 1 January 4,146 26,739
Received during year — —
Amortised in year (2,431) (22,593)
1,715 4,146
Disposal of Grant Assets (601) —
At 31 December 1,114 4,146
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(b) Salmonoid Enhancement Programme (DARD)
At 1 January
Received during year
Amortised in year

At 31 December

(c) Building Fund (DARD/DCMNR)
At 1 January
Received during year
Adjustment (see note 7)
Amortised in year

At 31 December

(d) Finn Basin Project (EU Funding)
At 1 January
Received during year
Amortised in year

At 31 December

(e) Salmonoid Enhancement Programme (2) (DARD)
At 1 January
Received during year
Amortised in year

At 31 December
(f) Additional Angling Spaces
At 1 January

Received during year
Amortised in year

At 31 December
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2004 2003

£ £
371,745 441,666
(22,64;) (69,92:)
349,100 371,745
1,692,503 1,771,892
60,1; _
(67,391) (79,389)
1,685,268 1,692,503
1,444 4,176
(1,13;) (2,73;)
311 1,444
56,722 57,935
(2,427) (1,21;)
54,295 56,722
84,756 86,456
(9,69;) (1,703)
75,063 84,756
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International Fund for Ireland
At 1 January

Receivable during year
Amortised in year

At 31 December

Water Hatchery (Landfill Tax)
At 1 January

Received during year
Amortised in year

At 31 December

Tourist Angling Measure (DCMNR)
At 1 January

Received during year

Amortised in year

At 31 December

Capital Expenditure Grant (DCMNR/DARD)
At 1 January

Received during year

Amortised in year

Disposal of grant assets
At 31 December

Rigid Inflatable Boat
At 1 January

Received during year

Amortised in year

At 31 December
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2004 2003
£ £

48,916 49,479
24,249 —
(3,001) (563)
70,164 48,916
8,733 9,133
(400) (400)
8,333 8,733
223,149 253,148
(12,690) (29,999)
210,459 223,149
796,361 623,956
201,458 264,087
(115,080) (88,920)
882,739 799,123
(54,906) (2,762)
827,833 796,361
146,520 —
146,520 —
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2004 2003
£ £
() Water Quality Monitoring Buoys
At 1 January — —
Received during year 163,264 —
Amortised in year (3,401) —
At 31 December 159,863 —
(m) Tagging and Detection Units
At 1 January — —
Received during year 56,262 —
Amortised in year (1,172) —
At 31 December 55,090 —
(n) Omagh Weir
At 1 January — —
Receivable during year 15,560 —
Received during year 91,606
Amortised in year (522) —
At 31 December 106,644 —
Summary of Capital Grants 2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Closing Balances as at 31 December
EU Surveillance Grant (DCMNR) 1,114 4,146 1,624 5,874
Salmonoid Enhancement Programme (DARD) 349,100 371,745 508,883 526,651
Building Fund (DARD/ DCMNR) 1,685,268 1,692,503 2,456,615 2,397,769
Finn Basin Project (EU Funding) 311 1,444 453 2,046
Salmonoid Enhancement Programme (2) (DARD) 54,294 56,722 79,144 80,358
Additional Angling Spaces 75,063 84,756 109,419 120,074
International Fund for Ireland 70,164 48,916 102,278 69,299
Water Hatchery (Landfill Tax) 8,333 8,733 12,147 12,372
Tourist Angling Measure (DCMNR) 210,459 223,149 306,786 316,135
Capital Expenditure Grant (DCMNR/DARD) 827,833 796,361 1,206,732 1,128,205
Rigid Inflatable Boat 146,520 — 213,582 —
Water Quality Monitoring Buoys 159,863 — 233,032 —
Tagging and Detection Units 55,090 — 80,305 —
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Omagh Weir 106,644 — 155,455 —
3,750,056 3,288,475 5,466,455 4,658,783

Amortised in Year
EU Surveillance Grant (DCMNR) 2,431 22,593 3,583 32,673
Salmonoid Enhancement Programme (DARD) 22,645 69,921 33,374 101,116
Building Fund (DARD/ DCMNR) 7,233 79,389 10,660 114,808
Finn Basin Project (EU Funding) 1,134 2,732 1,671 3,951
Salmonoid Enhancement Programme (2) (DARD) 2,427 1,213 3,577 1,754
Additional Angling Spaces 9,693 1,700 14,286 2,458
International Fund for Ireland 3,001 563 4,423 814
Water Hatchery (Landfill Tax) 400 400 590 578
Tourist Angling Measure (DCMNR) 12,690 29,999 18,703 43,383
Capital Expenditure Grant (DCMNR/DARD) 115,080 88,920 169,604 128,592
Rigid Inflatable Boat — — — —
Water Quality Monitoring Buoys 3,401 — 5,012 —
Tagging and Detection Units 1,172 — 1,727 —
Omagh Weir 522 — 769 —
181,829 297,430 267,979 430,127

Revenue Grants

Received in year 2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Water Quality Monitoring Buoys 6 — 9 —
Tagging and Detection Units Expense Release 614 — 906 —
Vital Signs 224,679 — 331,132 —
225,299 — 332,047 —
Released in year 2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Water Quality Monitoring Buoys 6 — 9 —
Tagging and Detection Units Expense Release 614 — 905 —
Vital Signs 195,007 — 287,402 —
195,627 — 288,316 —
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Closing Deferred Revenue balances 2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Vital Signs 29,672 — 43,254 —
29,672 — 43,254 —
Closing Debtor balances 2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
International Fund for Ireland 24,249 — 35,348 —
Omagh Weir 15,560 — 22,682 —
39,809 — 58,030 —

Summary of Grants
Received in year 2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Capital Grants 659,110 264,087 971,396 374,132
Revenue Grants 225,299 — 332,047 —
884,409 264,087 1,303,443 374,132
Releases in year 2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Capital Grants Released in the year 181,829 297,430 267,979 430,127
Revenue Grants Released in the year 195,627 — 288,316 —
377,456 297,430 556,295 430,127
Closing balances at year end 2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Capital Grants 3,750,056 3,288,475 5,466,455 4,658,783
Revenue Grants 29,672 — 43,254 —
3,779,728 3,288,475 5,509,709 4,658,783
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11 SUPERANNUATION SCHEME

2004 2003
£ £
At 1 January 459,071 429,017
Employee’s contributions 39,852 36,127
Loughs Agency’s contributions 39,852 36,127
Contributions to pensions by Loughs Agency 85,868 101,214
624,643 602,485

Payments during the year
Annual pensions (118,101) (118,965)
Lump sum payments — (24,449)
At 31 December 506,542 459,071
At 31 December — Euro €738,386 €650,366
Charge to Income and Expenditure Account 2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Loughs Agency’s contributions for staff 39,852 36,127 58,734 52,245
Loughs Agency’s contributions for pensioners 85,868 101,214 126,552 146,371
125,720 137,341 185,286 198,616

The pension scheme currently operated by the Loughs Agency is covered by the Foyle Area (Pension) (Amendment)
Regulations 1979. Section 9 of the regulations covers retirement on medical grounds. This section states that when
a person retires on medical grounds then the length of pensionable service to be used when calculating the lump sum
and annual pension should be increased as follows:

a) If the pensionable service is less than ten years the it should be doubled
b) If it is ten years or more it should be increased to either twenty years or by six years.

During the 2003 year, one member of staff retired on medical grounds. The length of pensionable service was
increased by six and two thirds rather than six years. This was to ensure parity between Loughs Agency staff and
Northern Ireland Civil Service staff. The difference between the amounts due to the individual for both lump sum
and pension when calculated using six years and six and two thirds years was £728/€1,031.

Pension payments were also made to individuals who retired in previous years and who had their length of service
increased by the additional two thirds of a year. The value of these additional payments is not known, but will be
small and not material.
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GENERAL RESERVE

2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
At 1 January 169,998 369,663 240,836 565,924
Transfer of capital grant on disposal of grant assets — 3,200 — 4,899
Surplus/(Deficit) for year 89,677 (202,865) 130,956 (293,373)
Exchange difference — — 6,740 (36,614)
At 31 December 259,675 169,998 378,532 240,836
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2004 2003 2004 2003
£ £ € €
Contracted for NIL NIL NIL NIL
Authorised by Loughs Agency but not yet
contracted for 75,000 NIL 109,328 NIL

OPERATING LEASE

At 31 December 2004 the Agency had an annual commitment under a short term business letting agreement for the
ground floor office at Old Quay Lane, Carlingford of €6,349/£4,308.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Foyle, Carlingford and Irish Lights Commission (Loughs Agency) is a North/South Implementation Body
sponsored by the Department of Agriculture and Rural Development in Northern Ireland, and the Department of
Communications, Marine and Natural Resources in the Republic of Ireland.

The above named departments are regarded as related parties. During the period Loughs Agency has had various
transactions with these departments.

None of the members of key management staff or other related parties has undertaken any material transactions with
the Loughs Agency during the period.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial Instruments

Due to the non-trading nature of its activities and the way the Agency is financed, the Agency is not exposed to
the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. The Agency has very limited powers to borrow or invest
surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day to day operational activities and are not held
to change the risks facing the Agency in undertaking its activities.

The Agency’s financial instruments mainly consist of cash, trade debtors and trade creditors.

(b) Liquidity, Interest rate and Foreign Currency Risk

The Agency’s net revenue resource requirements are financed by resources voted annually by Parliament and the
Oireachtas, as largely is its capital expenditure. It is not therefore exposed to significant liquidity risks. The
Agency does not access funds from commercial sources and so is not exposed to significant interest rate risk. The
Agency’s transactions are effected in the currencies of each part of Ireland, with realised gains and losses being
taken to the Income and Expenditure account. The Agency’s exposure to foreign currency risk is not significant
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as it receives agreed levels of funding from its sponsoring departments, Department of Agriculture and Rural
Development and Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources, in sterling and euro
respectively and does not engage in trading activities. However as the Agency receives one half of its funding from
Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources in Euro, yet discharges the majority of its
transactions in sterling, it is exposed to foreign currency risk to a limited degree.
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Account Direction

ACCOUNT DIRECTION GIVEN BY THE NORTHERN DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURAL AND RURAL
DEVELOPMENT, THE SOUTHERN DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNICATIONS, MARINE AND NATURAL
RESOURCES WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE FINANCE DEPARTMENTS, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
NORTH/SOUTH CO-OPERATION (IMPLEMENTATION BODIES) (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1999
AND THE SOUTHERN BRITISH-IRISH AGREEMENT ACT 1999

The annual accounts shall give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial year,
and the state of affairs as at the year end. Subject to this requirement, the Loughs Agency shall prepare for the financial
period ended 31 December 2000 and subsequent years in accordance with:

a) The North/South Implementation Bodies Annual reports and Accounts Guidance;

b) Other guidance which Finance Departments may issue from time to time in respect of accounts which are
required to give a true and fair view;

¢) Any other specific disclosures required by sponsoring departments.

Except where agreed otherwise with finance departments, in which case the exception shall be described in the notes to
the accounts.

Signed by authority of the Department of Signed by authority of the Department of

Agriculture and Rural Development Communications, Marine and Natural Resources
Gerald Lavery Maurice Mullen

Date 3rd August 2001 Date 6th September 2001

Printed by the Stationery Office Limited on behalf of The Loughs Agency
PC1826 9/07
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